
UMC Governing Board Meeting
Wednesday, March 27, 2024 2:00 p.m.

Delta Point Building - Emerald Conference Room - 1st Floor



 

1 

 AGENDA 
 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
GOVERNING BOARD 

March 27, 2024 2:00 p.m. 
901 Rancho Lane, Las Vegas, Nevada 

Delta Point Building, Emerald Conference Room (1st Floor) 
 

Notice is hereby given that a meeting of the UMC Governing Board has been called and will be 
held on Wednesday, March 27, 2024, commencing at 2:00 p.m. at the location listed above to 
consider the following: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
SECTION 1.  OPENING CEREMONIES 

 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

INVOCATION 
 

 

1. Public Comment. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT.  This is a period devoted to comments by the general public about 
items on this agenda.  If you wish to speak to the Board about items within its 
jurisdiction but not appearing on this agenda, you must wait until the “Comments by the 
General Public” period listed at the end of this agenda.  Comments will be limited to 
three minutes.  Please step up to the speaker's podium, clearly state your name and 
address, and please spell your last name for the record.  If any member of the Board 
wishes to extend the length of a presentation, this will be done by the Chair or the Board 
by majority vote. 
 

2. Approval of Minutes of the meeting of the UMC Governing Board held on February 28, 
2024. (Available at University Medical Center, Administrative Office) (For possible 
action)  
 

3. Approval of Agenda. (For possible action) 

 
This meeting has been properly noticed and posted online at University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada’s website http://www.umcsn.com and at Nevada Public Notice at https://notice.nv.gov/, and 
University Medical Center 1800 W. Charleston Blvd. Las Vegas, NV (Principal Office) 
 
 

 
• The main agenda is available on University Medical Center of Southern Nevada’s website http://www.umcsn.com. For copies 

of agenda items and supporting back-up materials, please contact Stephanie Ceccarelli, Governing Board Secretary, at 
(702) 765-7949.  The Governing Board may combine two or more agenda items for consideration. 

• Items on the agenda may be taken out of order. 
• The Governing Board may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to an item at any time. 
• Consent Agenda - All matters in this sub-category are considered by the Governing Board to be routine and may be acted 

upon in one motion.  Most agenda items are phrased for a positive action.  However, the Governing Board may take other 
actions such as hold, table, amend, etc. 

• Consent Agenda items are routine and can be taken in one motion unless a Governing Board member requests that an item 
be taken separately.  For all items left on the Consent Agenda, the action taken will be staff's recommendation as indicated 
on the item.   

• Items taken separately from the Consent Agenda by Governing Board members at the meeting will be heard in order.  

Page 2 of 296

http://www.umcsn.com/
https://notice.nv.gov/
http://www.umcsn.com/


 

2 

SECTION 2:  CONSENT ITEMS 
 
4. Approve the March 2024 Medical and Dental Staff Credentialing Activities for University 

Medical Center of Southern Nevada (UMC) as authorized by the Medical Executive 
Committee (MEC) on March 26, 2024; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For 
possible action) 
 

5. Approve the revisions to the Physician and Non-Physician Provider Traditional 
Compensation Plan; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action)  

 
6. Ratify the Consulting Provider Agreement with Health Plan of Nevada, Inc., for Managed 

Care Services; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

7. Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the In-Hospital Services 
Agreement with Fresenius Kidney Care of Nevada, LLC for hospital dialysis services; or 
take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

8. Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Agreement for Breach 
Response Services with IDX, a Zerofox Company; authorize the Chief Executive Officer 
to execute amendments or extension options; or take action as deemed appropriate. 
(For possible action) 
 

9. Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Agreement with ROI-IT, 
LLC for Sophos Endpoint Security services; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For 
possible action) (For possible action) 

 
10. Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Retail Pharmacy 

Consulting and Management Agreement with Cardinal Health Pharmacy Services, LLC; 
authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute extensions and amendments; or take 
action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
11. Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Fourth Amendment to 

RFP 2018-01 Agreement with Compass Group for Food Services and Clinical Nutrition 
Management Services (Lot 2); authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute any 
future Amendments within his yearly delegation of authority; or take action as deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
12. Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the First Amendment to the 

Master Services Agreement with EV&A Architects for Architectural Design and 
Documents Service; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
13. Review and recommend for approval by the Board of Hospital Trustees for University 

Medical Center of Southern Nevada, the revisions to the Critical Labor Shortage 
Resolution in accordance to NRS 286.523, for University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada to employ retired public employees to fill positions for which there is a critical 
labor shortage; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

14. Review and recommend for approval by the Board of Hospital Trustees for University 
Medical Center of Southern Nevada, the Amendment Three to Master Professional 
Services Agreement with Medicus Healthcare Solutions, LLC for locum tenens and 
advanced practitioners staffing services; authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute 
amendments within the not-to-exceed amount of this Agreement; or take action as 
deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

Page 3 of 296



3 

SECTION 3:  BUSINESS ITEMS 

15. Receive an educational update from Dr. Kate Martin, Associate Dean for Graduate
Medical Education & Designated Institutional Official (DIO) regarding the Graduate
Medical Education Program at the Kirk Kerkorian School of Medicine at UNLV; and take
any action deemed appropriate.  (For possible action)

16. Review and discuss the Governing Board 2024 Action Plan, to include an informational
overview of the GME program from Shana Tello, Academic and External Affairs
Administrator; and take any action deemed appropriate.  (For possible action)

17. Receive an update from Daniel Rosales, Retail Manager with Compass Group -
Morrison, regarding food services at UMC; and take any action deemed appropriate.
(For possible action)

18. Receive an update from Maria Sexton, UMC Chief Information Officer, regarding Epic
User Group project updates; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible
action)

19. Receive a report from the Governing Board Strategic Planning Committee; and take any
action deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

20. Receive a report from the Governing Board Human Resources and Executive
Compensation Committee; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible
action)

21. Receive a report from the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee; and take any
action deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

22. Receive the monthly financial report for February FY24; and take any action deemed
appropriate. (For possible action)

23. Receive an update from the Dean of the Kirk Kerkorian School of Medicine at UNLV;
and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action)

24. Receive an update from the Hospital CEO; and take any action deemed appropriate.
(For possible action)

SECTION 4:  EMERGING ISSUES 

25. Identify emerging issues to be addressed by staff or by the Board at future meetings;
and direct staff accordingly. (For possible action)

SECTION 5:  CLOSED SESSION 

26. Go into closed session pursuant to NRS 241.015(3)(b)(2), to receive information from
UMC’s Office of General Counsel regarding potential or existing litigation involving a
matter over which the Board has supervision, control, jurisdiction or advisory power, and
to deliberate toward a decision on the matter; and direct staff accordingly.

Page 4 of 296



 

4 

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC 
 
A period devoted to comments by the general public about matters relevant to the Board’s 
jurisdiction will be held.  No action may be taken on a matter not listed on the posted agenda.  
Comments will be limited to three minutes.  Please step up to the speaker’s podium, clearly 
state your name, and address and please spell your last name for the record. 
 
All comments by speakers should be relevant to the Board’s action and jurisdiction. 
 

 
 UMCSN ADMINISTRATION KEEPS THE OFFICIAL RECORD OF ALL PROCEEDINGS OF UMCSN GOVERNING 

BOARD.  IN ORDER TO MAINTAIN A COMPLETE AND ACCURATE RECORD OF ALL PROCEEDINGS, ANY 
PHOTOGRAPH, MAP, CHART, OR ANY OTHER DOCUMENT USED IN ANY PRESENTATION TO THE BOARD 
SHOULD BE SUBMITTED TO UMCSN ADMINISTRATION.  IF MATERIALS ARE TO BE DISTRIBUTED TO THE 
BOARD, PLEASE PROVIDE SUFFICIENT COPIES FOR DISTRIBUTION TO UMCSN ADMINISTRATION. 

THE BOARD MEETING ROOM IS ACCESSIBLE TO INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES.  WITH TWENTY-FOUR (24) 
HOUR ADVANCE REQUEST, A SIGN LANGUAGE INTERPRETER MAY BE MADE AVAILABLE (PHONE: 702-765-
7949). 

Page 5 of 296



University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
Governing Board Meeting 
February 28, 2024 
______________________________________________________________________ 
Emerald Conference Room 
Delta Point Building (1st Floor) 
901 Rancho Lane 
Las Vegas, Clark County, Nevada 
Wednesday, February 28, 2024 
2:00 PM. 
 
The University Medical Center Governing Board met in regular session, at the location and date 
above, at the hour of 2:00 PM.  The meeting was called to order at the hour of 2:07 PM by Chair 
O’Reilly. The following members were present, which constituted a quorum of the members 
thereof: 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Board Members: 
 

Present: 
John O’Reilly, Chair 
Donald Mackay, M.D., Vice-Chair  

 Laura Lopez-Hobbs 
Robyn Caspersen  
Chris Haase 
Mary Lynn Palenik (via WebEx) 
Harry Hagerty 

  Renee Franklin (via WebEx) 
 Jeff Ellis (via WebEx) 
   
Ex-Officio Members: 
 
 Present: 

Dr. Meena Vohra, Chief of Staff  
Dr. Marc Kahn, Dean of Kirk Kerkorian SOM at UNLV  
Steve Weitman, Ex-Officio (via WebEx) 
 
Absent:  
Bill Noonan, Ex-Officio (Excused) 

 
 Others Present: 

Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
Tony Marinello, Chief Operating Officer 
Jennifer Wakem, Chief Financial Officer 
Susan Pitz, General Counsel 
Stephanie Ceccarelli, Governing Board Secretary 
Liz Bassett, Assistant General - Counsel Nevada Commission on Ethics 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 6 of 296



UMC Governing Board 
February 28, 2024  Page 2 of 14 
 
SECTION 1.  OPENING CEREMONIES 
 
 CALL TO ORDER 
 
 PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 INVOCATION 
 
ITEM NO. 1 PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

Chair O’Reilly asked if there were any persons present in the audience wishing to 
be heard on any item on this agenda. 

 
 Speakers: None 
  
ITEM NO. 2 Approval of Minutes of the meeting of the UMC Governing Board held on 

January 31, 2024. (Available at University Medical Center, Administrative 
Office) (For possible action)  

 
FINAL ACTION: 
 
A motion was made by Member Mackay that the minutes be approved as 
recommended.  Motion carried by unanimous vote.  

 
ITEM NO. 3 Approval of Agenda (For possible action) 
 

Ms. Pitz noted a change to agenda Item No. 25, stating that Liz Bassett, 
Associate General Counsel of the Nevada Commission on Ethics, would be 
presenting the Ethics Training due to a scheduling conflict with Ross Armstrong, 
which occurred after the agenda was posted. 

 
FINAL ACTION:  
 
A motion was made by Member Hagerty that the agenda be approved as 
amended.  Motion carried by unanimous vote.  

 
SECTION 2: CONSENT ITEMS 
 
ITEM NO. 4 Approve the February 2024 Medical and Dental Staff Credentialing Activities 

for University Medical Center of Southern Nevada (UMC) as authorized by 
the Medical Executive Committee (MEC) on February 27, 2024; and take 
action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- February Credentialing Activities 
 

ITEM NO. 5 Approve the UMC Policy and Procedures Committee’s activities of   
  December 6, 2023 and January 3, 2024, including the recommended   

Page 7 of 296



UMC Governing Board 
February 28, 2024  Page 3 of 14 
 
  creation, revision, and/or retirement of UMC policies and procedures; or  
  take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Policies and Procedures 

 
ITEM NO. 6  Approve the UMC Contract Evaluations as recommended by the   
  UMC Clinical Quality and Professional Affairs Committee; or take action as  
  deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 
  DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  

- Contract Evaluations 
 

ITEM NO. 7  Approve and recommend for approval by the Board of Hospital Trustees  
  for University Medical Center of Southern Nevada; the proposed   
  amendments to the UMC Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws and Rules &  
  Regulations; as approved and recommended by the Medical Executive  
  Committee on November 28, 2023; or take any action deemed appropriate.  
  (For possible action) 
 

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Medical Staff Bylaws 

 
ITEM NO. 8 Approve the Fifth Amendment to the CEO’s Employment Agreement as 

recommended the Human Resources and Executive Compensation 
Committee; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action)  

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- CEO Employment Agreement 

 
ITEM NO. 9 Ratify the new Remote Work Policy; and take action as deemed 

appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Remote Work Policy  

 
ITEM NO. 10 Approve the HR Procedure for Disciplinary Hearing Process; or take action 

as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Disciplinary Hearing Process Policy 

 
ITEM NO. 11 Approve the revisions to various HR Policies and Procedures regarding 

references to Administrative Leave Days and Compensation Plans; or take 
action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Various Policies and Procedures 

 
ITEM NO. 12  Ratify the Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement with  
  Essential Associates Holdings, LLC for radiology clinical services;   

Page 8 of 296



UMC Governing Board 
February 28, 2024  Page 4 of 14 
 
  authorize the Chief Executive Officer to exercise renewal options within his 
  delegation of authority; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible 
  action) 
 

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Amendment One 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
ITEM NO. 13  Award the RFP 2023-03, Comprehensive Background Checks Services to  
  AccuSourceHR, Inc.; authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the  
  Agreement for Comprehensive Background Checks; execute extensions  
  and amendments; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible  
  action) 
 

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Service Agreement 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
ITEM NO. 14 Award the RFP 2023-08, FMLA Administrative and Other Related Leave  
  Services to AbsencePlus Administrators; authorize the Chief Executive  
  Officer to sign the RFP No. 2023-08 Service Agreement; execute extensions 
  and amendments; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible  
  action) 
 

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- 2023-08 FMLA Service Agreement 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
ITEM NO. 15  Award Bid No. 2023-15, UMC Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion, to 

Monument Construction, the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, 
contingent upon submission of the required bonds and insurance; 
authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute change orders within his 
delegation of authority; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible 
action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- ITB 2023-15 Southern Highlands Notification of Intent to Award 
- ITB 2023-15 Southern Highlands PC/QC Expansion Agreement 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
ITEM NO. 16  Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Master  
  Services Agreement with EV&A Architects for Architectural Design and  
  Documents Service; authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute  
  extensions and amendments; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For  
  possible action) 
 

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Master Services Agreement 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 

Page 9 of 296



UMC Governing Board 
February 28, 2024  Page 5 of 14 
 
ITEM NO. 17  Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Agreement  
  with Getinge USA Sales, LLC; or take action as deemed    
  appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Quote – Redacted  
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
ITEM NO. 18  Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Agreement  
  for Contingent Permanent Placement with Optimum Healthcare Solutions,  
  LLC; authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute extensions and  
  amendments; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Agreement 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
ITEM NO. 19  Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Professional 

Services Agreement with Meena P. Vohra, M.D. dba Las Vegas Pediatric 
Critical Care Associates; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For 
possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Professional Services Agreement 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
ITEM NO. 20  Approve the report on the emergency repairs of a chilled water line repair; 

or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Chilled Waterline Repair Report 

 
ITEM NO. 21  Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Service 

Agreement with Stericycle, Inc. for Waste Disposal Services; or take action 
as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Agreement – Redacted  
- Sourcing Letter 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
ITEM NO. 22  Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Agreement 

with T Evans RNFA, LLC for Cardiovascular Operating Room First Assist 
Services; authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute extensions and 
amendments; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Service Order 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 

Page 10 of 296



UMC Governing Board 
February 28, 2024  Page 6 of 14 
 
ITEM NO. 23  Review and recommend for approval by the Board of Hospital Trustees for 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, the Agreements with ICU 
Medical Sales, Inc. and Smiths Medical ASD, Inc. for Infusion Pumps and 
related products; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible 
action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Addendum – Redacted 
- Ordering Document #1 – Placement Equipment Plum 360– Redacted  
- Ordering Document #2 – Purchase Summary of CADD - Redacted 
- CJT Placed Equipment Agreement - Redacted 
- CJT Purchaser Agreement – Redacted 
- 1351 HPG Statement of Work – Exhibit L - Redacted 
- 1351 Customer Letter – Update Installed Base 
- 1119 HPG Information Security Exhibit - Redacted 
- IV Catheters Blood Collection Sourcing Letter 
- IV Infusion Sourcing Letter 
- ICU Medical Sales Sourcing Letter 
- Disclosure of Ownership – ICU Medical 
- Disclosure of Ownership – Smiths 
- Business Associate Agreement 

 
ITEM NO. 24  Approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the Agreement  
  with Waxie Sanitary Supply for Sanitation Materials and Equipment; or take 
  action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
- Service Agreement 
- Sourcing Letter 
- Disclosure of Ownership 

 
FINAL ACTION:  
 

A motion was made by Member Mackay that Consent Items 4-24 be approved as 
presented.  Motion carried by unanimous vote.  
 

SECTION 3: BUSINESS ITEMS 
 
ITEM NO. 25  Receive Ethics training from Liz Bassett, Associate General    
  Counsel, of Nevada Commission on Ethics; and take any action deemed  
  appropriate. (For possible action) 
 
  Due to technical difficulties, Item 25 was tabled to be heard later during the 

meeting. 
 
ITEM NO. 26   Receive a report from the Governing Board Clinical Quality and   
  Professional  Affairs Committee; and take any action deemed appropriate.  
  (For possible action) 
 

Page 11 of 296



UMC Governing Board 
February 28, 2024  Page 7 of 14 
 
  DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
  None  

 
DISCUSSION:  

Member Mackay provided a report on the meeting held on Monday, February 5, 
2023 at 2:03 pm. There was a quorum in attendance. There was no public 
comment. The minutes and the agenda were both approved. 
 
The Committee approved the Policies and Procedures and Medical Staff Bylaws, 
which were approved as a part of today’s consent agenda. 
 
Deb Fox provided an update on the status of Pathways to Excellence and the 
Magnet programs, as well as professional practice and operational updates. 
Nurses’ week is scheduled for May 6-12, 2024. Pathway to Excellence re-
designation is due toward the end of 2024. The application and document 
submission for Magnet will be in 2025. A site visit is also expected at the end of 
2025. 
 
Jeff Castillo provided updates on the HCAHPS and CCAHPS programs. 
Improvements in both categories were discussed. Actions in the ICARE4U 
program were also reviewed. 
 
Lastly, an update was received on the Quality, Safety and Regulatory program 
for the 3rd quarter of 2023. All safety reports were reported within the appropriate 
State time frames and corrective actions were taken. All grievances were 
reviewed and approved and appropriate recommendations. 
 
There were no emerging issues discussed and after last call for public comment, 
the meeting was adjourned. 

FINAL ACTION:  
None 

 
ITEM NO. 27  Receive a report from the Governing Board Human Resource and   
  Executive Compensation Committee; and take any action deemed   
  appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
  None 

 
DISCUSSION:  

Member Ellis provided a report on the special meeting held on Monday, February 
26, 2023 at 11:30 a.m. There was a quorum in attendance. There was no public 
comment. The minutes and the agenda were both approved. 
 
The Committee discussed the 5th Amendment to the CEO employment 
agreement, which will extend the agreement to 2028. The amendment was 

Page 12 of 296



UMC Governing Board 
February 28, 2024  Page 8 of 14 
 

approved by the committee and was approved as a part of today’s consent 
agenda.   
 
Next, the Committee discussed the new remote work policy, which has not yet 
been implemented, but is in place if needed in the future. Next, there was a 
discussion regarding changes to policies related to disciplinary procedures for 
non-bargain employees. Lastly, the Committee reviewed minor changes that 
were made to various policies and procedures related to administrative leave 
days and compensation plans for employed physicians. All items were approved 
as a part of today’s consent agenda. 
 
Emerging issues were discussed and after last call for public comment, the 
meeting was adjourned. 
 
FINAL ACTION:  
None 

 
ITEM NO. 28 Receive an update a report from the Governing Board Audit and Finance 

Committee; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
  None  

 
DISCUSSION:  

Member Caspersen provided a report on the meeting which was held on 
Wednesday, February 21, 2023 at 2:00 pm. There was a quorum in attendance. 
There was no public comment and minutes and the agenda were both approved 
unanimously.   
 
Quarterly audit and project reports were received on the ReVITALize project. 
There were no findings reported in the expenditure audit report from Nate Strohl. 
Shana Tello provided a status report of the project to date. It was noted that the 
project is on time and in some areas ahead of budget. At this time it is 42% 
complete. 
 
The Committee received a report regarding financial results from January FY24 
and year-to-date financials, which included a review of trended stats and data. 
Supplemental payments received during the month contributed to good financial 
results for the month. Key financial indicators were reviewed. 
 
The business items were reviewed and approved by the Committee during the 
meeting. All of the contracts that were approved during the meeting are a part of 
today’s consent agenda.  
 
Emerging issues were discussed, there was no public comment and the meeting 
adjourned at 3:16 PM. 

FINAL ACTION:  
None 
 

Page 13 of 296



UMC Governing Board 
February 28, 2024  Page 9 of 14 
 
ITEM NO. 25 Receive the monthly financial report for January FY24; and take any action 

deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
  January FY24 Financials 

 
DISCUSSION:  

Ms. Wakem provided a summary of the monthly financial reports for January 
2024. 
 
Admissions were 14% below budget for the month. AADC dropped slightly to 
584. Average length of stay increased, 2% over budget. Overall acuity was 1.84 
and Medicare CMI was 2.05. Inpatient surgeries were down 9%. Outpatient 
surgeries were 41% above budget. There were 11 transplant cases. ER visits 
were down slightly 2.5%. Approximately 23.3% of patients were admitted. Quick 
cares were up 6% above budget and primary cares were 19% below budget. 
Telehealth had 718 visits for the month. Orthopedic clinic volumes were 20.5% 
below budget. Deliveries were 13% below budget. There was continued 
discussion regarding the ortho clinic volumes. 

The income statement for the month showed net revenue above budget $8.2 
million, the key driver being the supplemental payments received. Operating 
expenses were $1.8 million above budget, due to challenges with radiology. Total 
income from operations was $13 million on a budget of $5.5 million. Ms. Wakem 
next reviewed the January year to date statistics, which were ahead of budget. 
 
Salaries, wages and benefits were slightly over budget 1.1%; staff has been 
doing well managing overtime. All other expenses were reviewed. We were $1.5 
million over budget in supplies due to purchase services.  

FINAL ACTION:  

None 
 
At this time, the Board returned to hear Agenda Item 25, the Ethics presentation 
by Liz Bassett. 
  

ITEM NO. 25  Receive Ethics training from Liz Bassett, Associate General Counsel, of  
  Nevada Commission on Ethics; and take any action deemed appropriate.  
  (For possible action) 
 
  DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  
  PowerPoint Presentation   

 
DISCUSSION:  

Liz Bassett provided of the Nevada Commission on Ethics, provided an ethics 
overview, which included training on statutory and regulatory authority: 
 
• Chapter 281A Nevada Revised Statutes – Nevada Ethics Law 

Page 14 of 296



UMC Governing Board 
February 28, 2024  Page 10 of 14 
 

• Chapter 281A Nevada Administrative Code – Ethics Regulations 
 

The Commission consists of 8 members. Three major functions of the ethics 
commission are to provide education and outreach, provide advisory opinions to 
public officers and employees and to receive and process complaints alleging 
violations of Nevada’s Ethics Law. 
 
Ms. Bassett next reviewed key ethics terms and provided examples of what is 
and what is not Nevada Ethics Law as it relates to who is covered in the 
jurisdiction of the Ethics Commission and what types of conduct falls under the 
jurisdiction of the Ethics Commission, as well as what action the Ethics 
Commission can take in response to a violation. 
  
Three ethics categories discussed include improper benefits, disclosure and 
abstention and cooling off. 
 
1. Improper benefits prohibits public officers and employees from using a 

government position to benefit self or to make a commitment in a private 
capacity or to receive a gift or loan.  
 

2. Disclosure is required and must be sufficient to inform the public and must be 
made at the time the matter is considered and every time a matter comes 
before the board or department. Abstention means a public officer shall not 
vote or advocate passage of failure of a matter to which they have a 
relationship. Examples were provided. 

3. Cooling off applies when one is leaving a public agency. There is a one year 
cooling off period prior to seeking or accepting employment or counseling or 
lobbying the agency. 

 
Four tips for compliance include: 
 
1. Maintain a list of individuals or entities to which you have a “commitment in a 

private capacity” 
2. Review any agendas where you have action items beforehand to identify 

potential conflicts of interest 
3. Consult with legal counsel who can search prior opinions 
4. Request an advisory opinion 
 
Lastly, direction was given regarding the ethics processes and tips on how to 
remain in compliance.   
 
FINAL ACTION:  
None 
 

ITEM NO. 30 Receive an update on the Kirk Kerkorian School of Medicine at UNLV; and 
take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  

  None  
 

Page 15 of 296



UMC Governing Board 
February 28, 2024  Page 11 of 14 
 

DISCUSSION:  

Dean Kahn introduced Marianna Sarmiento to the team at UNLV.  
 
March 15th is Match day for the school for Residents. 
 
Dean Kahn next provided highlights from the UMC/UNLV visit to Renown Hospital 
and UNR in Reno. There were a number of items discussed, including cooperation 
in cancer care and the priority of receiving GME slots.  
 
Mr. Van Houweling agreed that the trip was a good use of time and discussion to 
expand GME was very good.  
 
FINAL ACTION:  
None 
 

ITEM NO. 31 Receive an update from the Hospital CEO; and take any action deemed 
appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
DOCUMENT(S) SUBMITTED:  

  CEO Update  
 
DISCUSSION:  

Mason Van Houweling, UMC CEO provided the following updates: 

• Radiology Update – Five interventional radiologist are now employed, as well 
as three diagnostic radiologists.  

• Trauma Resus update – Work will be completed in March 
• ReVITALize update – The project is on budget and ahead of schedule. 
• OR Scheduling, length of stay improvements were discussed. 
• Association of American Medical Colleges membership – This provides 

support and networking opportunities and more advocacy for GME, medical 
research and education. 

• Southern Highlands expansion  
• Vegas, INC Healthcare Headliners –  

• Shana Tello recognized – Congratulations! 
• Becker’s Hospital Review 

• Tony Marinello “Academic Medical Center COOs to Know” 
Congratulations! 

 
Lastly, Mr. Van Houweling highlighted items in the community brochure, including 
the car show, CEO town halls, as well as other events in the community. 
 
Artificial intelligence and value-based payments are items that will be presented 
at a later meeting. 
 
Mr. Van Houweling read a letter regarding a patient experience. There were 
many staff members that were recognized. 
 

Page 16 of 296



UMC Governing Board 
February 28, 2024  Page 12 of 14 
 

Dean Kahn commented that he is happy that UMC is working with UNLV as a 
colleague at the Association of American Medical Colleges. 
 
FINAL ACTION:  
None 
 

SECTION 4: EMERGING ISSUES 
 
ITEM NO. 32 Identify emerging issues to be addressed by staff or by the Board at future 

meetings; and direct staff accordingly. (For possible action) 
 

DISCUSSION:  

Appoint Bill Noonan, Ex- Officio as a non-voting member of the Clinical Quality 
and Professional Affairs Committee and the Human Resources and Executive 
Compensation Committee. 

Epic progress updates. 

Governing Board action plan items will be presented beginning next month.  

FINAL ACTION:  
None 
 
COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC: 
 
Comments from the general public were called.  
 
Speaker: Blain Massey – 3rd year Resident – Department of Internal Medicine 
 
Advocate on behalf of residents for an increase in resident salary. He 
commented that the resident salaries are below the 25th percentile for resident 
salaries in the western region in other programs. He would like this to reach the 
25th percentile and would like this discussion to be added to a future agenda.  
 
Speaker: Dr. Najima Mwase, Chief Resident, Pediatric Residency – 
 
Expressed her agreement with the previous comments. An increase in resident 
salaries has been long coming due to the cost of living increases. She stated that 
residents work very hard on the pediatric side, are there day and night in multiple 
departments, as well as working at two different hospitals. They tend to get 
stretched thin and she wants to make sure that the cost of living and the work 
that is put in is reflected in their salaries. She wants to make sure that this is an 
important item that is added to a future agenda.  
 
Speaker: Harasi Guerra – Chief Resident – Department of Family Medicine at 
Kirk Kerkorian School of Medicine -   
 
He expressed his support for his department and supports increase for resident 
salaries. A recent NPR report regarding the rising cost of rent for those in Las 
Vegas. Cost of living to afford rent per year is approximately $69K, which most 

Page 17 of 296



UMC Governing Board 
February 28, 2024  Page 13 of 14 
 

residents sit below. He hopes this is a discussion that can be discussed in the 
future.  
 
Speaker: Emily Shaffer – Physician and 3rd year Resident – Department of 
Gynecology and Obstetrics  
 
Attests that residents are not able to afford the rising cost of living in Las Vegas 
for rent, food, transportation.  Without additional income for emergency needs, 
this is often put on credit cards to get by. She expressed difficulty in finding 
additional work to supplement income, due to working 80 hours a week. Many 
applicants in the cycle for residency commented on this being one of the lowest 
paid programs, making it difficult to address questions regarding cost of living. 
The average cost of rent necessitates an income of approximately $69.8K per 
year, whereas she makes less than this amount. If the 25th percentile, a 4th year 
resident would make approximately $70K. She looks forward to a discussion on a 
future agenda.  
 
Speaker: Pakhdikian – 2nd year Psychiatry Resident  
 
Agrees with colleagues regarding this topic of discussion. 
 
Speaker: Julianne Shih –  
 
Reiterated what was commented on before, adding that during the course of 
interviews, the subject of the weakness of salaries in the program comes up and 
she is hopeful that improvement on this will help recruitment of excellent 
candidates and excellent minds to Las Vegas.   
 
Speaker: Dr. Lamberts Swainston – Class Rep for PGY2 Class in Internal 
Medicine 
 
She has heard stories from some of the residents and a shared story of the 
resident struggles. She commented that there needs to be support for the 
residents. Please add this item to the agenda. 
 
Speaker: Dr. Jenna Sutton – 2nd Year Internal Medicine Resident 
 
Reiterated the sentiments of the other public comments. They work really hard 
supporting people during their darkest times. It is difficult when they are stressed 
about money. She provided a personal story of her own financial struggles in 
affording food and paying bills. She added that this is dehumanizing. During the 
interview season, there are obvious detriments in the program that she shares. 
Overall if we want to invest in the community and the residents, they need to be 
paid well in this community.  
 
Speaker: Dr. Wahi-Gururha – Professor of Medicine at the School of Medicine – 
Internal Medicine Physician and in medical education for over 20 years.  
 
She expressed that residents graduate with significant debt, over $250K in debt 
on average. They are asked to see patients on a limited salary. Financial 
wellbeing is important to their success, as it impacts physician burnout as well. 

Page 18 of 296



UMC Governing Board 
February 28, 2024  Page 14 of 14 
 

We would like to keep the graduates in the community, and not feel as if they are 
in a community where they are not supported. She supports the residents’ 
request to have this item on a future agenda.  
 
Chair O’Reilly thanked all for their comments and this issue will be addressed by 
UMC and by the School of Medicine.  
 
FINAL ACTION TAKEN:  
 
None 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board at this time, at the 
hour of 3:41 PM.  Chair O’Reilly adjourned the meeting.     

 
 
APPROVED:  
 
Minutes Prepared by: Stephanie Ceccarelli, Board Secretary 
 

Page 19 of 296



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 

Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling 

Recommendation: 

That the Governing Board approve the February Medical and Dental Staff 
Credentialing Activities for University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
(UMC) as authorized by the Medical Executive Committee (MEC) on March 
26, 2024; and take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
None 

 

BACKGROUND: 
 
 

As per Medical Staff Bylaws, Credentialing actions will be approved by the  
Medical Executive Committee (MEC) and submitted to the Governing Board monthly.  

 
This action grants practitioners and Advanced Practice Professionals the authority  
to render care within UMC.  

 
At the March 21, 2024 meeting, these activities were reviewed by the Credentials Committee and 
recommended for approval to the Medical Executive Committee.  

 
The MEC reviewed and approved these credentialing activities at the  

    
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Cleared for Agenda 
March 27, 2024 
 
      Agenda Item # 

     4 

Page 20 of 296



Page 21 of 296



Page 22 of 296



Page 23 of 296



Page 24 of 296



Page 25 of 296



Page 26 of 296



Page 27 of 296



Page 28 of 296



Page 29 of 296



Page 30 of 296



Page 31 of 296



Page 32 of 296



Page 33 of 296



Page 34 of 296



Page 35 of 296



Page 36 of 296



Page 37 of 296



Page 38 of 296



Page 39 of 296



Page 40 of 296



Page 41 of 296



Page 42 of 296



Page 43 of 296



Page 44 of 296



Page 45 of 296



Page 46 of 296



Page 47 of 296



Page 48 of 296



Page 49 of 296



Page 50 of 296



Page 51 of 296



Page 52 of 296



Page 53 of 296



Page 54 of 296



Page 55 of 296



Page 56 of 296



Page 57 of 296



Page 58 of 296



Page 59 of 296



Page 60 of 296



Page 61 of 296



Page 62 of 296



Page 63 of 296



Page 64 of 296



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

Issue:    Physician & Non-Physician Provider Traditional Compensation Plan 
 

Back-up: 

Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

Clerk Ref. # 

Recommendation: 

 
That the Governing Board approve the revisions the revisions to the Physician & Non-Physician 
Provider Traditional Compensation Plan; and make a recommendation for approval by the UMC 
Governing Board; and take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action)  

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

BACKGROUND: 
 

The substantive changes to this Compensation Plan are: 
 

1. Add the classification of Hospitalist to the Compensation Plan (see page 1 & Appendix 3) 
2. The revised plan will be effective April 1, 2024, and will cover existing and future employees within the identified 

classifications.  
 
 

These Plan was reviewed by the Governing Board Human Resources and Executive Compensation Committee 
at their March 18, 2024 meeting and recommended for approval by the Governing Board. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
March 27, 2024 

 
Agenda Item # 

5 

Page 65 of 296



1 
Original Implementation: July 1, 2023 
Revision: April 1, 2024 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF 
SOUTHERN NEVADA 

 
PHYSICIAN AND NON-PHYSICIAN PROVIDER 

TRADITIONAL COMPENSATION 
AND BENEFITS PLAN 

April 1, 2024 
 
 
 
 

Mason Van Houweling - Chief Executive Officer 
(“CEO”) 

 
 
 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
(“UMC”) 

PHYSICIAN AND NON-PHYSICIAN PROVIDER TRADITIONAL COMPENSATION AND 
BENEFITS PLAN (the “Compensation Plan”) 

 
Compensation Plan and Employees Covered: 
 
This Compensation Plan identifies the compensation and benefits structure for Physician and 
Non- Physician provider employees in the following classifications: 
 

• Medical Director, Anesthesiologist  
 

• Medical Director, Radiologist 

• Anesthesiologist - Obstetric, 
General/OR, Pediatric, CVT, Trauma 

 

• Certified Registered Nurse 
Anesthetists (CRNA) 

• Radiologist – Diagnostic, 
Interventional, Neurointerventional,  

• Radiology APP 

• Medical Director, Hospitalist 
• Hospitalist 

 

• Hospitalist APP 

 
Such employees wil l  be referred to as "employee" or "employees" in this document.  This 
document replaces all previous communications regarding Physician and Mid-Level 
compensation and benefits under an existing compensation model or an employee’s offer of 
employment letter; provided however, the terms and conditions of the employee’s at-will 
employment agreement, if any, shall control in the event of a conflict between the two documents. 

Page 66 of 296



2 
Original Implementation: July 1, 2023 
Revision: April 1, 2024 

 
University Medical Center retains the rights to add, modify, or eliminate any compensation or 
benefit contained within this plan document with the final approval of the UMC Governing Board 
and/or in accordance with the terms and conditions of the employee’s contract for employment.   
 
 
Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) Exemption: 
 
Employees covered by this plan document are not authorized overtime compensation under 
the FLSA due to their professional exemption. 
 
At-Will Employment 
All employees covered by this plan document are considered At-Will and will serve at the pleasure 
of the Chief Executive Officer. 
 
Voluntary Resignation 
All employees covered by this plan document are encouraged to provide a minimum of sixty (60) 
days notice of a voluntary resignation. 
 
Compensation and Benefits: 
 
Compensation 
During the term of employment, Physicians and Non-Physician Providers shall be eligible for a 
compensation package at a rate consistent with the pay ranges listed in the Appendices, as may 
be amended from time to time.  The Appendices further sets forth a compensation package that 
will not exceed the 75th percentile (or 90th percentile when factors such as shortages or otherwise 
hard-to-fill positions justify) based upon national and regional physician and midlevel 
compensation survey benchmarks (e.g., Sullivan Cotter, MGMA). 
 
Unless modified by the provisions of this Compensation Plan and/or at-will employment 
agreement, employees will be granted the same benefits provided through the Human 
Resources Policies and Procedures. 
 
The employee’s base salary shall be re-evaluated bi-annually (i.e., every other year), consistent 
with the methodology set forth above. 
 
The CEO (or designee) may authorize bonuses (e.g., sign-on, relocation, etc.), subject to existing 
UMC Human Resources Policies and Procedures, and provided it is consistent with fair market 
value.  
 
Work Schedules: 
 
All f u l l  &  par t - t ime Physicians and Non-Physician Providers are salaried, exempt 
employees, while per-diem are hourly, non-exempt employees. Work schedules are 
determined based on a designated Full Time Equivalent (FTE) status.  Employees designated 
as less than a 1.0 FTE are eligible for salary and benefits prorated based on FTE status.  
Employees are expected to be available to work their full, designated FTE status.  

Page 67 of 296



3 
Original Implementation: July 1, 2023 
Revision: April 1, 2024 

 
Employee’s work schedules will be set by the Medical Director or designee or as set forth in any 
at-will employment agreement or signed offer letter.  Generally, it is anticipated that full time 
employees will work a minimum of fifteen (15) shifts per month, while part-time will work a 
minimum of seven (7) shifts per month.  
 
Extra Shift/Hours Compensation: 
 
In the event an employee works in excess of their regular and on-call shifts he or she shall be 
entitled to the additional shift compensation set forth in the Appendices.  Additionally, in the event 
an employee is required to stay over a scheduled shift more than two (2) hours, the employee will 
receive additional hourly compensation consistent with their regular hourly rate of compensation 
for hours above and beyond the scheduled shifts. Example: Employee works 12.5 hours in a 10-
hour scheduled shift will entitle such employee to two and one half hours of additional pay at the 
next regularly scheduled pay period.   
 
With the exception of per-diem status employees, any excess time less than the two-hours over 
the scheduled shift does not entitle the employee to any additional hourly compensation. 
 
On-Call Coverage: 
 
Physicians and Non-Physician Providers, who provide on-call coverage, may receive 
additional shift compensation at the rates set forth in the Appendices, for on-call coverage 
over and above a pre-determined amount, as set forth by the Medical Director, or in the 
employee’s offer of employment letter or At-Will contract for employment. An employee who 
is on unrestricted call, who is called to return to the facility to perform work, will receive 
callback pay consistent with the rates set forth in the Appendices.  
 
Annual Evaluations: 
 
Employee performance will be evaluated on an annual basis.  The annual evaluation cycle shall 
be based on fiscal year (July 1 - June 30). All Compensation Plan employees shall have a 
common review date of September 1st unless otherwise established by the CEO. Employees 
under this Compensation Plan are not subject to merit or cost of living increases as their 
compensation is subject to bi-annual (i.e., every other year) fair market value reviews consistent 
with the terms of this Compensation Plan and their employment agreement. 
 
Consolidated Annual Leave (CAL) / Administrative Leave Days (ALDs): 
The Chief Executive Officer (or designee) shall determine if a Physician Provider classification 
covered by this Compensation & Benefits Plan will:  

1. Accrue CAL in accordance with the hospital’s standard human resources policies & 
procedures; or,  

2. Participate in the ALD program as defined below. 
 
Physicians  
Physician Providers in a classification designated to participate in the ALD program will not accrue 
CAL as set forth in the hospital’s Human Resources Policies and Procedures.  Instead, each part-

Page 68 of 296



4 
Original Implementation: July 1, 2023 
Revision: April 1, 2024 

time or full-time Physician Provider under this Compensation Plan designated as such shall 
receive Administrative Leave Days (ALDs). Appropriate use of ALDs include sick days, holidays, 
and leave of absences. ALDs do not roll over year to year, may not be converted to compensation, 
nor are they paid out upon separation of employment. Requests to use ALDs shall be submitted 
to the Medical Director (or designee) over the service line.  
ALDs will be awarded upon hire and thereafter each January 1st of the following calendar year. 
Employees under this Compensation Plan will receive ALDs as follows: 
 

Employment Status # Regularly scheduled 
shifts per month 

# of ALDs 

Part-Time Up to 14 7 
15-19 15 

Full-Time Up to 19 15 
20+ 30 

 
An employee’s time-off may differ in accordance with their at-will employment agreement. 
Physicians accruing CAL upon final approval and implementation of this September 1, 2023 
Compensation Plan will retain any accrued CAL time and will be required to exhaust such time 
prior to the use of any ALDs. CAL accrued prior to implementation of this September 1, 2023 
Compensation Plan may not be converted to compensation, nor is it paid out upon separation of 
employment.  
 
Non-Physician Providers 
Full & part-time Non-Physician Providers (e.g., CRNAs) under this Compensation Plan will 
continue to accrue and use CAL consistent with the hospital’s Human Resources Policies and 
Procedures.  
 
Extended Illness Bank (EIB): 
 
Eligible employees under this Compensation Plan will accrue Extended Illness Bank (EIN) as set 
forth in hospital’s Human Resources Policies and Procedures. The rules governing the use of 
EIB leave time shall be consistent with those set forth by Human Resource Policies and 
Procedures. 
 
Miscellaneous Leaves: 
 
Miscellaneous Leaves, such as jury/court duty, military leave, bereavement leave, family leave, 
etc., are administered in accordance with Human Resources Policies and Procedures. 
 
Group Insurance: 
 
UMC provides medical, dental, and life insurance to all eligible employees covered by this 
plan.  To be eligible for group insurance, an employee must occupy a regular budgeted position 
and work the required hours to meet the necessary qualifying periods associated with the 
insurance program. 
 

Page 69 of 296



5 
Original Implementation: July 1, 2023 
Revision: April 1, 2024 

Employees will have deducted each pay period an approved amount from their compensation 
for employee insurance, or other elected coverages.  Amounts are determined by UMC and 
approved by the UMC Governing Board.  Rules governing the application and administration 
of insurance benefits shall be consistent with those set forth by Human Resource Policies and 
Procedures. 
 
Retirement: 
 
Employees are covered by the Nevada Public Employees Retirement System. UMC pays the 
employee's portion of the retirement contribution under the employer-pay contribution plan in 
the manner provided for by NRS Chapter 286. Any increases in the percentage rate of the 
retirement contribution above the rate set forth in NRS 286.421 on May 19, 1975, shall be 
borne equally by UMC and the employee in the manner provided by NRS 286.421.  Any 
decrease in the percentage rate of the retirement contribution will result in a corresponding 
increase to each employee's base pay equal to one-half (1/2) of the decrease. Any such 
increase in pay will be effective from the date the decrease in the percentage rate of the 
retirement contribution becomes effective.  Retirement contribution does not include any 
payment for the purchase of previous credit service on behalf of any employee. 
 
Continuing Medical Education (CME): 
 
UMC will pay a $2,500 CME stipend (Stipend), less appropriate withholdings each calendar year 
in January, for a qualified employee upon the employee’s execution of UMC’s CME Stipend 
Attestation form. The Stipend is available to a UMC employed licensed independent provider 
including, but not limited to, physician, nurse practitioner, physician assistant, CRNA, and dentist. 
At its sole discretion, UMC may identify other independent providers that qualify for the Stipend. 
Qualified employees may also request up to 40 hours of paid release time each calendar year to 
attend CME related activities. Approval of such time is at the sole discretion of UMC leadership. 
 
All training, travel, and lodging must be pre-approved by the Chief Operating Officer, Medical 
Director, and such other person(s) as may be required by the COO and Medical Director pursuant 
to the hospital's training and travel policy. In the event an employee is on leave or FMLA, the 
employee is not eligible to take CME release time. 
 
 
Conflict of Interest: 
 
Physicians are expected to comply with applicable Medicare and Medicaid and other applicable 
federal, state, and/or local laws and regulations, as-well-as, hospital policies and procedures 
and Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws.  In so doing, it is emphasized that each employee must 
refrain from using his/her position as a UMC employee to secure personal gain and/or endorse 
any particular product or service.  This includes seeking or accepting additional employment or 
ownership in a business outside UMC that represents a conflict of interest as defined in the 
Ethical Standards Policy. 
 
The referral of patients to individuals or practices which compete with or do not support UMC 
is considered a conflict of interest.  However, it is understood that patients have the right to 
choose where to be referred upon full disclosure by the attending physician of all relevant 

Page 70 of 296



6 
Original Implementation: July 1, 2023 
Revision: April 1, 2024 

information.  All referrals must go through the UMC Referral Office where they will be processed 
accordingly. 
 
All other provisions of the conflict of interest policy shall be as defined and described in the 
Human Resources Policy and Procedures Manual titled Ethical Standards and the UMC 
Medical and Dental Staff Bylaws. 
 
Professional Standards: 
 
Quality and safe patient care and the highest professional standards are the major goals of 
UMC and its facilities.  To that end, UMC agrees to make every reasonable effort to provide a 
work environment that is conducive to allowing employees to maintain a professional standard 
of quality, safe patient care, and patient confidentiality.  Employees shall be required to conduct 
themselves in a professional manner at all times. 
 
UMC is a teaching facility.  To that extent, physician employees may be required to supervise 
or co-sign medical records for mid-level providers or residents who are in a recognized 
residency program, such as the UNLV School of Medicine Residency Program. 
 
UMC shall provide interpretive services in designated exam rooms.  Physician employees are 
required to use the interpretive services provided through UMC. 
 
No Physician employee shall unreasonably and without good cause fail to provide care to 
patients.  Any patient complaint received in writing shall be administered pursuant to UMC 
Administrative Policy, as modified from time to time.  The employee shall be required to meet 
with the Patient Advocate and/or the Medical Director so that a response, if any, may be 
prepared.  The affected employee shall receive a copy of any written response.  If any discipline 
is administered, just cause standards and the appropriate sections of the Human Resources 
Policies and Procedures Manual shall apply. 
 
All Physicians will follow the UMC Code of Conduct for Corporate Compliance. This includes 
completing a Medicare Enrollment Application - Reassignment of Medicare Benefits (CMS-
855R) form. 
 
UMC is an equal opportunity employer and will not tolerate discrimination on the basis of race, 
color, religion, sex, national origin, age, disability, sexual orientation, gender identity or 
expression, and/or genetic information in employment.  In accordance with state and federal 
laws, the UMC Governing Board is committed to an Equal Opportunity, Affirmative Action and 
Sexual Harassment Policy to prohibit unlawful discrimination. 
 
Pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 41, UMC will indemnify an employee whose acts 
or omissions are within the course and scope of their employment and will thereafter continue to 
cover (without cost to the employee) the employee under the hospital's self-funded insurance 
policy.  As such, each employee is covered for professional liability and general liability purposes, 
in accordance with Chapter 41 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, by the certificate of insurance 
and statement of indemnification.  

Page 71 of 296



7 
Original Implementation: July 1, 2023 
Revision: April 1, 2024 

Appendix 1* 
 

Anesthesiology - Pay Grades/Ranges & Additional Compensation 
 

Position Base Salary 
Range1 

Additional 
Work 

Shift Rate5 

Additional On-
Call Shift 

Rate2 

Call-Back 
Rate3 

Per-Diem 
Rate4 

SPECIALTY – Anesthesia 

Medical Director $486,720- 
$763,360 N/A N/A N/A N/A 

General / OR $451,360-
$640,640 

EEs regular 
hourly rate  

 

$33.71 p/h.  

EEs hourly 
rate if on-
call and 

called back 
to facility 

$324 p/h 

Pediatric  $476,320-
$640,640 

$33.71 p/h.  $324 p/h 

Trauma  $473,928-
$672,672 

$35.42 p/h.  $340 p/h 

OB $451,262-
$641,076 

$33.71 p/h.  $324 p/h 

CVT $473,928-
$672,672 

$35.42 p/h.  $340 p/h 

CRNA $203,840-
$253,760 

$13.07 p/h.  $127 p/h 
 
*Appendix 1 may be amended from time to time, with Board approval, to reflect new employment physician specialties 
based upon compensation rates that are consistent with FMV.  
 
1 Based on years of experience 
2 On-call unrestricted shifts in excess of the number required per agreement – note: If an employee is placed on a 
restricted call shift (i.e., where employee is required to be onsite) the employee will be paid at their standard base 
hourly rate of pay. 
3 EE must be on an On-call shift and called to return to facility to perform work 
4 Applicable only to those hired into a per-diem classification 
5See extra shift/hours on page 2 of this document 
 
 
  

Page 72 of 296



8 
Original Implementation: July 1, 2023 
Revision: April 1, 2024 

Appendix 2* 
 

Radiology - Pay Grades/Ranges & Additional Compensation 
 

Position/Specialty Base Salary 
Range1 

Additional 
Work 

Shift Rate5 

Additional On-
Call Shift 

Rate2 

Call-Back 
Rate3 

Per-Diem 
Rate4 

SPECIALTY – Radiology 

Medical Director Based on 
specialty6 N/A N/A N/A Based on 

specialty6 
Diagnostic 
Radiologist 

$477,179 -
$706,867 

EEs regular 
hourly rate  

 

$41.67 p/h 
EEs hourly 
rate if on-
call and 
called 

back to 
facility 

$294 p/h 

Interventional 
Radiologist 

$511,856 -
$761,311 

$41.67 p/h $336 p/h 

Neurointerventional 
Radiologist 

$497,909-
$725,609 

$58.33 p/h $338p/h 

APP $122,667 -
$154,050 

$13.00 p/h $67 p/h 
 
*Appendix 2 may be amended from time to time, with Board approval, to reflect new employment physician specialties 
based upon compensation rates that are consistent with FMV.  
 
1 Offers are based on years of experience. 
2 On-call unrestricted shifts in excess of the number required per agreement – note: If an employee is placed on a 
restricted call shift (i.e., where employee is required to be onsite) the employee will be paid at their standard base 
hourly rate of pay. 
3 EE must be on an On-call shift and called to return to facility to perform work 
4 Applicable only to those hired into a per-diem classification 
5See extra shift/hours on page 2 of this document 
6 The Medical Director will be hired under their specialty classification range. They will receive additional 
compensation based on the number of hours they are expected to work as a Medical Director for that month. 
Generally, this will be set at 20 hours per month, and the hourly rate will range from $303-$395 based on specialty.  
  

Page 73 of 296



9 
Original Implementation: July 1, 2023 
Revision: April 1, 2024 

Appendix 3* 
 

Hospitalist - Pay Grades/Ranges & Additional Compensation 
 

Position Base Salary 
Range1 

Additional 
Work 

Shift Rate5 

Additional On-
Call Shift 

Rate2 

Call-Back 
Rate3 

Per-Diem 
Rate4 

SPECIALTY – Hospitalist 

Medical Director $306,000 -
$358,368 N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Hospitalist $285,000 - 
$327,767  EEs regular 

hourly rate  
 

$TBD6 p/h.  EEs hourly 
rate if on-
call and 

called back 
to facility 

$TBD6 p/h 

APP $TBD6 
$TBD6 p/h.  

$TBD6 p/h 

 
*Appendix 3 may be amended from time to time, with Board approval, to reflect new employment physician specialties 
based upon compensation rates that are consistent with FMV.  
 
1 Based on years of experience 
2 On-call unrestricted shifts in excess of the number required per agreement – note: If an employee is placed on a 
restricted call shift (i.e., where employee is required to be onsite) the employee will be paid at their standard base 
hourly rate of pay. 
3 EE must be on an On-call shift and called to return to facility to perform work 
4 Applicable only to those hired into a per-diem classification 
5See extra shift/hours on page 2 of this document 
6 TBD – data is still being finalized by our FMV compensation valuations vendor and will be provided at the next HR 
and Executive Compensation Committee 
 

Page 74 of 296



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
March 27, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

6 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Consulting Provider Agreement with Health Plan of Nevada, Inc. 
 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board ratify the Consulting Provider Agreement with Health Plan of 
Nevada, Inc., for Managed Care Services; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For 
possible action)  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number:  5420.000     Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center:  30008480 000     Funded Pgm/Grant:  N/A 
Description:  Managed Care Services 
Bid/RFP/CBE: NRS 332.115(1)(f) – Insurance 
Term:  3/1/2024 - 12/31/2028 
Amount:  Revenue based on volume 
Out Clause:  180 days w/o cause 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
This request is for ratification of the Consulting Provider Agreement (“Agreement”) with Health Plan of 
Nevada, Inc. (“Health Plan”) to provide its members healthcare access to the hospital and its associated Urgent 
Care facilities for anesthesia and radiology services.  The Agreement term is from the Effective date through 
December 31, 2028, unless terminated without cause with a 180-day written notice to the other party. This 
Agreement was entered into immediately to be effective March 1, 2024. 
 
UMC’s Director of Managed Care has reviewed and recommends ratification of this Agreement.  This 
Agreement has been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 
 
A Clark County business license is not required as UMC is the provider of hospital services to this insurance 
fund. 
 
This Agreement was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their March 20, 2024 
meeting and recommended for ratification by the Governing Board. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 75 of 296



Page 76 of 296



Page 77 of 296



Page 78 of 296



Page 79 of 296



Page 80 of 296



Page 81 of 296



Page 82 of 296



Page 83 of 296



Page 84 of 296



Page 85 of 296



Page 86 of 296



Page 87 of 296



Page 88 of 296



Page 89 of 296



ATTACHMENT A 

[The information in this attachment is confidential and proprietary in nature] 

 

 

 

  

Page 90 of 296



ATTACHMENT B 

[The information in this attachment is confidential and proprietary in nature] 

 

  

Page 91 of 296



ATTACHMENT B.1 

[The information in this attachment is confidential and proprietary in nature] 

 

  

Page 92 of 296



ATTACHMENT C 

[The information in this attachment is confidential and proprietary in nature] 

  

Page 93 of 296



ATTACHMENT D 

[The information in this attachment is confidential and proprietary in nature] 

 

  

Page 94 of 296



ATTACHMENT E 

[The information in this attachment is confidential and proprietary in nature] 

 

  

Page 95 of 296



ATTACHMENT F 

[The information in this attachment is confidential and proprietary in nature] 

 

 

 

 

Page 96 of 296



Page 97 of 296



Page 98 of 296



Page 99 of 296



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
March 27, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

7 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: In-Hospital Services Agreement with Fresenius Kidney Care of Nevada, 

LLC 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the 
In-Hospital Services Agreement with Fresenius Kidney Care of Nevada, LLC for hospital 
dialysis services; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

Fund Number:  5420.000     Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center:  3000719000     Funded Pgm/Grant:  N/A 
Description:  Hospital Dialysis Services 
Bid/RFP/CBE:  NRS 332.115(1)(b) – Professional Services 
Term:  3/1/24 – 3/1/25, with (4) annual auto-renewals unless terminated 90 days before expiration of term 
Amount:  $4,320,000 annually, based upon estimated usage  
Out Clause:  90 days w/o cause at any time 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 

This request is for UMC to enter into an In-Hospital Dialysis Services Agreement (“Agreement”) with 
Fresenius Kidney Care of Nevada, LLC (“Fresenius”) to provide inpatient dialysis services for patients in the 
hospital setting. Additionally, Fresenius offers continuous renal replacement therapy (CRRT), a standard of 
care which improves patient outcomes and the quality of a patient’s overall experience. CRRT has a shorter 
treatment time than SLED (sustained low-efficiency dialysis), which will allow UMC to provide this service 
to more patients. 
 
The services under the Agreement will be performed by non-physician employees or contractors of Fresenius, 
all of whom will be either duly licensed and qualified nurses or qualified technicians trained in extracorporeal 
therapy including dialysis. Additionally, Fresenius will provide the equipment and most of the supplies 
necessary to render dialysis services under the Agreement. The term of the Agreement shall be for one year 
with yearly auto-renewals unless either party provides a 90- day notice of nonrenewal prior to expiration of 
the term.  Either party may terminate the agreement without cause at any time by providing a 90-day written 
notice to the other party. 
 
UMC’s Assistant Chief Nursing Officer has reviewed and recommends approval of this Agreement.  This 
Agreement has been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel.  This Agreement was 
reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their March 20, 2024 meeting and 
recommended for approval by the Governing Board. 

Page 100 of 296



 

Page 1 of 22 

IN-HOSPITAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 This In-Hospital Services Agreement (“Agreement”), effective March 1, 2024 (“Effective 
Date”), is by and between Fresenius Kidney Care Nevada, LLC (“Company”) and University 
Medical Center of Southern Nevada (“Hospital”), on behalf of itself and the hospital facility set 
forth below. 

WHEREAS, Hospital owns and operates the following licensed hospital facilities (each, a 
“Facility” and collectively, “Facilities”), which are the subject of the Agreement:   

Hospital Facility 

Hospital Facility Name 

 

Hospital Facility Address Company’s SAP Number 
(for Company’s internal use) 

University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada 

1800 W Charleston Blvd. 
Las Vegas, NV 89102 

 

; and 

 WHEREAS, the parties have continued to operate under the terms of their previous In-
Hospital Dialysis Services Agreement effective February 1, 2021, which terms and conditions 
remain in full force and effect until the Effective Date of this Agreement. 

THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained herein, 
intending to be legally bound hereby, it is understood and agreed upon by and between the parties 
as follows: 

1. ENGAGEMENT.  Hospital hereby engages Company to perform the in-hospital dialysis 
treatments listed on Exhibit A (“Services”) for patients of Hospital (“Patients”) in accordance 
with the terms and conditions set forth herein.  

2. DUTIES OF COMPANY. 

2.01 Services.  Company shall provide Services to Patients in accordance with the 
written treatment orders of licensed attending physicians, each of whom is duly 
credentialed by Hospital and in good standing on Hospital’s medical staff 
(“Approved Physician”). Company shall be entitled to treat any order for Services 
it receives from Hospital as having been written by an Approved Physician in 
accordance with the terms of the Agreement. The rates set forth on Exhibit A are 
not applicable to intraoperative procedures and are for adult Services only, unless 
specified as applicable to pediatric Services.  

2.02 Schedule.  Company and Hospital shall agree upon the process by which Hospital 
will notify Company of a request for Services. 

a. Hemodialysis Services During Regular Business Hours.  Company will 
provide hemodialysis treatments at Hospital during the service hours set 
forth on Exhibit A (“Regular Business Hours”) at scheduled times 

Page 101 of 296



 

Page 2 of 22 

mutually agreed upon by Company and Hospital with respect to each 
Patient. 

b. Hemodialysis Services Outside of Regular Business Hours.  Outside of 
Regular Business Hours, Company shall use good faith, reasonable efforts 
to arrive at Hospital within 6 hours of notice of a request for Services.  

c. Emergency Hemodialysis Services Outside of Regular Business Hours.  
Outside of Regular Business Hours, Company shall use good faith, 
reasonable efforts to arrive at Hospital within 2 hours of notice that 
emergency hemodialysis, as indicated by at least one of the following 
criteria (each, a “Hemodialysis Emergency”), is required:    

i. Patient is experiencing at least one of the following conditions: 

1) Hyperkalemia: Patient with a K> 6.5, or Patient with a K≥ 6.0 and 
ECG changes;  

2) Fluid overload with presence of pulmonary edema via radiography 
and 02 Sats <90% on 3L 02 or associated with angina;  

3) Metabolic acidosis with pH< 7.3;  

4) Drug overdose requiring hemodialysis; or 

ii. An Approved Physician indicates that, for medical reasons, treatment 
initiation may not be delayed until Regular Business Hours. 

If for medical reasons, a Hemodialysis Emergency requires Company to 
arrive sooner than within 2 hours of notification, Hospital shall inform 
Company of the urgent need for care, and Company shall arrive at Hospital 
as soon as reasonably possible. Hospital shall inform Approved Physicians 
and any additional relevant Hospital medical personnel of the Hemodialysis 
Emergency criteria set forth in this Section 2.02(c). 

d. Non-Hemodialysis Services.  For Services other than hemodialysis, 
Company will provide treatment at scheduled times mutually agreed upon 
by Company and Hospital with respect to each Patient, and in accordance 
with the rates set forth on Exhibit A. If medical reasons necessitate initiation 
of such Services outside of Regular Business Hours, Company shall use 
good faith, reasonable efforts to arrive at Hospital within 6 hours of such 
notification by Hospital. If for medical reasons, initiation of such Services 
requires Company to arrive sooner than within 6 hours of notification, 
Hospital shall inform Company of the urgent need for care, and Company 
shall arrive at Hospital as soon as reasonably possible. 

 

 

Page 102 of 296



 

Page 3 of 22 

2.03 Supplies & Equipment Provided by Company. 

a. Company shall furnish the supplies listed on Exhibit B and shall provide 
equipment necessary to render Services, which may include but are not 
limited to portable dialysis machines, plumbing fittings necessary to utilize 
Hospital’s water supply, and, unless Company will utilize a central reverse 
osmosis system (“Central RO”), portable water treatment and ancillary 
equipment (“Portable ROs”). Company is responsible for maintenance and 
repairs of the equipment it provides, consistent with manufacturers’ 
guidelines and applicable industry standards. In the event Company 
provides a Central RO, the Central RO shall remain the exclusive property 
of Company. Upon expiration or termination of the Agreement, Company 
will remove the Central RO from Hospital, or, if the parties mutually agree, 
Hospital may purchase it (or may permit a third-party to purchase it in 
furtherance of services such third-party will provide to Hospital) from 
Company for a price consistent with fair market value. In the event Hospital 
has a central reverse osmosis system (“Hospital RO System”), Company 
will determine in its sole discretion whether such Hospital RO System is 
appropriate for use in performing Services. To facilitate such determination, 
Hospital shall provide, upon Company’s request, the following: (i) access 
to the Hospital RO System for inspection; (ii) detailed plumbing diagram of 
the purified water distribution system, including materials of construction; 
and (iii) no less than 2 years (or all existing) records of maintenance, 
monitoring, and repairs. In the event Company utilizes Hospital RO System, 
Company will (i) perform all routine maintenance to such Hospital RO 
System in accordance with the Association for the Advancement of Medical 
Instrumentation (“AAMI”) standards, manufacturers’ instructions for use 
(“IFUs”), applicable regulatory requirements, industry standards, and 
Company’s policies and procedures (“Routine Maintenance”), (ii) conduct 
all repairs consistent  with IFUs and Company’s policies and procedures, 
and (iii) invoice Hospital at rates consistent with fair market value for (1) 
parts, repairs, and maintenance not included in Routine Maintenance by 
applicable industry standards, and labor for such repairs and maintenance 
and/or (2) labor for performance of Routine Maintenance necessitated by 
non-standard characteristics of Hospital RO System. If Company 
determines at any time that Hospital RO System is not functioning in a 
manner allowing for Services to be provided safely, Company shall provide 
Portable ROs as soon as reasonably possible. Hospital shall make 
alternative treatment arrangements for Patients until Company provides 
such Portable ROs.  

b. Company may in its sole discretion substitute any of the supplies or 
equipment it provides with no less than equivalent items. Company will 
provide written notice to Hospital before removing or replacing CRRT 
machines.  

Page 103 of 296



 

Page 4 of 22 

2.04 Company Staff.  Services shall be performed by non-physician employees or 
contractors of Company, all of whom are duly licensed and qualified nurses and/or 
qualified technicians trained in extracorporeal therapy, including dialysis, and who 
are, as applicable, licensed in accordance with state licensure requirements 
(“Company Staff”). Hospital shall inform all relevant Hospital personnel of the 
terms of subsections (a) through (d) of this Section 2.04. 

a. Control.  Company has the authority to make all decisions regarding 
Company Staff, including but not limited to, hiring, firing, credentialing, 
and scheduling. Company will manage any complaints about its staff and 
give feedback to the Hospital. 

b. Company Training.  Company Staff shall complete Company’s training in 
infection control, safety, and bloodborne pathogens and shall comply with 
Company’s applicable infection control policies. Company Staff shall 
complete Company’s training on health care regulatory compliance 
(“Compliance”), including patient information privacy as required under 
the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (“HIPAA”) and its 
implementing regulations. These trainings shall fulfill any such Hospital 
training requirements. 

c. Credentialing.  Company shall ensure that each Company Staff member 
satisfies the requirements of Company’s credentialing and human resources 
policies and procedures, which are consistent with the standards of The 
Joint Commission (“TJC”) and other hospital accreditation organizations 
(each an “Accrediting Agency” and, collectively, “Accrediting 
Agencies”) for contracted service providers. Company maintains a 
personnel file for each Company Staff member assigned to Hospital, which 
contains required credentialing and verification materials. Such personnel 
files, over which Company shall maintain exclusive control, include certain 
confidential personal information of Company Staff, including but not 
limited to, Company Staff performance evaluations, full or partial social 
security number, date of birth, home address, and personal phone number 
(“Sensitive Personal Information”). Company will not share with 
Hospital any Sensitive Personal Information and will not share any 
credentialing materials containing Company Staff’s Sensitive Personal 
Information without redaction of Sensitive Personal Information. The 
components and manner in which, Company will share certain personnel 
file materials with Hospital are set forth on Exhibit D (“Standard 
Credentialing Packet”). Company will only provide credentialing 
materials not referenced on Exhibit D if required by federal or state statute 
or regulation, or by an Accrediting Agency. In the event Sensitive Personal 
Information or any credentialing materials outside the Standard 
Credentialing Packet are required in the course of an Accrediting Agency’s 
survey, Company personnel will present such information solely to the 
relevant surveyor acting on behalf of an Accrediting Agency 

Page 104 of 296



 

Page 5 of 22 

(“Surveyor(s)”). Hospital shall inform all relevant Hospital personnel of 
the credentialing terms of this Section 2.04. 

d. Hospital shall accept Company’s Standard Credentialing Packet as 
sufficient for purposes of permitting Company Staff assigned at Hospital to 
provide Services. Hospital shall direct all requests relating to Company 
Staff credentialing materials directly to Company. Hospital shall not request 
directly from Company Staff or direct Company Staff to provide additional 
credentialing materials or Sensitive Personal Information for any reason, 
including but not limited to, granting access to Hospital’s electronic medical 
record system or issuing an identification badge. Upon request, Company 
will provide unique numeric identifiers for Company Staff. Hospital’s 
credentialing of Company Staff shall be consistent with this Section 2.04 
and Section 5 hereunder. Unless the parties mutually agree in writing, 
Hospital shall not require additional credentialing items for Company Staff 
and shall not require Company or Company Staff to register with a third-
party credentialing service.  

2.05 Performance of Duties.  Company shall perform its obligations as set forth herein 
in accordance with all applicable federal and state statutes and regulations, 
including but not limited to, the patient information privacy and security regulations 
set forth in HIPAA and Accrediting Agencies’ standards.  

a. Policies & Procedures.  Company Staff shall perform Services in 
accordance with Company’s credentialing and Services-related clinical 
policies and procedures. On other applicable matters, Company will follow 
Hospital’s policies and procedures, including but not limited to Hospital’s 
“Contracted/Non-Employee Requirements,” provided that, in the event of 
conflict, this Agreement and Company’s policies and procedures shall 
control. Company and Hospital may jointly and mutually develop a written 
protocol governing specific responsibilities and procedures to be used by 
Company Staff in rendering Services to Patients, provided that such 
protocols are consistent with Company’s clinical policies and procedures. 

b. Collaboration. Subject to and in compliance with the terms of this 
Agreement and all applicable laws and regulations, Company and Hospital 
will work collaboratively to minimize duplication of Services and increase 
coordination of Patient care, including, identification of Patients that 
present to the Hospital emergency room due to missing outpatient 
treatments and could dialyze in an outpatient clinic. Provider Staff will work 
collaboratively with Hospital case management personnel to help identify 
these Patients, and the Hospital will work to place the Patient in the 
outpatient facility the Patient has been previously admitted to, or to another 
outpatient facility that could accommodate the Patient. For Patients that are 
not currently admitted to an outpatient clinic, but could dialyze in an 
outpatient clinic, those Patients will need to be identified by the Hospital 
and may be addressed in separate outpatient agreement between Hospital 

Page 105 of 296



 

Page 6 of 22 

and the outpatient provider. Potential opportunities for increased treatment 
efficiencies will be a standing agenda item to be discussed at the quarterly 
quality management meetings (as provided Section 2.08).  

c. Surveys.  Upon request, Company personnel shall present to Surveyors 
applicable policies, procedures, and techniques pertaining to the methods 
by which Company renders Services at Hospital. Such policies and 
procedures will be provided in an electronic format and shall meet 
Accrediting Agencies’ requirements.  

d. Non-Physician Services.  Except as is necessary and related to the provision 
of Services, Company shall not provide nursing services, medical treatment, 
and/or other services to Patients. Company and Company Staff shall not 
undertake or be required to undertake the practice of medicine. 

e. Dress.  Company Staff shall adhere to Hospital dress code and, if requested 
by Hospital, while on duty at Hospital shall wear badges identifying that 
they are Company Staff. 

2.06 Manager.  Company shall provide a charge nurse and a manager to perform 
administrative functions on behalf of Company. The charge nurse and manager 
shall be responsible for creating the written protocol(s) as described in Section 
2.05(a).  

2.07 Hemodialysis Utilizing SRN.  Hemodialysis Services may be performed by 
Company Staff under the direction and supervision of a licensed registered nurse 
designated as the supervising rounding nurse (“SRN”).  SRNs will perform their 
duties in accordance with Company policies and procedures, as may be amended 
from time to time.  

2.08 Quality Management Program.  Company shall maintain an ongoing quality 
management program that includes the following activities: quarterly quality 
meetings, continuous quality improvement, safety, infection control, and risk 
management. Services provided under the Agreement are subject to monitoring by 
Hospital for quality, safety, and infection control in accordance with performance 
expectations set forth under Accrediting Agencies’ standards. Monitoring may 
include Hospital using various methods and quality indicators, including but not 
limited to, the following: (a) direct observation of contact isolation and aseptic 
technique; (b) auditing of certain documentation, such as Patient treatment sheets, 
to confirm Company Staff prepares documentation in accordance with the 
requirements of applicable governmental authorities and/or Accrediting Agencies; 
(c) collection of data by Hospital regarding the efficacy of Services provided; (d) 
review of Hospital-obtained Patient satisfaction surveys referencing quality or 
satisfaction with Company Services; (e) input from Hospital staff and Patients; or 
(f) in the presence of Company personnel, review of Company’s water and dialysate 
samples, equipment maintenance logs, and/or quality assessment and performance 
improvement report.  

Page 106 of 296



 

Page 7 of 22 

2.09 CRRT Education.  Company will provide necessary and applicable CRRT 
education, including educational materials, to Hospital staff. The parties will 
discuss and, as applicable, schedule CRRT education classes at the meetings of the 
Quarterly Business Review Committee (as defined in Section 3.12 below). 
Company will provide up to 4 CRRT education classes per calendar year at no 
additional cost to Hospital.  

2.10 Federal Health Care Program(s).  Company represents and warrants, as applicable, 
that neither Company nor Company Staff are listed by a federal agency as excluded 
from participation in any federal health care program, as defined under 42 U.S.C. 
§1320a-7b (f), for the provision of items or services for which payment may be 
made under such federal health care programs. Further, Company has not 
knowingly managed or contracted with any contractor or agent that is excluded 
from participation in any federal health care program to provide Services 
hereunder. Company represents and warrants to Hospital that no final adverse 
action, as such term is defined under 42 U.S.C. §1320a-7e (g), has occurred or is 
pending or threatened against Company or Company Staff or to their knowledge 
against any contractor or agent engaged by Company to provide Services under this 
Agreement. 

3. DUTIES OF HOSPITAL. 

3.01 Equipment and Supplies Provided by Hospital.  Hospital shall provide the 
equipment and supplies listed on Exhibit C. In the event any such item is 
unavailable, Hospital shall provide equivalent substitute products acceptable to 
Company and consistent with Section 3.13. 

3.02 Space for Use by Company in Hospital.  Hospital shall provide Company with 
treatment and storage space that meets the applicable regulatory guidelines 
regarding the administration of Services and the storage of equipment and supplies. 
Company Staff shall be responsible for the cleanliness of Company’s treatment and 
storage spaces, and correct deficiencies identified in Hospital’s environmental 
rounds. 

a. The parties shall jointly determine the sufficiency and suitability of 
treatment and storage spaces in compliance with the applicable regulatory 
guidelines.  

b. Storage space shall be in a single location, adjacent to or in reasonable 
proximity to the location where Services are provided, and capable of being 
locked. Such storage space shall include a clean sink, a dirty sink, and 
accessible electricity.  

c. Hospital shall provide and maintain a dedicated computer in the treatment 
space for use by Company Staff (“Computer”). Hospital shall provide 
internet access of the most current technology available at Hospital for use 
of Computer and Company-supplied devices.  

Page 107 of 296



 

Page 8 of 22 

d. Company may have supplies for its exclusive use shipped directly to 
Hospital and is responsible for communication with related vendors. 
Hospital shall follow its procedures and practices in accepting such 
deliveries. Hospital shall timely deliver the supplies to the designated 
storage space.  

3.03 Utilities.  Hospital shall provide all utilities needed by Company to administer 
Services, including but not limited to, electricity, heat/air conditioning, and water 
acceptable for the provision of Services. 

3.04 Medications.  Hospital shall provide all medications prescribed by an Approved 
Physician. 

3.05 Support.  Hospital shall provide maintenance, security, communications, 
pharmacy, access to emergency response systems, and other reasonably necessary 
support that it provides throughout Hospital and to Hospital’s employees and 
patients.  

3.06 Access to Facilities.  Hospital shall ensure that, while on duty at Hospital, Company 
Staff has access to services and facilities available to Hospital’s staff.  

3.07 Preparing for Services.  Prior to Company’s provision of Services, Hospital shall 
ensure that an Approved Physician examines each Patient to determine whether 
such Patient is a candidate for Services and prescribes the appropriate treatment by 
written order. Hospital shall inform its Approved Physicians and any additional 
relevant Hospital medical personnel of the criteria set forth in this Section 3.07 and 
its subsections. 

a. A Patient is ready to begin treatment by Company when all the following 
conditions are met:  

i. Company has received an Approved Physician’s order for Services;  

ii. Hospital has obtained proper Patient consent for Services in accordance 
with its policies and has provided it to Company;  

iii. Hospital has provided to Company documentation of applicable 
authorizations, Patient information (including, but not limited to, pre- 
and post-treatment weights), diagnostic test results, laboratory reports, 
and clinical diagnosis;  

iv. Patient has a functioning access for treatment; and  

v. Patient has been transported by Hospital to the appropriate treatment 
area to receive Services from Company Staff.  

b. Hospital shall not contact Company to schedule Services for a Patient until 
Hospital can provide items (i), (ii), and (iii) of this Section 3.07 to Company. 

Page 108 of 296



 

Page 9 of 22 

If Hospital maintains any documentation referenced in subsections (i), (ii), 
or (iii) in electronic form, Hospital shall provide Company Staff direct 
electronic access or shall make Hospital staff available to provide such 
documentation to Company Staff. If questions arise from or relating to any 
documentation required by this Section 3.07, Company may delay 
treatment. 

c. Same-day Hemodialysis Treatments.  Excluding the emergency 
hemodialysis services specified in Section 2.02(c), for a hemodialysis 
treatment to occur on the same day such treatment is ordered or scheduled, 
Patient must be ready to begin treatment, as set forth in this Section 3.07, 
no later than 3 hours before the end of Regular Business Hours. Otherwise, 
the hemodialysis treatment will be scheduled during Regular Business 
Hours on a subsequent day. Hospital shall inform its Approved Physicians 
and any additional relevant Hospital medical personnel of the criteria set 
forth in this Section 3.07. 

3.08 Transport.  Hospital is responsible for transporting Patients to and from the 
treatment space. 

3.09 Treatment Area Efficiencies.  Hospital will use good faith, reasonable efforts to: 
(a) establish and utilize locations permitting more than one Patient to receive 
treatment simultaneously, such as a dedicated dialysis treatment location (“Dialysis 
Suite”), semi-private Patient rooms, or, if necessary, other appropriate locations as 
determined and mutually agreed by the parties; and (b) minimize delays in the 
transport of Patients to and from the Dialysis Suite or other treatment area. 

3.10 Hospital’s Patients.  Hospital retains full medical responsibility for Patients at all 
times, including during the provision of Services, and shall supervise Patients 
accordingly. 

3.11 Billing Payors.  Hospital shall bill Medicare, Medicaid, other third-party payors, 
and self-pay Patients for Services in accordance with all applicable laws, rules, and 
regulations and shall properly disclose the nature and manner of Company’s 
Services on any required reports. 

3.12 Business Review Committee.  The parties shall mutually establish a joint review 
committee (“Quarterly Business Review Committee”) to review and discuss 
business, operational, clinical quality, and performance improvement components 
of the Agreement. Company and Hospital shall each appoint two representatives 
(or more, upon mutual agreement) to the Quarterly Business Review Committee, 
which representatives shall include Hospital leadership with decision making 
authority. The Quarterly Business Review Committee shall convene quarterly at 
mutually agreeable dates and times.  

3.13 Safety of Company Staff.  Hospital is responsible for providing a safe working 
environment for Company Staff, including but not limited to the following: (a) 

Page 109 of 296



 

Page 10 of 22 

taking adequate security measures concerning violent or difficult patients and/or 
visitors; (b) providing an eyewash station consistent with Occupational Safety and 
Health Administration (“OSHA”) requirements; and (c) protecting against 
communicable diseases, including but not limited to, providing (and fit testing, as 
necessary) full personal protective equipment (“PPE”). Such PPE shall include all 
PPE that Company deems clinically appropriate for Company Staff to maintain 
compliance with Company’s then-applicable infection control policies, including 
but not limited to, National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health-approved 
particulate filtering facepiece respirators, such as N95. 

3.14 Marketing.  Neither Hospital nor Company shall cause to be published or 
disseminated any advertising materials, either printed or electronically transmitted 
which identify the other party or its facilities with respect to this Agreement without 
the prior written consent of the other party. 

3.15 Commencing Previously Unused Services.  If any Service listed on Exhibit A is not 
available to Patients as of the Effective Date or if Hospital suspends a Service 
during the term of the Agreement, Hospital shall notify Company in writing at least 
90 days in advance of making such Service available to Patients. 

4. PHYSICIANS.  

4.01 Approved Physician.  Hospital is responsible for providing an Approved Physician 
and ensuring that each Approved Physician orders treatments in accordance with 
Section 3.07. Hospital represents and warrants that: 

a. Each Approved Physician who prescribes and directs Services is: (i) 
licensed and registered to engage in the practice of medicine under the laws 
of the state/commonwealth in which Hospital is located and that neither 
such license nor registration has been temporarily or permanently 
surrendered, suspended, revoked, or restricted; and (ii) credentialed by 
Hospital and a member in good standing on Hospital’s medical staff with 
privileges in accordance with Hospital bylaws, rules, regulations, 
procedures, and policies. 

b. Each Approved Physician shall prescribe and direct Services in a 
competent, professional, and ethical manner in accordance with prevailing 
standards of medical practice and in compliance with all applicable statutes, 
regulations, rules, orders, and directives of applicable governmental and 
regulatory bodies. 

c. At least quarterly, and at any time upon Company’s request, Hospital shall 
provide to Company a written list of all Approved Physicians who may 
prescribe Services at Hospital. Hospital shall immediately inform Company 
in writing of any change to the list of Approved Physicians and shall 
prohibit any physician who is not an Approved Physician from ordering 
Services. 

Page 110 of 296



 

Page 11 of 22 

d. In the event no Approved Physician is physically present in Hospital, 
Hospital shall establish a mechanism whereby an Approved Physician can 
be contacted and can provide orders for emergency Services. 

5. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR RELATIONSHIP. 

5.01 Company Is An Independent Contractor of Hospital.  With respect to all work, 
duties, and obligations under the Agreement, Company is an independent 
contractor of Hospital, and Company Staff are employees or contractors only of 
Company. No individual staff or personnel provided by Company is a contractor, 
employee, agent, borrowed servant, joint venturer, or partner of or with Hospital. 

5.02 Company Authority Over Company Staff.  Hospital has no right to control the 
details, manner, or methods by which Company performs Services. Company has 
sole responsibility for the supervision and control of Company Staff and the 
administration of Services consistent with Approved Physicians’ orders. 

5.03 Taxes.  Each party and its employees shall be solely responsible for the payment of 
taxes, assessments, interest, and penalties of whatever kind assessed by any 
governmental agency or entity, pertaining to monies earned by, collected by, paid 
to, or charged by that party for Services rendered at Hospital and, to the extent 
authorized by Nevada law, shall defend, indemnify, and hold the other party 
harmless. 

6. REPORTS AND RECORDS.   

6.01 Company shall provide all reports and records reasonably agreed upon and required 
by Hospital and Approved Physicians pertaining to Services, including a record of 
treatment for each Service provided. Such reports and records, as applicable, shall 
become part of each Patient’s medical record and the property of Hospital.  

6.02 Company shall receive and may retain a copy of all items referenced in Section 
3.07(a)(i)-(iii) and all other pertinent documentation that supports medical 
necessity for Services. Company Staff shall have immediate access to Hospital’s 
medical records and laboratory reports of Patients for the purpose of treatment and 
care.  

6.03 Hospital shall permit Company Staff to access Company’s charting tool(s) through 
Computer and/or Company devices.   

6.04 Billing records shall be independently maintained by both parties as required by the 
rules and regulations of Medicare and Medicaid, commercial third-party payors, 
and/or other health benefit plans.  

6.05 Company may use de-identified data gathered in the course of providing Services 
for research, publication, internal education, quality improvement, and marketing.  

 

Page 111 of 296



 

Page 12 of 22 

7. FEES AND BILLING. 

7.01 Charges.  As of the Effective Date, Hospital shall pay to Company the rates and 
fees set forth on Exhibit A for Services performed (collectively, “Charges”).  

7.02 Annual Escalation of Charges.  The Charges shall increase by 1.5% on each 
anniversary of the Effective Date.  

7.03 Payment Terms. 

a. Hospital shall pay to Company all Charges owed within 45 days of 
receiving an invoice from Company. Hospital shall not make payment in a 
manner that would cause Company to incur a transactional charge or fee.  

b. If Hospital in good faith disputes any item on an invoice from Company, 
Hospital must inform Company of such dispute within 21 days of receiving 
such invoice. All undisputed items shall be paid in the manner outlined in 
Section 7.03(a). If Hospital informs Company of any disputed item(s), 
Company will in good faith review such disputed item(s) and determine 
whether any correction is required. If a correction is required, Company will 
provide Hospital a revised invoice. If Company determines no correction is 
required, Company shall notify Hospital with explanation, and Hospital 
shall pay all amounts related to the reviewed dispute within 30 days of 
receiving such notification. If Hospital disagrees with Company’s 
determination, it shall notify Company within 21 days of receiving 
Company’s determination, and the parties shall engage in good faith 
discussions to resolve the dispute.  

7.04 Patients and Third-Party Payors.  Company will submit invoices only to Hospital 
and will not submit invoices to any Patient or any other third-party. Company does 
not represent or warrant that Hospital will receive reimbursement for Services. 
Hospital must bill any third-party for Services using its own billing practices and 
procedures. Payment of amounts due by Hospital hereunder is not contingent upon 
Hospital’s collections from Patients or third-party payors. Hospital is responsible 
for acquiring any required pre-authorizations for Services from applicable third-
party payors. 

7.05 Failure to Pay.  If Hospital fails to pay all amounts when due, Company may 
terminate the Agreement as provided in Section 8.05, and Hospital waives any 
rights to seek injunctive relief, amend, modify, continue, or otherwise extend 
Company’s provision of Services.  

7.06 Fair Market Value; Fraud & Abuse.  The parties represent that amounts paid to 
Company hereunder are fair market value as determined by the parties through 
good-faith, arms-length bargaining, and are consistent with the value of similar 
services. No amount charged or paid has been determined in a manner that takes 
into account the volume or value of any referrals or business otherwise generated 
between the parties for which payment may be made in whole or in part under any 

Page 112 of 296



 

Page 13 of 22 

public healthcare program. The amounts charged under the Agreement do not 
include any discount (unless explicitly set forth in the Agreement), rebate, 
kickback, or other reduction in charge. The parties expressly agree that nothing 
contained in the Agreement shall require Hospital or physicians to refer or admit 
any patients to any Company-affiliated facility or business or to order any Services 
from Company or its affiliates. Neither party will conduct itself in a manner as to 
violate any federal or state physician self-referral or anti-kickback laws.  

7.07 Discounts; Disclosures.  Prices invoiced for the goods, services, supplies, and 
equipment provided under the Agreement reflect the net value of any negotiated 
discounts. Any discounts, rebates, or deductions from Company’s list price of other 
concessions received by Hospital from Company are “Discounts or Other 
Reductions in Price” under 42 U.S.C. Section 1320a-7b(b)(3)(A). The parties shall 
comply with all laws and regulations regarding reporting any discount, rebate, or 
other concessions in the fiscal year in which they were earned or the year after and 
shall report any discount, rebates, or other concessions. To the extent available, 
Company will provide additional information requested by the applicable federal 
or state health care program to assist Hospital in meeting its reporting requirement. 

8. TERM & TERMINATION. 

8.01 Term.  The term of the Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and shall 
continue for one (1) year (“Initial Term”), unless sooner terminated as provided 
herein. The Agreement shall automatically renew for consecutive 1-year periods 
(each, a “Renewal Term”), not to exceed four (4) consecutive renewals, unless 
either party provides written notice of non-renewal to the other no less than 90 days 
prior to the expiration of the then-current Initial Term or Renewal Term. 

8.02 Mutual Termination.  The Agreement may be terminated upon mutual written 
agreement of Hospital and Company.  

8.03 For Cause Termination.  Either party may terminate the Agreement at its option for 
any of the reasons set forth below: 

a. A material breach of the Agreement that is not cured within 30 days of 
written notice from the non-breaching party describing such breach; 

b. Bankruptcy, receivership, or dissolution of either party or either party 
making an assignment for the benefit of creditors; 

c. Failure to obtain consent of the other party in the event of an assignment; 
or 

d. A party becomes debarred, excluded, or otherwise ineligible for 
participation in a federal or state health program. 

8.04 Without Cause Termination.  Either party may terminate the Agreement without 
cause or penalty at any time by providing 90 days prior written notice to the other. 

Page 113 of 296



 

Page 14 of 22 

If so terminated, the parties shall not enter into any agreement or arrangement with 
each other for the provision of Services on substantially similar terms as those under 
the Agreement within 1 year of the most recent revision to any pricing terms under 
the Agreement. 

8.05 Termination by Company.  Company may terminate the Agreement for any of the 
reasons set forth below upon written notice to Hospital, which such notice will 
specify the effective date of such termination: 

a. For non-payment of monies owed, including failure to pay undisputed 
Charges as set forth in Section 7; or 

b. Failure of Hospital to comply with Section 3.13. 

8.06 Termination by Hospital.  In accordance with the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS 
354.626), Hospital’s financial obligations under this Agreement shall not exceed 
those monies appropriated and approved by Hospital’s governing body for the then-
current fiscal year under the Local Government Budget Act. In the event Hospital’s 
governing body does not appropriate monies for the Services for the subsequent 
fiscal year, Hospital shall notify Company in writing within 5 days of receiving 
notice of the governing body’s decision and no less than 30 days before the last day 
of Hospital’s then-current fiscal year (“Fiscal Year End Date”). The parties 
acknowledge and agree that upon timely receipt of notice from Hospital, the 
Agreement shall terminate at midnight on the Fiscal Year End Date. If notice is 
received less than 30 days before the Fiscal Year End Date: (i) Hospital shall stop 
ordering Services, and cause Approved Physicians to stop ordering Services at 
midnight on the Fiscal Year End Date; and (ii) Company shall communicate a 
reasonable transition plan to remove Company equipment and Company Staff 
which shall include the effective date of the termination under this Section 8.06.  
Hospital agrees that this section shall not be utilized as a subterfuge or in a 
discriminatory fashion as it relates to this Agreement.  

8.07 Following termination of the Agreement, Company shall have no obligation to 
provide Services to Patients of Hospital. Termination of the Agreement shall not 
release Hospital from paying Company any amounts due and owing to Company 
for Services rendered prior to termination. 

9. COVENANTS RELATED TO BUSINESS INTERESTS. 

9.01 Exclusive Source of Services.  In consideration of the resources Company must 
dedicate to perform under the Agreement, Hospital shall not contract with or allow 
any other entity, facility, or individual to perform Services and shall not perform 
Services itself without the prior written consent of Company.  

9.02 Confidentiality.  Each party will become privy to information of the other that is 
confidential and constitutes valuable, special, and unique property and trade secrets 
of the other, including but not limited to, patient statistical profiles, dialysis and/or 
apheresis pricing strategies, staffing patterns, treatment methods, and inventory 

Page 114 of 296



 

Page 15 of 22 

control systems, including the reordering of supplies and analysis of their use. 
Throughout the term of the Agreement and/or at any time thereafter, each party 
shall not use or disclose to any entity, person, firm, or corporation, any information 
known by that party to be confidential or trade secrets of the other party or its 
affiliates. Except as authorized by the other party, as required by law, or as 
necessary to implement or enforce a provision hereof, during the term of the 
Agreement and thereafter, neither party will disclose to any person or entity any of 
the terms of the Agreement. All proprietary information provided by Company and 
all subsequent enhancements or refinements of such information are the sole 
property of Company.  

9.03 Nevada Public Records Act.  Company acknowledges that Hospital is a public, 
county-owned hospital which is subject to the provisions of the Nevada Public 
Records Act, Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 239, as may be amended from time 
to time. As such, and notwithstanding Section 9.02, Hospital’s contracts are public 
documents available for copying and inspection by the public.  

a. Hospital shall notify Company in writing within 5 days of receiving a 
request for the disclosure of any information related to this Agreement that 
Company claims or has claimed to be confidential or proprietary, including 
but not limited to Company’s pricing, programs, services, business practices 
or procedures. Upon receipt of such notice, Company shall immediately 
notify Hospital of its intention to seek injunctive relief in a Nevada court 
for protective order and Hospital agrees to withhold any requested 
confidential or proprietary information until the request for injunctive relief 
is resolved. In the absence of notification by Company that it intends to seek 
a protective order, the requested information will be released without any 
further liability upon Hospital. 

b. Company shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Hospital from any 
claims or actions, including all associated costs and attorney’s fees, 
demanding the disclosure of Company information or document(s) in 
Hospital’s custody and control that Company claims to be confidential or 
proprietary. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Hospital fails to notify 
Company in writing within 5 days of receiving a request, Company’s duties 
under this Section 9.03(b) shall be void and of no force and effect. Company 
shall control the investigation, trial, and defense of such claims or actions, 
including all settlement negotiations, any appeal involved, and the choice 
of any attorneys to be engaged. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a settlement 
involving any obligation on the part of Hospital shall not be binding without 
the prior written approval of Hospital, which will not be unreasonably 
withheld. Hospital may participate in the investigation, trial, defense, and 
appeal of such claims or actions at its own cost. 

9.04 Non-Solicitation of Employees.  Each party’s personnel and agents will have 
knowledge of the other’s business affairs, marketing strategies, patients, and 
methods of operation, which are confidential information and/or trade secrets. 

Page 115 of 296



 

Page 16 of 22 

Accordingly, throughout the term of the Agreement and for a period of 1 year 
thereafter, the parties, including employees, staff, attending physicians, or other 
agents, will not directly or indirectly induce or solicit any of the other party’s 
employees, staff, or agents to terminate, reduce, or otherwise modify their 
relationship with such party, other than by general public advertisement for a 
position. 

9.05 Equitable Relief.  The restrictions in this Section 9 are reasonable and necessary for 
the protection of the legitimate interests of the parties. Any breach hereof would 
cause irreparable damage to the non-breaching party and could not be adequately 
compensated by monetary damages alone. Therefore, each party shall have and may 
pursue all remedies at law and in equity, and without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, may sue for injunctive relief. In any such proceeding, the parties waive 
and covenant not to raise or assert any defense to entry of injunctive relief based on 
the claim that money damages would constitute an adequate remedy. In the event a 
court of competent jurisdiction determines that the foregoing restrictions are 
unreasonable, then the restrictions shall be reduced by the court to the extent 
necessary to be enforced by the court. 

10. GENERAL PROVISIONS. 

10.01 Severability.  If a court of competent jurisdiction finds any term or provision of the 
Agreement invalid, illegal, or otherwise unenforceable, such term or provision shall 
not affect the other terms or provisions of the Agreement. Such term or provision 
shall be deemed modified to the extent necessary, in the court’s opinion, to render 
such term or provision enforceable while preserving to the fullest extent permissible 
the intent and agreements of the parties. Upon such modification, the rights and 
obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced in accordance with such 
modification. However, if the modification materially deprives a party of the 
benefits of the Agreement, then such party may terminate the Agreement 
immediately by written notice to the other party.  

10.02 Assignment.  The Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the 
successors, permitted assigns, heirs, and representatives of Company and Hospital. 
Neither Hospital nor Company shall assign the Agreement in whole or in part 
without the written consent of the other, which consent shall not be unreasonably 
withheld, conditioned, or delayed. Without Hospital’s consent, Company’s 
performance under the Agreement may be carried out by an affiliated entity which, 
directly or indirectly, is under common ownership as Company. The Agreement 
shall be enforceable by or against any permitted assigns hereunder. Any attempted 
assignment of the Agreement in violation of this Section 10.02 is void and may be 
grounds for termination under Section 8.03. 

10.03 Insurance.  Each party shall maintain, at its own expense, in full force and effect 
throughout the term of the Agreement, the following: (a) a policy of comprehensive 
general liability insurance and professional liability insurance covering it and its 
staff, each having a combined single limit of not less than $1,000,000 per 

Page 116 of 296



 

Page 17 of 22 

occurrence; (b) $3,000,000 annual aggregate for bodily injury and property damage 
to insure against any loss, damage or claim arising out of the performance of that 
party’s obligations under the Agreement; (c) workers’ compensation insurance on 
its employees to the extent required by law; and (d) cyber insurance with limits of 
not less than $5 million. Upon request, each party shall provide the other party 
certificates evidencing such insurances. Each party shall maintain any insurance 
required under the Agreement for a period of not less than 3 years following the 
termination of the Agreement if underwritten on a claims-made basis. Each party 
may provide insurance coverage set forth in this Section 10.03 through self-
insurance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Hospital represents and warrants that 
Hospital is self-insured in accordance Chapter 41 of the Nevada Revised Statutes 
and upon request, Hospital will provide Company with its annual Certificate of 
Coverage certifying such self-coverage. 

10.04 Limitation of Liability.  No party hereto shall be liable to the other party for any 
lost profits (whether direct or indirect) or for consequential, indirect, incidental, or 
special damages caused by breach of the Agreement. 

10.05 Limited Waiver of Sovereign Immunity.  To the extent Hospital is legally 
recognized as a political subdivision of the State of Nevada, pursuant to the 
provisions of Chapter 450 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, Hospital may be eligible 
for the limited waiver of sovereign immunity contained in Chapter 41 of the Nevada 
Revised Statutes and any claims against Hospital may be subject to the terms 
therein. 

10.06 Indemnification.  Each party (“Indemnifying Party”) agrees to indemnify and hold 
harmless the other party, its officers, directors, shareholders, agents, and employees 
(collectively, “Indemnified Party”) against all liability, claims, damages, suits, 
demands, expenses and costs of every kind (including but not limited to, court costs 
and reasonable attorneys’ fees), arising out of or in consequence of the 
Indemnifying Party’s breach of the Agreement, and of the negligent errors and 
omissions or willful misconduct of the Indemnifying Party, its agents, servants, 
employees, and independent contractors (excluding the other party) in the 
performance of or conduct related to the Agreement, and as applicable to Hospital, 
to the extent such indemnification is expressly authorized by Nevada law. The 
provisions of this Section 10.06 shall survive the expiration or termination of the 
Agreement.  

a. If seeking indemnification, the Indemnified Party shall promptly notify the 
Indemnifying Party in writing of any claim, lawsuit, or demand for payment 
asserted against the Indemnified Party for which indemnification is sought 
and shall promptly deliver to the Indemnifying Party a true copy of any 
document or material of any kind by which such claim is asserted. The 
Indemnified Party, its agents, representatives, and employees shall 
cooperate fully with the Indemnifying Party at all times during the pendency 
of the claim or lawsuit. If the Indemnified Party fails to notify the 
Indemnifying Party promptly in writing or fails to cooperate in a timely 

Page 117 of 296



 

Page 18 of 22 

manner with the Indemnifying Party, the Indemnifying Party’s duties under 
this Section 10.06(a) shall be void and of no force and effect. 

b. When the Indemnifying Party accepts its indemnification obligation without 
a reservation of any rights, the Indemnifying Party may control the 
investigation, trial, and defense of such lawsuit or action, including all 
settlement negotiations, any appeal involved, and the choice of any 
attorneys to be engaged. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a settlement 
involving any obligation on the part of the Indemnified Party shall not be 
binding without the prior written approval of the Indemnified Party, which 
will not be unreasonably withheld. The Indemnified Party may participate 
in the investigation, trial, defense, and appeal of such lawsuit or action at its 
own cost. 

10.07 Merger, Waiver, and Modification.  The Agreement contains the entire agreement 
of the parties with respect to its subject matter and as of the date the Agreement is 
fully executed, supersedes all previous and contemporaneous agreements and 
understandings, expressed, implied, oral, or written, between the parties with 
respect to the subject matter hereof. The failure of either party to insist on strict 
performance of the provisions of the Agreement or to take advantage of any of its 
rights shall not be construed as a waiver of such provision or of any other default 
of the same or similar nature. No waiver, modification, or change of any of its 
provisions shall be valid unless in writing and signed by the parties. One party’s 
waiver of any default by the other party of any provision of the Agreement is not a 
waiver of any other default and shall not affect the right of that party to require 
performance of the defaulted provision at any future time. All representations in 
this Section 10.07 survive the execution and delivery of the Agreement. 

10.08 Cooperation.  Each party has independent obligations under the Agreement; 
nonetheless, the parties shall cooperate with one another in the fulfilment of their 
respective, separate obligations.  

10.09 Attachments; Priority of Documents.  All attachments to the Agreement, including 
but not limited to, exhibits and addenda, are incorporated herein by reference and 
made a part of the Agreement. If any provision of any attachment conflicts with or 
is contrary to the Agreement, the provisions of any attachment shall have priority 
over the provisions of the Agreement. 

10.10 Limited Renegotiation.  If any provision(s) of the Agreement become unlawful or 
unenforceable or subject a party to a substantial risk of prosecution, civil monetary 
penalty, or noncompliance with the requirements of state or federal law or an 
Accrediting Agency, then (a) the unaffected provisions of the Agreement shall 
continue in full force and effect, and (b) either party, upon written notice 
(“Renegotiation Notice”) to the other party, may initiate renegotiation of the 
affected provision(s) of the Agreement to restore, if possible, the intent and purpose 
of the affected provision(s) in the Agreement and to modify the Agreement as 
necessary. If the parties cannot agree upon a mutually satisfactory amendment 

Page 118 of 296



 

Page 19 of 22 

within 60 days of either party’s Renegotiation Notice, either party may immediately 
terminate the Agreement upon written notice. 

10.11 Governing Law.  The Agreement shall be governed by, construed, and enforced in 
accordance with the laws of the state/commonwealth in which Hospital is located 
without respect to its conflicts of laws rules. 

10.12 Notices.  All notices under the Agreement shall be in writing to the addresses listed 
below and (a) sent with tracking by nationally recognized courier service or United 
States Postal Service mail, or (b) hand-delivered with documentation of receipt. All 
notices given in the manner prescribed in this Section 10.12 shall be deemed 
properly served upon receipt. 

Notice to Company:     Notice to Hospital: 

Fresenius Kidney Care Nevada, LLC 
 University Medical Center 

of Southern Nevada 
920 Winter Street  1800 W Charleston Blvd. 
Waltham, MA 02451-1457  Las Vegas, NV 89102 
Attn: Legal Department (Inpatient Services)  Attn: Legal Department 

 
10.13 Joint Effort; Headings.  The preparation of the Agreement has been the joint effort 

of the parties, and the resulting document shall not be construed more severely 
against one of the parties than the other. The headings of sections in the Agreement 
are for convenience only and shall not affect or limit the interpretation of its 
provisions. 

10.14 Counterparts; Electronic Execution.  The Agreement may be executed in 
counterparts with the same effect as if each party had signed the same document. 
Such executions may be transmitted by facsimile, email, or other electronic 
transmission and are to be deemed for all purposes to have been executed and 
delivered by that party to the other party. 

10.15 Compliance.  The Agreement shall be construed in a manner consistent with all 
applicable federal and state laws, including without limitation, Medicare, Medicaid, 
HIPAA, and other federal and state statutes and regulations and the principles and 
interpretations related thereto. The parties intend to comply with the applicable 
provisions of 42 U.S.C. 1320a-7b(b), as such provisions may be amended from 
time to time and intend that the Agreement meets the requirements of the personal 
services and management contract safe harbor to the federal anti-kickback statute 
as set forth in 42 C.F.R. Part 1001.952(d). The parties shall comply with all 
applicable ordinances, statutes, regulations, directives, orders, and other lawful 
enactments or pronouncements of any federal, state, municipal, local, or other 
lawful authority. Except as otherwise stated herein, the parties shall perform their 
respective duties and obligations under the Agreement in accordance with 
applicable Hospital policies, bylaws, rules and regulations, provided that: (a) they 
are communicated by Hospital to Company in writing, (b) they are not in conflict 

Page 119 of 296



 

Page 20 of 22 

with Company’s policies, bylaws, rules, and regulations, (c) they are not in conflict 
with the requirements, recommendations, and standards of Accrediting Agencies, 
and (d) there is no conflict with Company’s status as an independent contractor, as 
set forth in Section 5.  

10.16 Affirmative Action.  The provisions of 41 C.F.R. §60-1.4, §60-300.5 and §60-
741.5(a), pertaining to affirmative action obligations, are incorporated herein by 
reference. 

10.17 Books and Records.  If required by Section 952 of the Omnibus Reconciliation Act 
of 1980 (Section 1861(v)(l)(I) of the Social Security Act), as amended, and the 
regulations promulgated thereunder, the books and records of Company necessary 
to certify the nature and extent of costs associated with Company’s performance of 
services under the Agreement shall be preserved by Company for such period of 
time as provided by law so as to be available for and subject to inspection by 
appropriate agencies of the United States. In addition, if Company uses the services 
of a related organization to provide Services, Company will require such related 
organization to preserve and make available its books and records to the same 
extent Company is so required. If the Agreement is not subject to the provisions of 
Section 952 or regulations promulgated thereunder, this Section 10.17 shall be null 
and void. The provisions of this Section 10.17 shall survive the expiration or 
termination of the Agreement. 

10.18 Force Majeure.  Company shall not be liable for any costs or damages, or be deemed 
in default for any delay, failure, or interruption in performance of its duties or 
obligations under the Agreement, resulting directly or indirectly from the 
following: any acts of God, civil or military authority, acts of a public enemy, 
terrorism, war, civil disobedience, riots, accidents, fires, explosions, earthquakes, 
floods, failure of transportation, machinery or supplies, vandalism, strikes or other 
work interruptions by its employees or independent contractors, shortages of labor 
or materials, pandemics, epidemics, quarantines, other health crises (including but 
not limited to, travel advisories issued by the U.S. Department of State, World 
Health Organization, Centers for Disease Control, or other governmental or 
international agencies), or any similar cause beyond its reasonable control. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Company shall use commercially reasonable 
efforts to perform its duties and obligations under the Agreement. 

10.19 Shared Values.  As stated in the Fresenius Medical Care Code of Ethics and 
Business Conduct, Company upholds the values of quality, honesty and integrity, 
innovation and improvement, respect and dignity, as well as lawful conduct, 
especially with regard to anti-bribery and anti-corruption. Company upholds these 
values in its own operations, as well as in its relationships with business partners. 
Company’s continued success and reputation depend on a common commitment to 
act accordingly. Together with Company, Hospital is committed to upholding these 
fundamental values by adherence to applicable laws and regulations. 

Page 120 of 296



 

Page 21 of 22 

10.20 Survival.  Those provisions of the Agreement that by their nature are intended to 
survive termination or expiration of the Agreement shall so survive. 

[Signature Page Follows]  

Page 121 of 296



 

Page 22 of 22 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed the Agreement as of the dates 
written below. 
 
 
Hospital Company 
 
University Medical Center    Fresenius Kidney Care Nevada, LLC 
of Southern Nevada 
 
             

Name:       Name:      

Title:       Title: Authorized Signatory_______ 

Date:       Date:      

 
 
 
 

 
 

Page 122 of 296



Confidential and Proprietary 

EXHIBIT A 
Page 1 of 3 

 
EXHIBIT A 

Charges 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada  
 

The Charges shall increase by 1.5% on each anniversary of the Effective Date.  

 

 
 

Regular Business Hours Rates 

Hemodialysis
(Company monitors Patient) 

 

 

 

 

Advanced Renal Replacement 
(Hospital monitors Patient) 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Peritoneal Dialysis 

 
 

 

Rates for Pediatrics

 
 

 

 
 

Page 123 of 296



Confidential and Proprietary 

EXHIBIT A 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  
 

  
 

 

Non-Regular Business Hours Rate 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

Fees 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 

  
 
 

 

Page 124 of 296



Confidential and Proprietary 

EXHIBIT A 
Page 3 of 3 

  
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 125 of 296



 

EXHIBIT B 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Supplies Provided by Company, Adult and Pediatric Populations 
 
Hemodialysis Supplies (supplied if providing hemodialysis Services): 

artificial kidneys 
arterial and venous blood lines 
transducers 
dialyzing fluid (acid and bicarbonate) 
fistula needles 

 
CRRT Supplies (supplied if providing CRRT Services): 
  CRRT cartridges 
  CRRT filters 
  CRRT tubing 
  fistula needles 

 
Peritoneal Dialysis Supplies (supplied if providing peritoneal dialysis Services): 

universal connectors  
extension clamps 
adapter seal clamps 
convertible adapters 
drain sets 
del clamps 
 

 
 

Page 126 of 296



 

EXHIBIT C 

EXHIBIT C 
 

Equipment and Supplies Provided By Hospital 
 

Electrodes and monitoring equipment 
Non-invasive blood pressure monitoring machines 
Disposable blood pressure cuffs and adapters for use on hemodialysis machine  
I.V. infusion pumps and tubing  
I.V. administration sets 
Normal saline 
Kelly clamps 
Luer locks 
Luer replacement caps 
Tegos 
Curos 
ClearGuard HD caps 
Catheter kits or catheter prep/cleaning products per Hospital policy 
Catheter preparation cleaner and dressings 
Suture removal kits 
Staple removal kits 
100 cc disposable cups 
Syringes 
Hypodermic needles  
Access preparation swabs (e.g., iodine swab sticks, alcohol swabs) 
Tape 
2x2 or 4x4 gauze pads (sterile & non-sterile)  
Blood administration sets and appropriate blood filters 
Pressure wrap bandages 
Bed pans and urinals 
Drinking cups and straws  
Gowns 
CRRT replacement fluids/solutions (only if CRRT is included as a Service) 
PD solutions (only if peritoneal dialysis is included as a Service)  
Personal protective equipment (PPE), including but not limited to the following: 

Gloves, including but not limited to: vinyl, latex, non-powder of all sizes (i.e., XS, 
S, M, L, XL) 
Surgical masks 
Shields 
PPE required by Section 3.13  

Supplies not provided by Company necessary to perform Services 

Page 127 of 296



 

EXHIBIT D 

EXHIBIT D 
 

Company’s Standard Credentialing Packet 
 
The following items are provided to Hospital: 

 Annual skills and competency (initial for new hire)  
 Water technical training 
 Annual Company education (OSHA, bloodborne pathogen, HIPAA, Compliance) 
 Annual PPD (if previously positive PPD, annual TBRAQ or Chest X-ray if TB 

symptoms) 
 Hepatitis titers, include vaccination declination or acceptance 
 Flu vaccination  
 MMVR titers 
 Current BLS 

 
The following items are not provided to Hospital, but upon Hospital’s request, a letter will be 
provided, attesting to verification of the following items:  

 RN or LVN license/ Primary source verification (staff specific) 
 Proof of CCHT or BONENT certification (staff specific) 
 Background check, including but not limited to, the following:  

o HEAL complete search, OIG/SAM/state Medicaid 
o Social security number verification 
o Felony and misdemeanor  
o Education 
o National Sex Offender Registry 
o First Advantage National Criminal File Plus 

 Drug screen 
 Published job description    

 
 

 

Page 128 of 296



REVISED 7/25/2014 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE  

DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS FORM 

Purpose of the Form 

 

The purpose of the Disclosure of Ownership/Principals Form is to gather ownership information pertaining to the business entity for use by the University Medical 

Center of Southern Nevada Governing Board (“GB”) in determining whether members of the GB should exclude themselves from voting on agenda items where 

they have, or may be perceived as having a conflict of interest, and to determine compliance with Nevada Revised Statute 281A.430, contracts in which a public 
officer or employee has interest is prohibited. 
 

General Instructions 
 

Completion and submission of this Form is a condition of approval or renewal of a contract or lease and/or release of monetary funding between the disclosing 
entity and University Medical Center of Southern Nevada.  Failure to submit the requested information may result in a refusal by the GB to enter into an 

agreement/contract and/or release monetary funding to such disclosing entity. 
 

Detailed Instructions 
 

All sections of the Disclosure of Ownership form must be completed.  If not applicable, write in N/A. 
 

Business Entity Type – Indicate if the entity is an Individual, Partnership, Limited Liability Company, Corporation, Trust, Non-profit Organization, or Other.  

When selecting ‘Other’, provide a description of the legal entity. 
 

Non-Profit Organization (NPO) - Any non-profit corporation, group, association, or corporation duly filed and registered as required by state law. 
 

Business Designation Group – Indicate if the entity is a Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE), Small 

Business Enterprise (SBE), Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE), Veteran Owned Business (VET), Disabled Veteran Owned Business (DVET), or 

Emerging Small Business (ESB) . This is needed in order to provide utilization statistics to the Legislative Council Bureau, and will be used only for such 
purpose.   
 

• Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 

is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more minority persons of Black American, Hispanic American, Asian-Pacific American or Native 

American ethnicity. 

• Women Owned Business Enterprise (WBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 

is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more women. 

• Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful 

function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more disabled individuals pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act. 

• Small Business Enterprise (SBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function, is not owned 

and controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or physically-challenged, and where gross annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000. 

• Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (VET): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a commercially useful 

function and is at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more U.S. Veterans. 

• Disabled Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (DVET):  A Nevada business at least 51 percent owned/controlled by a disabled veteran. 

• Emerging Small Business (ESB): Certified by the Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development effective January, 2014. Approved into 

Nevada law during the 77th Legislative session as a result of AB294. 
 

Business Name (include d.b.a., if applicable) – Enter the legal name of the business entity and enter the “Doing Business As” (d.b.a.) name, if applicable.   
 

Corporate/Business Address, Business Telephone, Business Fax, and Email – Enter the street address, telephone and fax numbers, and email of the named 

business entity.   
 

Nevada Local Business Address, Local Business Telephone, Local Business Fax, and Email – If business entity is out-of-state, but operates the business from a 
location in Nevada, enter the Nevada street address, telephone and fax numbers, point of contact and email of the local office. Please note that the local address 

must be an address from which the business is operating from that location. Please do not include a P.O. Box number, unless required by the U.S. Postal Service, 

or a business license hanging address. 
 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents employed by this firm. (Do not leave blank. If none or zero, put the number 0 in the space provided.) 
 

List of Owners/Officers – Include the full name, title and percentage of ownership of each person who has ownership or financial interest in the business entity.  If 

the business is a publicly-traded corporation or non-profit organization, list all Corporate Officers and Directors only.   
 

For All Contracts – (Not required for publicly-traded corporations) 
1) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity are a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s).  If yes, the following paragraph applies. 

 
In accordance with NRS 281A.430.1, a public officer or employee shall not bid on or enter into a contract between a government agency and any 

private business in which he has a significant financial interest, except as provided for in subsections 2, 3, and 4. 
 

2) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity have a second degree of consanguinity or affinity 

relation to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) (reference form on Page 2 for 

definition).  If YES, complete the Disclosure of Relationship Form.  
 

A professional service is defined as a business entity that offers business/financial consulting, legal, physician, architect, engineer or other professional services. 
 

Signature and Print Name – Requires signature of an authorized representative and the date signed. 
 

Disclosure of Relationship Form – If any individual members, partners, owners or principals of the business entity is presently a University Medical Center of 

Southern Nevada employee, public officer or official, or has a second degree of consanguinity or affinity relationship to a University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada employee, public officer or official, this section must be completed in its entirety.   

 

Page 129 of 296



DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS 

1 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

Business Entity Type (Please select one) 

 Sole 
Proprietorship 

Partnership 
X Limited Liability 
Company  

 Corporation  Trust 
 Non-Profit   

Organization 
  Other 

Business Designation Group (Please select all that apply) 

 MBE  WBE  SBE  PBE  VET DVET  ESB 

Minority Business 
Enterprise 

Women-Owned 
Business 
Enterprise 

Small Business 
Enterprise 

Physically Challenged 
Business Enterprise 

Veteran Owned 
Business 

Disabled Veteran 
Owned Business 

Emerging Small 
Business 

 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents Employed: 70 

  

Corporate/Business Entity Name:  Fresenius Kidney Care Nevada, LLC 

(Include d.b.a., if applicable)  

Street Address: 920 Winter Street Website: https://fmcna.com/ 

City, State and Zip Code: 
Waltham, MA 02451-1457 POC Name: Tracey Hack 

Email: Tracey.Hack@freseniusmedicalcare.com 

Telephone No:  (781) 697-6332 Fax No: 

Nevada Local Street Address: 

(If different from above) 

2450 Fire Mesa St. Suite 150 Website: https://fmcna.com/ 

 City, State and Zip Code: Las Vegas, NV 89128 Local Fax No: 

Local Telephone No: 
(480) 734-8957 Local POC Name: Mary McCormick 

Email: Mary.Mccormick@freseniusmedicalcare.com 

All entities, with the exception of publicly-traded and non-profit organizations, must list the names of individuals holding more than five percent (5%) ownership or 
financial interest in the business entity appearing before the Board. 
 
Publicly-traded entities and non-profit organizations shall list all Corporate Officers and Directors in lieu of disclosing the names of individuals with 
ownership or financial interest. The disclosure requirement, as applied to land-use applications, extends to the applicant and the landowner(s). 

Entities include all business associations organized under or governed by Title 7 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, including but not limited to private corporations, 
close corporations, foreign corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, limited partnerships, and professional corporations. 

 

  Full Name  Title  % Owned 
(Not required for Publicly Traded 

Corporations/Non-profit organizations) 

 

Bio-Medical Applications Management Company, Inc.    100%  

      

      

      

This section is not required for publicly-traded corporations.  Are you a publicly-traded corporation?             Yes     X  No 

1. Are any individual members, partners, owners or principals, involved in the business entity, a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time 
employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes X  No (If yes, please note that University Medical Center of Southern Nevada employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) may not 
perform any work on professional service contracts, or other contracts, which are not subject to competitive bid.) 

 

2. Do any individual members, partners, owners or principals have a spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent, in-law or brother/sister, half-brother/half-
sister, grandchild, grandparent, related to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes X  No (If yes, please complete the Disclosure of Relationship form on Page 2.  If no, please print N/A on Page 2.)  

 

I certify under penalty of perjury, that all of the information provided herein is current, complete, and accurate. I also understand that the University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada Governing Board will not take action on land-use approvals, contract approvals, land sales, leases or exchanges without the completed disclosure 
form. 

 

    

Signature 
 

 Print Name  

    

Title  Date  

Patricia R Rich (Mar 20, 2024 11:20 EDT)
Patricia R Rich

SVP & GC Mar 20, 2024

Page 130 of 296

https://secure.na1.echosign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAt0Z_gEKxl4TjI3ZjeSC1oo6ovuFGa5aU


DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP 

2 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

 
List any disclosures below: 
(Mark N/A, if not applicable.) 

 

NAME OF BUSINESS 
OWNER/PRINCIPAL 

NAME OF UMC* 
EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

AND JOB TITLE 

RELATIONSHIP TO 
 UMC* 

EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

UMC* 
EMPLOYEE’S/OFFICIAL’S 

DEPARTMENT 

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 
* UMC employee means an employee of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
 
“Consanguinity” is a relationship by blood.  “Affinity” is a relationship by marriage. 
 
“To the second degree of consanguinity” applies to the candidate’s first and second degree of blood relatives as 
follows: 
 

• Spouse – Registered Domestic Partners – Children – Parents – In-laws (first degree) 
 

• Brothers/Sisters – Half-Brothers/Half-Sisters – Grandchildren – Grandparents – In-laws (second degree) 
 
 

 
For UMC Use Only: 

 
If any Disclosure of Relationship is noted above, please complete the following:     
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in the contracting/selection process for this particular agenda item? 
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in any way with the business in performance of the contract? 
 
Notes/Comments: 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Signature  
 
____________________________________ 
Print Name  
Authorized Department Representative 

 
 

 

Page 131 of 296



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
March 27, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

8 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue:               Data Breach Services with IDX a ZeroFox Company  

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner:  Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the 
Agreement for Breach Response Services with IDX, a Zerofox Company; authorize the 
Chief Executive Officer to execute amendments or extension options; or take action as 
deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number:  5420.000            Fund Name:  Operating Fund 
Fund Center:  3000851300            Funded Pgm/Grant:  N/A 
Description:  Data Breach Services 
Bid/RFP/CBE: RFP 
Term:  4 Years with the Option to extend for 1 Year 
Amount: $4,800,000 
Out Clause:  30 days w/o cause 
                     Budget Act and Fiscal Fund Out 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
On December 6, 2023 UMC issued Request for Proposal (RFP) 2023-12. The RFP closed on January 10, 2024 
without receiving any proposals. In accordance with NRS 332.148 UMC issued a Notice of Failure to Receive 
Responsible Responses in the Las Vegas Review Journal, and waited the required (7) seven days before 
selecting a provider.  
 
UMC has elected to continue services with the current service provider, IDX/ZeroFox Company. IDX will 
provide a team of subject-matter experts who can advise UMC in a variety of areas from industry best 
practices to regulatory and compliance requirements on data breach notification and remediation services. 
IDX’s services will include, but are not limited to the following: 
 

• Notify and offer compromised individuals through notification letters, online sign-up and/or call 
center enrollment, a comprehensive identity theft protection service via “opt-in” basis. This service is 
a one-year protection package that will help proactively and reactively protect compromised 
individuals from identity fraud.  

Page 132 of 296



Page Number 
2 

• Breach Communication Services include Continuous Credit Bureau Monitoring, CyberScan Dark 
Web Monitoring, $1,000,000 of reimbursement insurance, and unlimited access to ID Experts’ 
Member Services’ team.  

• Provide restoration services: IDCare Specialists fully manage recovery and restoration of each identity 
theft cases and provide expert guidance provided for individuals with questions about identity theft 
and protective measures.  

 
The term of this Service Agreement is from the date of last signature and remains in effect for a period of (4) 
four years with the option to extend for one (1) one year. Tither party may terminate the Agreement for its 
convenience with a 30-day written notice to the other. For compromised individuals actively enrolled in 
identity theft protection services, however, the service shall only terminate upon the conclusion of each matter 
assigned, even if the conclusion extends beyond the term of the Agreement but in no circumstance will this 
exceed one (1) year from the initial date of enrollment for credit report and monitoring and/or identity theft 
restoration services. 
 
The NTE total cost for this Agreement is $4,800,000, but the actual cost will not be realized unless there is an 
actual Breach of patient protected health information. If a Breach occurs the cost will based on volume of 
breach notification and the services selected.  
 
Staff has negotiated the proposed contract and fees associated and found them equitable for the work to be 
performed. Cost avoidance of an estimated $240,000 is included in this Agreement. 
 
Staff also requests authorization for the Hospital CEO, at the end of the initial term, to exercise the extension 
option at his discretion if deemed beneficial to UMC, and execute any future Statement of Works (SOW) 
within the not-to-exceed (NTE) amount of this Agreement. 
 
The Department of Business License has determined that ID Experts is not required to obtain a Clark County 
business license nor a vendor registration. 
 
UMC’s Chief Privacy Officer has reviewed and recommends award of this Agreement. This Agreement has 
been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel.  
 
This Agreement was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their March 20, 2024 
meeting and recommended for approval by the Governing Board. 
 

Page 133 of 296



 

 

 

 
UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER 

OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
  

AGREEMENT FOR  
 BREACH RESPONSE SERVICES  

 
 
 
 
 

 
 IDENTITY THEFT GUARD SOLUTIONS, INC. D/B/A IDX 

NAME OF FIRM 

 
Ian Kelly 

DESIGNATED CONTACT, NAME AND TITLE 
(Please type or print) 

 
4145 SW Watson Ave, Suite 400, Beaverton, OR 97005 

 
ADDRESS OF FIRM 

INCLUDING CITY, STATE AND ZIP CODE 

 
503-849-8279 

(AREA CODE) AND TELEPHONE NUMBER 

 
ikelly@zerofox.com 

E-MAIL ADDRESS 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 134 of 296



Page | 1  

 

AGREEMENT FOR BREACH RESPONSE SERVICES 
 

This Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of the last date of signature set forth below (the “Effective Date”), 

by and between UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA, located at 1800 W. Charleston, Las Vegas, NV 89102 a 

publicly owned and operated hospital created by virtue of Chapter 450 of the Nevada Revised Statutes (hereinafter referred to as 

“HOSPITAL”), and  Identity Theft Guard Solutions, Inc. d/b/a IDX, a ZeroFox company, located at 4145 SW Watson Ave, Suite 400, 

Beaverton, OR 97005 (hereinafter referred to as “COMPANY”), for Data Breach Services (hereinafter referred to as “PROJECT”). 

 

W I T N E S S E T H: 

WHEREAS, COMPANY has the personnel and resources necessary to accomplish the PROJECT within the required schedule 

and with a budget allowance not to exceed $4,800,000.00 however actual cost is based on volume of acquired data breach notifications, 

credit monitoring and/or remediation services as may be reflected in a Statement of Work (“SOW”) hereunder and as further described 

herein; and 

WHEREAS, COMPANY has the required licenses and/or authorizations pursuant to all federal, State of Nevada and local laws 

in order to conduct business relative to this Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, HOSPITAL and COMPANY agree as follows: 

SECTION I: TERM OF AGREEMENT 

HOSPITAL agrees to retain COMPANY for a period of four (4) years (“Term”). Thereafter this Agreement may be renewed by amendment 

for one (1) year.  During this period, COMPANY agrees to provide services as required by HOSPITAL within the scope of this Agreement.  

SECTION II: COMPENSATION AND TERMS OF PAYMENT 
A. Terms of Payments 

1. HOSPITAL agrees to pay COMPANY for the performance of services described in the Scope of Work (Exhibit A), as 

may be called for in an applicable SOW(s), for the fixed not-to-exceed fee of $4,800,000.00. It is expressly understood 
that the entire Scope of Work defined in Exhibit A must be completed by COMPANY and it shall be COMPANY's 

responsibility to ensure that hours and tasks are properly budgeted so the entire PROJECT is completed for the said 

fee, subject to the scope of the applicable SOW. 

2. Payment of invoices will be made within forty-five (45) calendar days after receipt of an accurate invoice that has been 

reviewed and approved by HOSPITAL, unless otherwise provided in an applicable SOW. 

3. HOSPITAL, at its discretion, may not approve or issue payment on invoices if COMPANY fails to provide the following 

information required on each invoice: 

a. The title of the PROJECT as stated in Exhibit A, Scope of Work, itemized description of products delivered 

or services rendered and amount due, Purchase Order Number, Invoice Date, Invoice Period, Invoice Number, 

and the Payment Remittance Address. 

b. Expenses not defined in Exhibit A, Scope of Work will not be paid without prior written authorization by 

HOSPITAL. 

c. HOSPITAL’s representative shall notify COMPANY in writing within fourteen (14) calendar days of any 

disputed amount included on the invoice, with any dispute based on reasonable grounds. COMPANY must 

submit a new invoice for the undisputed amount which will be paid in accordance with this paragraph A.2 

above. Upon mutual resolution of the disputed amount, COMPANY will submit a new invoice for the agreed 

amount and payment will be made in accordance with this paragraph A.2 above. 

4. No penalty will be imposed on HOSPITAL if HOSPITAL fails to pay COMPANY within ninety (90) calendar days after 

receipt of a properly documented invoice, and HOSPITAL will receive no discount for payment within that period. 

5. HOSPITAL shall subtract from any payment made to COMPANY all damages, costs and expenses caused by 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 135 of 296



 

Page | 2  

 

COMPANY's negligence, resulting from or arising out of errors or omissions in COMPANY's work products, which have 

not been previously paid to COMPANY. 

6. HOSPITAL shall not provide payment on any invoice COMPANY submits after six (6) months from the date COMPANY 
performs services, provides deliverables, and/or meets milestones, as agreed upon in Exhibit A, Scope of Work. 

7. Invoices shall be submitted to:  University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, Attn:  Accounts Payable, 1800 W. 

Charleston Blvd., Las Vegas, NV 89102. 

B. HOSPITAL’s Fiscal Limitations 

1. The content of this section shall apply to the entire Agreement and shall take precedence over any conflicting terms 

and conditions, and shall limit HOSPITAL’s financial responsibility as indicated in Sections 2 and 3 below. 

2. In accordance with the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS 354.626), the financial obligations under this Agreement 

between the parties shall not exceed those monies appropriated and approved by HOSPITAL for the then-current fiscal 

year under the Local Government Budget Act. This Agreement shall terminate and HOSPITAL's obligations under it 

shall be extinguished at the end of any of HOSPITAL's fiscal years in which HOSPITAL’s governing body fails to 

appropriate monies for the ensuing fiscal year sufficient for the payment of all amounts which could then become due 

under this Agreement. HOSPITAL agrees that this section shall not be utilized as a subterfuge or in a discriminatory 

fashion as it relates to this Agreement. In the event this section is invoked, this Agreement will expire on the 30th day 

of June of the then-current fiscal year. Termination under this section shall not relieve HOSPITAL of its obligations 

incurred through the 30th day of June of the fiscal year for which monies were appropriated.  HOSPITAL will notify 

Company promptly of any such termination. 

3. HOSPITAL’s total liability for all charges for services which may become due under this Agreement is limited to the 

total maximum expenditure(s) authorized in HOSPITAL’s purchase order(s) to COMPANY, and HOSPTAL will not incur 

obligations in excess of this amount. 

SECTION III: SCOPE OF WORK 

Services to be performed by COMPANY for the PROJECT shall consist of the work described in the Scope of Work as set forth in 
Exhibit A of this Agreement, attached hereto and any applicable SOW. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Agreement 

and the terms in the Scope of Work, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail. 

SECTION IV: CHANGES TO SCOPE OF WORK 

A. HOSPITAL may at any time, by written order, make changes within the general scope of this Agreement and in the services or work 

to be performed.  If such changes cause an increase or decrease in COMPANY's cost or time required for performance of any 

services under this Agreement, an equitable adjustment limited to an amount within current unencumbered budgeted appropriations 

for the PROJECT shall be made and this Agreement shall be modified in writing accordingly. Any claim of COMPANY for the 

adjustment under this clause must be submitted in writing within thirty (30) calendar days from the date of receipt by COMPANY of 

notification of change unless HOSPITAL grants a further period of time before the date of final payment under this Agreement. 

B. No services for which an additional compensation will be charged by COMPANY shall be furnished without the written authorization 

of HOSPITAL. 

SECTION V: RESPONSIBILITY OF COMPANY  
A. It is understood that in the performance of the services herein provided for, COMPANY shall be, and is, an independent contractor, 

and is not an agent, representative or employee of HOSPITAL and shall furnish such services in its own manner and method except 

as required by this Agreement. Further, COMPANY has and shall retain the right to exercise full control over the employment, 

direction, compensation and discharge of all persons employed by COMPANY in the performance of the services hereunder. 

COMPANY shall be solely responsible for, and shall indemnify, defend and hold HOSPITAL harmless from all matters relating to the 

payment of its employees, including compliance with social security, withholding and all other wages, salaries, benefits, taxes, 

demands, and regulations of any nature whatsoever. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 136 of 296



 

Page | 3  

 

B. INTENTIONALLY DELETED.   

C. COMPANY has, or will, retain such employees as it may need to perform the services required by this Agreement. Such employees 

shall not be employed by the HOSPITAL. 

D. COMPANY agrees that its officers and employees will cooperate with HOSPITAL in the performance of services under this 

Agreement and will be available for consultation with HOSPITAL at such reasonable times with advance notice as to not conflict with 

their other responsibilities. 

E. COMPANY will follow HOSPITAL's relevant compliance policies as followed by HOSPITAL's staff in regard to programming changes; 

testing; change control; and other similar activities, including its corporate compliance program, HOSPITAL’s Policy (Contracted 

Non-Employees/Allied Health Non- Credentialed /Dependent Allied Health / Temporary Staff / Construction/Third Party Equipment), 

and HOSPITAL’s Vaccine Policy as may be amended from time to time. HOSPITAL will provide a copy of said policy upon COMPANY 

request. COMPANY must register through HOSITAL’s vendor management/credentialing system prior to arriving onsite at any of 

HOSPITAL’s facilities.  Should the Project involve a continuous presence by COMPANY’s employees or agents onsite at 

HOSPITAL’s facilities, COMPANY may be required to complete HOSPITAL’s onboarding process and abide by onboarding 

requirements of HOSPITAL’s Human Resources Department.  COMPANY’s employees, agents, subcontractors and/or designees 

who do not abide by HOSPITAL’s policies may be barred from physical access to HOSPITAL’s premises 

F. COMPANY shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, timely completion, and coordination of all services 

furnished by COMPANY, its subcontractors and its and their principals, officers, employees and agents under this Agreement. In 

performing the specified services, COMPANY shall follow practices consistent with generally accepted professional and technical 

standards. COMPANY further agree that for a period of one year following completion of its work, or such longer period as may be 

indicated in the specification, COMPANY will replace or repair any product it provides or installs because of defects in workmanship 

or materials, except to the extent the failure results from negligence of HOSPITAL. COMPANY expressly disclaims all other 

warranties, whether implied or statutory, including but not limited to, any warranty of merchantability or fitness for a particular purpose. 

G. It shall be the duty of COMPANY to assure that all products of its effort are technically sound and in conformance with all pertinent 

Federal, State and Local statutes, codes, ordinances, resolutions and other regulations. If applicable, COMPANY will not produce a 

work product which violates or infringes on any copyright or patent rights. COMPANY shall, without additional compensation, correct 

or revise any errors or omissions in its work products:   

1. Permitted or required approval by HOSPITAL of any products or services furnished by COMPANY shall not in any way 

relieve COMPANY of responsibility for the professional and technical accuracy and adequacy of its work.  

2. HOSPITAL’s review, approval, acceptance, or payment for any of COMPANY's services herein shall not be construed to 

operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of action arising out of the performance of this 

Agreement, and COMPANY shall be and remain liable in accordance with the terms of this Agreement and applicable law 

for all damages to HOSPITAL caused by COMPANY's performance or failures to perform under this Agreement. 

H. All materials, information, and documents, whether finished, unfinished, drafted, developed, prepared, completed, or acquired by 

COMPANY exclusively for HOSPITAL relating to the services to be performed hereunder and not otherwise used or useful in 

connection with services previously rendered, or services to be rendered, by COMPANY to parties other than HOSPITAL shall 

become the property of HOSPITAL and shall be delivered to HOSPITAL's representative upon completion or termination of this 

Agreement, whichever comes first. COMPANY shall not be liable for damages, claims, and losses arising out of any reuse of any 

work products on any other project conducted by HOSPITAL. HOSPITAL shall have the right to reproduce all documentation supplied 

pursuant to this Agreement.  Work product referenced above does not include Company’s identity management platform. 

I. Drawings and specifications remain the property of COMPANY. Copies of the drawings and specifications retained by HOSPITAL 

may be utilized only for its use and for occupying the PROJECT for which they were prepared, and not for the construction of any 

other project. A copy of all materials, information and documents, whether finished, unfinished, or draft, developed, prepared, 

completed, or acquired by COMPANY exclusively for Hospital during the performance of services for which it has been compensated 

under this Agreement, shall be delivered to HOSPITAL’s representative upon completion or termination of this Agreement, whichever 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 137 of 296



 

Page | 4  

 

occurs first. HOSPITAL shall have the right to reproduce all documentation supplied pursuant to this Agreement. COMPANY shall 

furnish Hospital’s representative copies of all correspondence to regulatory agencies for review prior to mailing such correspondence. 

J. The rights and remedies of HOSPITAL provided for under this section are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by 

law or under other sections of this Agreement. 

SECTION VI: SUBCONTRACTS 

A. Services specified by this Agreement shall not be subcontracted by COMPANY, without prior written approval of HOSPITAL.  The 

subcontractors referenced in Exhibit E attached hereto are approved by Hospital. 

B. Approval by HOSPITAL of COMPANY's request to subcontract, or acceptance of, or payment for, subcontracted work by HOSPITAL 

shall not in any way relieve COMPANY of responsibility for the professional and technical accuracy and adequacy of the work. 

COMPANY shall be and remain liable for all damages to HOSPITAL caused by negligent performance or non-performance of work 

under this Agreement by COMPANY's subcontractor or its sub-subcontractor. 

C. The compensation due under Section II shall not be affected by HOSPITAL's approval of COMPANY's request to subcontract. 

SECTION VII: RESPONSIBILITY OF HOSPITAL 

A. HOSPITAL agrees that its officers and employees will cooperate with COMPANY in the performance of services under this 

Agreement and will be available for consultation with COMPANY at such reasonable times with advance notice as to not conflict with 

their other responsibilities. 

B. The services performed by COMPANY under this Agreement shall be subject to review for compliance with the terms of this 

Agreement by HOSPITAL's representative, Corey McDaniel, telephone number (702) 383-3854 or his designee.  HOSPITAL's 

representative may delegate any or all of his responsibilities under this Agreement to appropriate staff members, and shall so inform 

COMPANY by written notice before the effective date of each such delegation. 

C. The review comments of HOSPITAL's representative may be reported in writing as needed to COMPANY.  It is understood that 

HOSPITAL's representative’s review comments do not relieve COMPANY from the responsibility for the professional and technical 

accuracy of all work delivered under this Agreement. 

D. HOSPITAL shall assist COMPANY in obtaining data on documents from public officers or agencies, and from private citizens and/or 

business firms, whenever such material is necessary for the completion of the services specified by this Agreement. 

E. COMPANY will not be responsible for accuracy of information or data supplied by HOSPITAL or other sources to the extent such 

information or data would be relied upon by a reasonably prudent COMPANY. 

SECTION VIII: TIME SCHEDULE 

A. Time is of the essence of this Agreement. 

B. If COMPANY’s performance of services is delayed or if COMPANY’s sequence of tasks is changed, COMPANY shall notify 

HOSPITAL’s representative in writing of the reasons for the delay and prepare a revised schedule for performance of services.  The 

revised schedule is subject to HOSPITAL’s written approval. 

SECTION IX: SUSPENSION AND TERMINATION 

A. Suspension 

HOSPITAL may suspend performance by COMPANY under this Agreement for such period of time as HOSPITAL, at its sole 

discretion, may prescribe by providing written notice to COMPANY at least fthirty (30) days prior to the date on which HOSPITAL 

wishes to suspend. Upon such suspension, HOSPITAL shall pay COMPANY its compensation, based on the percentage of the 

PROJECT completed or committed to and earned until the effective date of suspension, less all previous payments. COMPANY shall 

not perform further work under this Agreement after the effective date of suspension until receipt of written notice from HOSPITAL 

to resume performance. In the event HOSPITAL suspends performance by COMPANY for any cause other than the error or omission 

of the COMPANY, for an aggregate period in excess of thirty (30) days, COMPANY shall be entitled to an equitable adjustment of 

the compensation payable to COMPANY under this Agreement to reimburse COMPANY for additional costs occasioned as a result 

of such suspension of performance by HOSPITAL based on appropriated funds and approval by HOSPITAL. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 138 of 296



 

Page | 5  

 

 

B. Termination 

1. Termination for Cause 

This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by either party in the event of substantial failure or default of the other 

party to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement through no fault of the terminating party; but only after the other party is 

given: 

a. not less than ten (10) calendar days written notice of intent to terminate; and 

b. an opportunity for consultation with the terminating party prior to termination. 

2. Termination for Convenience 

a. This Agreement may be terminated in whole or in part by HOSPITAL for its convenience; but only after COMPANY is 

given not less than thirty (30) calendar days written notice of intent to terminate; and 

b. If termination is for HOSPITAL’s convenience, HOSPITAL shall pay COMPANY that portion of the compensation which 

has been earned as of the effective date of termination but no amount shall be allowed for anticipated profit on 

unperformed services or other work. 

3. Effect of Termination  

a. If termination for substantial failure or default is effected by HOSPITAL, HOSPITAL will pay COMPANY that portion of 

the compensation which has been earned as of the effective date of termination but: 

i. No amount shall be allowed for anticipated profit on unperformed services or other work; and 

ii. Any payment due to COMPANY at the time of termination may be adjusted to the extent of any additional costs 

occasioned to HOSPITAL by reason of COMPANY's default. 

b. Upon receipt or delivery by COMPANY of a termination notice, COMPANY shall promptly discontinue all services 

affected (unless the notice directs otherwise) and deliver or otherwise make available to HOSPITAL’s representative, 

copies of all deliverables as provided in Section V, paragraph H.   Each Party shall return or destroy all originals and 

copies, except for those copies it may retain for archival purposes, of any confidential information of the other Party 

regarding the Project, including but not limited to protected health information (“PHI”), and shall certify in writing to the 

other Party, no later than thirty (30) days after termination, that is has done so. 

c. If after termination for failure of COMPANY to fulfill contractual obligations it is determined that COMPANY has not so 

failed, the termination shall be deemed to have been effected for the convenience of HOSPITAL. 

d.  Upon termination, HOSPITAL may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion by agreement with another 

party or otherwise.  In the event COMPANY shall cease conducting business, HOSPITAL shall have the right to make 

an unsolicited offer of employment to any employees of COMPANY assigned to the performance of this Agreement. 

4. The rights and remedies of HOSPITAL and COMPANY provided in this section are in addition to any other rights and 

remedies provided by law or under this Agreement. 

5. Neither party shall be considered in default in the performance of its obligations hereunder, nor any of them, to the extent 

that performance of such obligations, nor any of them, is prevented or delayed by any cause, existing or future, which is 

beyond the reasonable control of such party.  Delays arising from the actions or inactions of one or more of COMPANY's 

principals, officers, employees, agents, subcontractors, vendors or suppliers are expressly recognized to be within 

COMPANY's control unless they are themselves prevented or delayed by any cause, existing or future, which is beyond the 

reasonable control of such party. 

SECTION X: INSURANCE 

COMPANY shall obtain and maintain the insurance coverage required in Exhibit B incorporated herein by this reference. COMPANY 

shall comply with the terms and conditions set forth in Exhibit B and shall include the cost of the insurance coverage in their prices. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 139 of 296



 

Page | 6  

 

SECTION XI: NOTICES 

Any notice required to be given hereunder shall be deemed to have been given when received by the party to whom it is directed by 

personal service, hand delivery, certified U.S. mail, return receipt requested or facsimile, at the following addresses, or such other address 

that a party may designate in writing: 

 

TO HOSPITAL: Attn: Privacy Officer 
 University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

Attn: Legal Department 
1800 W. Charleston Blvd. 
Las Vegas, NV 89102 
 
 

TO COMPANY:  IDX 
  4145 SW Watson Ave. 
 Suite 400  
 Beaverton, OR 97005 
  
  

SECTION XII: MISCELLANEOUS 

A. ADA Requirements 

All work performed or services rendered by COMPANY shall comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act standards adopted by 

Clark County.  All facilities built prior to January 26, 1992 must comply with the Uniform Federal Accessibility Standards; and all 

facilities completed after January 26, 1992 must comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines. 

B. Amendments  

No modifications or amendments to this Agreement shall be valid or enforceable unless mutually agreed to in writing by the parties. 

C. Assignment 

Any attempt by COMPANY to assign or otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written consent of 

HOSPITAL shall be void.  Notwithstanding the above, a party may assign to a successor party in interest without obtaining such 

consent provided that, all of the following conditions must be met: (i) such assignment is in connection with a merger or corporate 

reorganization, by operation of law, or in connection with a sale of all or substantially all of the assets to which this Agreement relates; 

(ii) the assigning party provides written notice to the non-assigning party prior to the effective date of such assignment; and (iii) there 

is a written agreement, wherein the party to which the rights are assigned accepts all the duties and obligations of the assignor 

hereunder.   

D. Audits 

The performance of this Agreement by COMPANY is subject to review by HOSPITAL to ensure Agreement compliance. COMPANY 

agrees to provide HOSPITAL any and all information requested that relates to the performance of this Agreement.  All requests for 

information will be in writing to COMPANY.  Time is of the essence during the audit process.  Failure to provide the information 

requested within the timeline provided in the written information request may be considered a material breach of Agreement and be 

cause for suspension and/or termination of the Agreement. The parties hereto further agree that except as otherwise required by 

law, any audit and inspection rights include only the rights to verify amounts invoiced by COMPANY and to verify the nature of the 

services being invoiced, but does not include the right to review personal information of COMPANY’s employees, or proprietary 

information of COMPANY, including but not limited to COMPANY’s underlying cost, markup or overhead rates. 

E. Clark County Business License / Registration 

COMPANY warrants that it is has a valid Clark County Business License and will maintain such licensure through the duration of this 

Agreement, solely to the extent required to provide the Services. 

F. Complete Agreement 

This Agreement, together with all exhibits, appendices or other attachments, which are incorporated herein by reference, is the sole 

and entire agreement between the parties relating to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement supersedes all prior understandings, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 140 of 296



 

Page | 7  

 

representations, agreements and documentation relating to such subject matter. In the event of a conflict between the provisions of 

the main body of the Agreement and any attached exhibits, appendices or other materials, the Agreement shall take precedence.  

G. Confidential Treatment of Information 

COMPANY shall preserve in strict confidence any information obtained, assembled or prepared in connection with the performance 

of this Agreement and COMPANY represents and warrants that it shall not resell HOSPITAL confidential information. Confidential 

information does not include information that, under the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA) as may be 

amended from time to time, is protected health information (PHI), in which case the parties agree to handle such health information in 

accordance with the terms of the Business Associate Agreement (BAA) which is attached to and incorporated into this Agreement as 
Exhibit D. 

H. Counterparts 

This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts. Each counterpart will be an original, and all such counterparts will 

constitute a single instrument. 

I. Covenant 

COMPANY covenants that it presently has no interest and that it will not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict 

in any manner or degree with the performance of services required to be performed under this Agreement. COMPANY further 

covenants, to its knowledge and ability, that in the performance of said services no person having any such interest shall be 

employed. 

J. Covenant Against Contingent Fees  

COMPANY warrants that no person or selling agency has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this Agreement upon an 

agreement or understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bona fide permanent employees.  

For breach or violation of this warranty, HOSPITAL shall have the right to annul this Agreement without liability or in its discretion to 

deduct from the Agreement price or consideration or otherwise recover the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, 

or contingent fee. 

K. Exclusion 

COMPANY represents and warrants that neither it, nor any of its employees or other contracted staff (collectively referred to in this 

paragraph as “employees”) has been or is about to be excluded from participation in any Federal Health Care Program (as defined 

herein). COMPANY agrees to notify HOSPITAL within five (5) business days of COMPANY’s receipt of notice of intent to exclude or 

actual notice of exclusion from any such program. The listing of COMPANY or any of its employees on the Office of Inspector 

General’s exclusion list (OIG website), the General Services Administration’s Lists of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement 

and Non-procurement Programs (GSA website) for excluded individuals or entities, any state Medicaid exclusion list, or the Office of 

Foreign Assets Control’s (OFAC’s) blocked list shall constitute “exclusion” for purposes of this paragraph. In the event that COMPANY 

or any of its employees is excluded from any Federal Health Care Program or placed on the OFAC’s blocked list, it shall be a material 

breach and this Agreement shall immediately terminate without penalty to HOSPITAL. For the purpose of this paragraph, the term 

“Federal Health Care Program” means the Medicare program, the Medicaid program, TRICARE, any health care program of the 

Department of Veterans Affairs, the Maternal and Child Health Services Block Grant program, any state social services block grant 

program, any state children’s health insurance program, or any similar program. 

L. Governing Law / Venue 

Nevada law shall govern the interpretation of this Agreement.  Venue shall be any court of competent jurisdiction in Las Vegas, 

Nevada. 

M. Gratuities 

1. HOSPITAL may, by written notice to COMPANY, terminate this Agreement if it is found after notice and hearing by 

HOSPITAL that gratuities (in the form of entertainment, gifts, or otherwise) were offered or given by COMPANY or any 

agent or representative of COMPANY to any officer or employee of HOSPITAL with a view toward securing a contract or 

securing favorable treatment with respect to the awarding or amending or making of any determinations with respect to the 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 141 of 296



 

Page | 8  

 

performance of this Agreement. 

2. In the event this Agreement is terminated as provided in paragraph 1 hereof, HOSPITAL shall be entitled: 

a. to pursue the same remedies against COMPANY as it could pursue in the event of a breach of this Agreement by 

COMPANY; and 

b. as a penalty in addition to any other damages to which it may be entitled by law, to exemplary damages in an amount 

(as determined by HOSPITAL) which shall be not less than three (3) nor more than ten (10) times the costs incurred 

by COMPANY in providing any such gratuities to any such officer or employee. 

3. The rights and remedies of HOSPITAL provided in this clause shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights 

and remedies provided by law or under this Agreement. 

N. Immigration Reform and Control Act 

In accordance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, COMPANY agrees that it will not employ unauthorized aliens in 

the performance of this Agreement.  

O. Indemnity 

COMPANY does hereby agree to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless HOSPITAL and the employees, officers and agents of 

HOSPITAL from any liabilities, damages, losses, claims, actions or proceedings, including, without limitation, reasonable attorneys’ 

fees, that are caused by the negligence, errors, omissions, recklessness or intentional misconduct of COMPANY or the employees 

or agents of COMPANY in the performance of this Agreement.  If Company or any of its officers, directors, shareholders or employees 

are required by a court or arbitrator or requested to respond to depositions, discovery demands or testify in depositions or as a 

witness in any legal action that relates to the services engaged by HOSPITAL under this Agreement, the parties will meet and confer 

regarding a separate written agreement to address the payment of  reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, travel and/or other out of 

pocket expenses incurred in responding to such requests. 

P. Independent Contractor 

COMPANY acknowledges that it, COMPANY, and any subcontractors, agents or employees employed by it shall not, under any 

circumstances, be considered employees of the HOSPITAL, and that they shall not be entitled to any of the benefits or rights afforded 

employees of HOSPITAL, including, but not limited to, sick leave, vacation leave, holiday pay, Public Employees Retirement System 

benefits, or health, life, dental, long-term disability or workers' compensation insurance benefits.  HOSPITAL will not provide or pay 

for any liability or medical insurance, retirement contributions or any other benefits for or on behalf of COMPANY or any of its officers, 

employees or other agents. 

Q. Prohibition Against Israel Boycott:   

In accordance with Nevada Revised Statute 332.065, COMPANY certifies that it is not refused to deal or to conduct business with, 

abstained from dealing or conducting business with, terminating business or business activities with or performing any other action 

that is intended to limit commercial relations with Israel or a person or entity doing business in Israel or in territories controlled by 

Israel. 

R. Public Funds / Non-Discrimination 

COMPANY acknowledges that the HOSPITAL has an obligation to ensure that public funds are not used to subsidize private 

discrimination. COMPANY recognizes that if they or their subcontractors are found guilty by an appropriate authority of refusing to 

hire or do business with an individual or company due to reasons of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity or 

gender expression, age, disability, handicapping condition (including AIDS or AIDS related conditions), national origin, or any other 

class protected by law or regulation, HOSPITAL may declare COMPANY in breach of the Agreement, terminate the Agreement, and 

designate COMPANY as non-responsible. 

S. Public Records 

COMPANY acknowledges that HOSPITAL is a public, county-owned hospital which is subject to the provisions of the Nevada Public 

Records Act, Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 239, as may be amended from time to time. As such, its records are public 

documents available for copying and inspection by the public. If HOSPITAL receives a demand for the disclosure of any information 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 142 of 296



 

Page | 9  

 

related to this Agreement that COMPANY has claimed to be confidential and proprietary, HOSPITAL will immediately notify 

COMPANY of such demand and COMPANY shall immediately notify HOSPITAL of its intention to seek injunctive relief in a Nevada 

court for protective order. COMPANY shall indemnify and defend HOSPITAL from any claims or actions, including all associated 

costs and attorney’s fees, demanding the disclosure of COMPANY document in HOSPITAL’s custody and control in which 

COMPANY claims to be confidential and proprietary. 

T. Publicity   

Neither HOSPITAL nor COMPANY shall cause to be published or disseminated any advertising materials, either printed or 

electronically transmitted which identify the other party or its facilities with respect to this Agreement without the prior written consent 

of the other party. 

U. Subcontractor Information  

COMPANY shall provide a list of the Minority-Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE), 

Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE), Small Business Enterprise (SBE), and Nevada Business Enterprise (NBE) 
subcontractors for this Agreement utilizing the attached format Exhibit C.  The information provided in Exhibit C by COMPANY is 

for the HOSPITAL’s information only. 

V. Survival of Terms.  

Unless otherwise stated, all of HOSPITAL and COMPANY’s respective obligations, representations and warranties under this 

Agreement which are not, by the expressed terms of this Agreement, fully to be performed while this Agreement is in effect shall 

survive the termination of this Agreement. 

W. Travel Policy 

The following are the acceptable travel guidelines for reimbursement of travel costs:  

Reimbursement shall only be for the contract personnel. 

Transportation:  

- Domestic Airlines (Coach Ticket).  Number of trips must be approved by HOSPITAL. 

- Personal Vehicle: HOSPITAL will not pay costs associated to driving a personal vehicle in lieu of air travel. 

Meals: All meal charges will be paid up to and not to exceed $50 per day. This includes a 15% tip.  

Lodging: Lodging will either be booked by HOSPITAL or reimbursed for costs of a reasonable room rate plus taxes for Las 

Vegas, NV, not to exceed $150 per night.  

Rental Vehicles: One (1) automobile rental will be authorized per four (4) travelers. Rental must be mid-size or smaller.  

HOSPITAL will reimburse up to $150 per week.  Return re-fuel cap of $50 per vehicle. 

Each traveler shall submit the following documents in order to claim travel reimbursement. The documents shall be readable copies 

of the original itemized receipts with each traveler’s full name. Only actual costs (including all applicable sales tax) will be reimbursed. 

- Company’s Invoice 

o With copy of executed Agreement highlighting the allowable travel 

o List of travelers 

o Number of days in travel status 

- Hotel receipt 

- Meal receipts for each meal 

- Airline receipt 

- Car rental receipt (Identify driver and passengers) 

- Airport parking receipt (traveler’s Airport origin) 

- Gas re-fuel upon return of rental vehicle capped at $50 per vehicle 

- Airport long term parking (only for economy rate) 

The following are some of the charges that will NOT be allowable for reimbursement (not all inclusive): 

-  Personal vehicle (HOSPITAL will not pay costs associated to driving a personal vehicle in lieu of air travel) 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 143 of 296



 

Page | 10  

 

- Excess baggage fares 

 -  Upgrades for transportation, lodging, or vehicles 

-  Alcohol 

 -  Room service 

-  In-room movie rentals 

- In-room beverage/snacks 

- Gas for personal vehicles 

- Transportation to and from traveler’s home and the airport 

- Mileage 

- Travel time 

Travel expenses shall not exceed $_0.00____________ without prior written approval from HOSPITAL. 

X. Waiver; Severability  

No term or provision of this Agreement shall be deemed waived and no breach excused unless such waiver or consent is in writing 

and signed by the party claimed to have waived or consented. If any provision of this Agreement is held invalid, void or unenforceable 

under any applicable statute or rule of law, it shall to that extent be deemed omitted, and the balance of this Agreement shall be 

enforceable in accordance with its remaining terms. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the Parties has caused this Agreement to be executed and effective as of the Effective Date. 

HOSPITAL: 

 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
 

 

By:     

MASON VAN HOUWELING DATE 
Chief Executive Officer 

 

   COMPANY: 

 

IDENTITY THEFT GUARD SOLUTIONS, INC. d/b/a IDX 
 

 

   By:     

    NAME DATE 

    TITLE  

     
 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

CFO

3/15/2024

Tim Bender

Page 144 of 296



2023-12 UMC – Breach Response Services 
Exhibit A 

SCOPE OF WORK 
A. Scope of Work 

The intent of this Request for Proposal is to identify an exclusive service partner or partners who can 
provide broad notification, identity protection services in the event of a breach of individually 
identifiable data, and help UMC maintain the integrity of our operations on an “as-needed” basis.                                           

                                                       
B. Engagements 

 
1. Assignment of a dedicated project manager. 
 
2. Conduct a kick-off call within 24 hours of notification of incident by UMC. 
 

 3. Mailing individual notifications and stand-up of custom website and call center within three (3) to 
five (5) days from  
  receipt of mailing data, and notification letter and FAQ content.  
 
 4. Vendor to maintain system for the life of the engagement. 
 

5. Project manager and reporting to be available during and subsequent to the engagement.  
 

C. Individual Mailing Notifications 
1. Pre-defined load templates UMC can use to submit data associated with persons affected by a 

breach 

2.   Address validation and standardization using USPS Coding Accuracy Support System (CASS) 

3.   Address validation using National Change of Address (NCOA) system 

4.   Where needed, assistance with drafting notification letters and other notification 

5.   Ability to accommodate multiple notification letter versions to meet federal and state laws, language 
requirements, or other individual factors. 

6.  Notification Letter 

o Ability to provide template for customizable letter (multiple versions) 

o Ability to include enrollment steps for identity protections services 

o Printing, processing, and handling of USPS First Class notification letters to identified 
population 

o #10 - 8 1/2" X 11" double-sided print, grayscale 

o #10 envelope large window 

o Address validation and standardization using USPS CASS 

o NCOA address validation prior to mailing 

o Return mail tracking and management of resend process (optional service available to 
UMC) 

o Ability to run ad-hoc reports, including certificate of mailing, undeliverable letters, and 
updated addresses from NCOA 

o Ability for variable fields to be included in letters 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 145 of 296



      7. Tracking of all individual mailings for documentation and reporting purposes 

D. Enrollment in Identity Protection Services    
1. Ability to provide unique enrollment codes on individual mailings for affected individuals to enroll in 
offered services.  

2. Telephone or on-line enrollment available for enrollment in offered services via call-center or client-
specific website. 

3. Incident specific URL for online enrollment, access to FAQs, and additional information as requested 
by UMC. Co- branding with vendor and UMC. 

4. Custom website developed and hosted by vendor for the term of the engagement. 

5. Custom web description and FAQs regarding the breach incident. 

E.  Call Center 
1. Toll free number for additional information, questions and enrollment. 

2. Live agents accessible if preferred by caller. 

3. Customizable process for escalations handled by either the vendor or UMC.  

4. Twelve-hour daily operating hours. 

5. Performance metrics indicating 80+% of received calls are answered in three (3) minutes. 

6. Ability to accept over 1,000 simultaneous calls in the call center 

7. Customizable interactive voice response system with all calls directed to a live agent during operating 
hours.  

8. Call center agents to be trained on details of the incident, including FAQs, escalations process, and 
service levels. 

9. Ability to provide both English and Spanish speaking call center agents. 

10. Ability to provide assistance with other languages when needed. 

11. Ongoing communication with UMC representatives regarding the status of the engagement. 

12. Reports on call center volume and enrollments. 

13. Training of call center staff to professionally handle client calls, including difficult cases, escalation, 
details specific to the engagement. 

14. Monitoring and coaching of call center staff to ensure customer service and UMC specifications are 
met. 

15. Reporting on call-in enrollments with source of origin (call center, website, IVR), escalations. 

F. Identity Protection Service 

1. Flexible suite of identity protection services: 

o Single bureau or tri-bureau credit monitoring 

o Dark web monitoring of underground website, chat rooms, and similar 24-7 to identify 
trading or selling of personal information (including, but not limited to: SSNs, bank 
accounts, email addresses, medical ID numbers, driver's license numbers, passport 
numbers, credit and debit cards, phone numbers, and other unique identifiers) 

o Information for enrollees concerned about identity theft to protect themselves, such as 
instructions for placing fraud alerts; methods for monitoring financial and health 
information for potential fraud associated with an individual's personal accounts; 
directions for contacting financial institutions and/or insurance providers or 
Medicare/Medicaid; and a protection log to maintain a running account of all steps taken 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 146 of 296



to protect oneself.  

o Identity Theft Insurance.  Reimbursement to individuals for expenses associated with 
restoring their identity should they become a victim of identity theft.  Coverage for up to 
$1,000,000.  No deductible.  A-rated carrier. 

o Managed Identity Recovery Services.  Recovery and restoration for identity theft issues 
such as, but not limited to: 

 Credit cards 

 Payday loans 

 Short term loans 

 Auto loans 

 Mortgage 

 Criminal ID theft 

 Medical Fraud 

 Account Takeover 

 Rental application 

 Car rental 

 Storage rentals 

 Apartment rentals 

 Tax fraud 

 Benefit fraud 

 Online auction fraud 

 Utility creation 

 Check fraud 

 Child identity theft, etc. 

o Access to professionals to request information and assistance for identity protection and 
remediation services. 

 G. Reporting  
1.  Individual tracking and reporting on mailings, return mail, recipient state and country, call center 

calls, enrollments by source (IVR, call center, website). 

2. Reporting on website traffic. 

H. Data Protection Compliance 
1. Willingness and ability to sign and adhere to the terms of a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement. 

2. Encrypted data transfer and hosting to meet HIPAA security Rule Standards. 

3. Provide minimum requirements for data hosting and destruction as published by UMC IT.  

4. UMC data stored up to seven (7), or as otherwise specified by client. 

5. Strict screening of sub-contractors and, where necessary, sub-contractor signature and adherence 
to HIPAA Business Associate Agreement. 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 147 of 296



DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 148 of 296



DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 149 of 296



DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 150 of 296



DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 151 of 296



DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 152 of 296



DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 153 of 296



DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 154 of 296



DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 155 of 296



PROJECT MANAGEMENT AND SETUP 

• Develop and manage the on-going project plan for 3 months

• Define actions, responsibilities, and timeline

• Implement internal systems to manage, track, and support 
communication to affected population

• Provide status calls on a daily-to-weekly basis to discuss  
efficiencies, FAQ, and budget 

• Rapid change request support

 
NOTIFICATION LETTER  

• Customized letter (1 version) written to minimize breach 
related risks and meet the needs for your organization and 
the affected population

• IDX™ Recommended Steps for enrollment via the call center 
and managed website

• Printing, processing and handling of USPS First Class 
notification letter to population   

• #10 - 8 1/2” X 11” double sided print, grayscale format   

• #10 envelope, large window  

• Acceptance of secured data feed with name, address and 
unique ID to validate affected population and integrate with 
CRM system 

• NCOA address validation prior to mailing 

• Return handling including researching undeliverable  
letters and managing resend process (optional service  
for additional charge)

• Legally compliant mailing for all 50 states 

• Periodic reports include certificate of mailing, undeliverable 
letters and updated addresses from NCOA 

 

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENTS (SLAS)      

• Notification letters are mailed 3-5 business days from 
the receipt of finalized address data and a final draft of 
notification letter(s) 

• Call center can be setup within 48 hours of receipt of FAQ 
scripting

• Agents staffed to ensure 90% of calls answered in 3 minutes 
or less

COMMUNICATIONS

Informational and Enrollment Website 

• Provide the affected population with instant access to 
enrollment in ID protection and breach-specific information

• Provide links to IDX member website for access to exclusive 
member services and reporting of suspected  
identity theft 

• Maintain website services for 3 months

Call Center - Interactive Voice Response 

• Set-up and program customized Interactive Voice  
Response (IVR) technology

• IVR answers all calls with approved scripted  
recorded message

• After hours message requests caller to call back during 
normal business hours

• Calls directed to a live dedicated agent in less than 3 minutes

• Maintain all systems for 3 months

Call Center - Agent Staffing 

• Agents will be trained on details of the incident; specific to 
frequently asked questions (FAQ) scripting, client process 
requests, escalations, customization, and service levels

• Live, dedicated, trained bilingual English and Spanish 
speaking representatives based in Beaverton, Oregon will be 
standing by to take calls

• Agent staffing is adjusted as call volumes decrease or 
increase to maintain the required SLAs

• Calls directed to a live agent 9 a.m.-9 p.m. Eastern, Monday-
Friday (excluding holidays and weekends)

• Develop customized call center FAQ scripting, no limit on 
number of FAQs

• Callers validated through our fully integrated Customer 
Relationship Management (CRM) system

• Real-time monitoring for quality assurance

• Management of all calls that require escalation

• Foreign language services are available at an additional cost 
for languages other than English or Spanish

• Periodic call center reports on call volume, inbound and 
outbound calls, enrollments and website activity

• Maintain all systems for 3 months

SERVICES OVERVIEW

Breach Services
Customize your solution from our comprehensive offering

Confidential

DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 156 of 296



SINGLE BUREAU CREDIT MONITORING 

Monitoring of a single credit bureau for changes to the member’s credit file such as 
new credit inquires, new accounts opened, delinquent payments, improvements in the 
member’s credit report, bankruptcies, court judgements and tax liens, new addresses, 
new employers and other activities that affect the member’s credit record.  

TRI-BUREAU CREDIT MONITORING 

Monitoring of all three credit bureaus for changes to the member’s credit file such as 
new credit inquires, new accounts opened, delinquent payments, improvements in the 
member’s credit report, bankruptcies, court judgements and tax liens, new addresses, 
new employers and other activities that affect the member’s credit record.  

CYBERSCAN™ 

Dark Web monitoring of underground websites, chat rooms and malware, 24/7 to 
identify trading or selling of your personal information, like SSN’s, bank accounts, email 
addresses, medical ID numbers, driver’s license numbers, passport numbers, credit 
and debit cards, phone numbers, and other unique identifiers. 

IDENTITY THEFT INSURANCE  

Identity Theft Insurance will reimburse Covered Persons for expenses associated 
with restoring their identity should they become a victim of identity theft. If a Covered 
Person’s identity is compromised, the policy provides coverage for up to $1,000,000, 
with no deductible, from an A.M. Best “A-rated” carrier, subject to the terms, limits and/
or exclusions of the policy.  

FULLY MANAGED IDENTITY RECOVERY 

IDX’ fully-managed recovery service provides recovery and restoration for identity 
theft issues such as (but not limited to): Account Creation, Criminal ID Theft, Medical 
Fraud, Account Takeover, Rental Application, Tax Fraud, Benefit Fraud, Online Auction 
Fraud and Utility Creation. This service includes complete triage process for affected 
individuals who report suspicious activity, a personally assigned Recovery Advocate to 
fully manage recovery and restoration of each case and expert guidance provided for 
those with questions about id theft and protective measures. 

PRODUCT OVERVIEW

Monitoring & Identity Recovery
Tailored to the specific risks of the breach

IDX SINGLE BUREAU CREDIT 
MONITORING WITH CYBERSCAN
+ $1M INSURANCE
+ IDENTITY RECOVERY

Best for: An incident that includes  
PII and/or financial information,  
such as social security number,  
name, address, etc. It is our most 
popular configuration

IDX CYBERSCAN MONITORING
+ $1M INSURANCE
+ IDENTITY RECOVERY

Best for: Minors, decedents 
and breaches of healthcare 
information

IDX TRI-BUREAU CREDIT  
MONITORING WITH CYBERSCAN  
+ $1M INSURANCE  
+ IDENTITY RECOVERY

Best for: Breaches of financial 
information or high profile, highly 
sensitive information is exposed

IDX IDENTITY RECOVERY + $1M 
IDENTITY THEFT INSURANCE

Best for: Breaches that had 
minimal impact to PII

Confidential

DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 157 of 296



Communication Services
Fixed Price per Affected Individual

Small 
Breach 500  2,500  

5,000  10K 25K  100K  250K  750K 1.5M 3M 5M 10M

Project Management and Setup Custom  $1.50  $0.65  $0.60  $0.30  $0.15  $0.10  $0.08  $0.05  $0.05  $0.02  $0.01  $0.01 

Notification Letter Custom  $1.00  $0.88  $0.83  $0.80  $0.79  $0.70  $0.69  $0.66  $0.66  $0.66  $0.66  $0.66 

Website & Call Center
IVR & agent staffing Custom  $1.50  $0.50  $0.43  $0.33  $0.24  $0.21  $0.19  $0.18  $0.16  $0.15  $0.14  $0.12 

TOTAL Breach Services  
(price excludes monitoring) Custom  $4.00  $2.03  $1.76  $1.40  $1.18  $0.96  $0.93  $0.88  $0.85  $0.84  $0.82  $0.79 

Breach Communication Services
ESTIMATED PRICING

Affected individuals refers to the total number of individual records that were compromised. Breaches less than 500 records will be billed at the IDX minimum fixed fee of $1,999.99.
Per record pricing is on a sliding scale. The pricing provided above is subject to change and is for estimation purposes only. Breach pricing is dependent upon the nature of the breach and the needs of 
the client. The information in this document is proprietary to IDX™ and is privileged and confidential. Any disclosure, duplication, or use, in whole or in part, of this document, may only be obtained with the 
prior written consent of IDX™.

Additional Services Cost

Email Blast Notification Setup $449 per form/template

Email Blast List Cleansing $7,000/1M records

Email Ad Hoc Reporting $325/hour of PM time

Additional Notification Letter Versions (beyond 3) $395/version

Re-mail of Notification Letters $0.99 per letter + $499 remail fee

Lexis Nexus Enhanced Address Search $0.20-$0.25 per search

Fedex Next Day Air Mailing Market Rates for Origin to Destination

International Mailing Rates Market Rate above USPS 1st Class rate

Alternate Notification Pricing   
(for Email instead of USPS)

Email Notification Custom  $0.48  $0.44  $0.42  $0.41  $0.23  $0.09  $0.06  $0.04  $0.03  $0.03  $0.02  $0.02 

Confidential

DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 158 of 296



IDX Identity Protection Packages

ESTIMATED PRICING

The pricing provided above is subject to change and is for estimation purposes only.  Breach pricing is dependent upon the nature of the breach and the needs of the client. The information in this 
document is proprietary to IDX™ and is privileged and confidential. Any disclosure, duplication, or use, in whole or in part, of this document, may only be obtained with the prior written consent of IDX™.

(Priced per enrolled individual, one year)

Cost per Enrolled Individual (one year)

Small 500  2,500  5,000  10K 25K  100K  250K  750K 1.5M 3M 5M 10M

Single Bureau Credit Monitoring 
with Cyberscan Dark Web 
Monitoring + $1,000,000 
Insurance + Identity Recovery

$13.99  $12.99  $11.99  $11.99 $10.99  $9.99 $8.99  $6.99  $6.99  $5.99  $4.99  $4.49  $3.99

CyberScan Dark Web Monitoring 
+ $1,000,000 Insurance + Identity 
Recovery (Minor/Decedent 
Product)

$8.99  $7.99  $6.99  $6.99  $6.49  $5.99 $5.49  $4.99  $4.99  $3.99  $3.49  $2.99  $2.49 

Tri-Bureau Credit Monitoring with 
CyberScan Dark Web Monitoring 
+ $1,000,000 Insurance + Identity 
Recovery

$27.99 $24.99 $22.99 $20.99 $20.99 $19.99 $18.99 $17.99 $16.99 $15.99 $15.99 $14.99 $13.99 

Confidential

DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 159 of 296



 

 

EXHIBIT B 
2023-12 IDX – Breach Response Services  

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS 
TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH THE AGREEMENT DOCUMENT, COMPANY SHOULD FORWARD THE FOLLOWING 
INSURANCE CLAUSE AND SAMPLE INSURANCE FORM TO THEIR INSURANCE AGENT PRIOR TO PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL. 
 

A. Format/Time: COMPANY shall provide HOSPITAL with Certificates of Insurance, per the sample format (page B-3), for 
coverage as listed below, and endorsements affecting coverage required by this Agreement within ten (10) business days after 
the award by HOSPITAL. All policy certificates and endorsements shall be signed by a person authorized by that insurer and 
who is licensed by the State of Nevada in accordance with NRS 680A.300.  All required aggregate limits shall be disclosed and 
amounts entered on the Certificate of Insurance, and shall be maintained for the duration of the Agreement and any renewal 
periods. 

B. Best Key Rating: HOSPITAL requires insurance carriers to maintain during the Agreement term, a Best Key Rating of A.VII or 
higher, which shall be fully disclosed and entered on the Certificate of Insurance. 

C. HOSPITAL Coverage: HOSPITAL, its officers and employees must be expressly covered as additional insured’s except on 
Workers' Compensation. COMPANY's insurance shall be primary as respects HOSPITAL, its officers and employees. 

D. Endorsement/Cancellation: COMPANY's general liability and automobile liability insurance policy shall be endorsed to 
recognize specifically COMPANY’s contractual obligation of additional insured to HOSPITAL and must note that HOSPITAL will 
be given thirty (30) calendar days advance notice by mail of cancellation due to non-payment of premium or any other reason. 
Either a copy of the additional insured endorsement, or a copy of the policy language that gives HOSPITAL automatic additional 
insured status must be attached to any certificate of insurance. This does not apply to the Professional Liability coverage 

E. Deductibles: All deductibles and self-insured retentions shall be fully disclosed in the Certificates of Insurance and may not 
exceed $25,000. 

F. Aggregate Limits: If aggregate limits are imposed on bodily injury and property damage, then the amount of such limits must 
not be less than $2,000,000. 

G. Commercial General Liability: Subject to Paragraph 6 of this Exhibit, COMPANY shall maintain limits of no less than 
$1,000,000 combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury (including death), personal injury and property damages.  
Commercial general liability coverage shall be on a “per occurrence” basis only, not “claims made,” and be provided either on a 
Commercial General Liability or a Broad Form Comprehensive General Liability (including a Broad Form CGL endorsement) 
insurance form. Policies must contain a primary and non-contributory clause and must contain a waiver of subrogation 
endorsement. 

H. Automobile Liability:  Subject to Paragraph 6 of this Exhibit, COMPANY shall maintain limits of no less than $1,000,000 
combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage to include, but not be limited to, coverage against all 
insurance claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from services rendered by COMPANY and any 
auto used for the performance of services under this Agreement. 

I. Professional Liability: COMPANY shall maintain limits of no less than $1,000,000 aggregate. If the professional liability 
insurance provided is on a Claims Made Form, then the insurance coverage required must continue for a period of two (2) years 
beyond the completion or termination of this Agreement.  Any retroactive date must coincide with or predate the beginning of 
this and may not be advanced without the consent of HOSPITAL.  

J. Workers' Compensation: COMPANY shall obtain and maintain for the duration of this Agreement, a work certificate and/or a 
certificate issued by an insurer qualified to underwrite workers’ compensation insurance in the State of Nevada, in accordance 
with Nevada Revised Statutes Chapters 616A-616D, inclusive, provided, however, a COMPANY that is a Sole Proprietor shall 
be required to submit an affidavit (Attachment 1) indicating that COMPANY has elected not to be included in the terms, conditions 
and provisions of Chapters 616A-616D, inclusive, and is otherwise in compliance with those terms, conditions and provisions. 

K. Failure To Maintain Coverage:  If COMPANY fails to maintain any of the insurance coverage required herein, HOSPITAL may 
withhold payment, order COMPANY to stop the work, declare COMPANY in breach, suspend or terminate the Agreement, 
assess liquidated damages as defined herein, or may purchase replacement insurance or pay premiums due on existing policies.  
HOSPITAL may collect any replacement insurance costs or premium payments made from COMPANY or deduct the amount 
paid from any sums due COMPANY under this Agreement. 

L. Additional Insurance: COMPANY is encouraged to purchase any such additional insurance as it deems necessary. 

M. Damages: COMPANY is required to remedy all injuries to persons and damage or loss to any property of HOSPITAL, caused 
in whole or in part by COMPANY, its subcontractors or anyone employed, directed or supervised by COMPANY. 

N. Cost: COMPANY shall pay all associated costs for the specified insurance.  The cost shall be included in the price(s). 

O. Insurance Submittal Address:  All Insurance Certificates requested shall be sent to University Medical Center, Attention: 
Contracts Management. See the Notice Clause in the Agreement for the appropriate mailing address. 

P. Insurance Form Instructions: The following information must be filled in by COMPANY’s Insurance Company representative: 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 160 of 296



 

 

1. Insurance Broker’s name, complete address, phone and fax numbers. 

2. COMPANY’s name, complete address, phone and fax numbers. 

3. Insurance Company’s Best Key Rating 

4. Commercial General Liability (Per Occurrence) 
(A) Policy Number 
(B) Policy Effective Date 
(C) Policy Expiration Date 
(D) Each Occurrence ($1,000,000) 
(E) Damage to Rented Premises ($50,000) 
(F) Medical Expenses ($5,000) 
(G) Personal & Advertising Injury ($1,000,000) 
(H) General Aggregate ($2,000,000) 
(I) Products - Completed Operations Aggregate ($2,000,000) 

5. Automobile Liability (Any Auto) 
(J) Policy Number 
(K) Policy Effective Date 
(L) Policy Expiration Date 
(M) Combined Single Limit ($1,000,000) 

6. Worker’s Compensation: The COMPANY shall obtain and maintain for the duration of this Agreement, a work certificate 
and/or a certificate issued by an insurer qualified to underwrite workers’ compensation insurance in the State of Nevada, 
in accordance with Nevada Revised Statutes Chapters 616A-616D 

7. Professional Liability 
(N) Policy Number 
(O) Policy Effective Date 
(P) Policy Expiration Date 
(Q) Aggregate ($1,000,000) 

8. Description: Project (must be identified on the initial insurance form and each renewal form). 

9. Certificate Holder: 

University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
c/o Contracts Management 
1800 W. Charleston Blvd. 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102 

10. Appointed Agent Signature to include license number and issuing state. 
 

11. Notwithstanding any other provision to the contrary herein, the parties hereto agree that (1) all coverage provided by 
COMPANY hereunder shall be on a per policy basis; (2) COMPANY shall provide evidence of all such coverages upon 
request; (3) COMPANY agrees to provide HOSPITAL with a written notice of cancellation in accordance with 
COMPANY’S insurance policies; (4) all references herein to any ISO, Acord or other insurance form shall be read as 
to include “or equivalent, at the discretion of COMPANY”; and (5) COMPANY reserves the right to meet 
Excess/Umbrella Liability coverage requirements by increasing its Commercial General Liability, Business Automobile 
Liability and Employer’s Liability Insurance limits. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 161 of 296



DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 162 of 296



Technology E&O/Cyber
Policy#: MTP9031322 09
Policy Term: 1/31/2024 - 8/2/2024

Issuing Co.: Indian Harbor Insurance Company

Ded? $-
Retention?  $250,000.00 
Each Occurence  $5,000,000.00 
Aggregate  $5,000,000.00 

First Excess Technology E&O/Cyber
Policy#: PRX30031689401
Policy Term: 1/31/2024 - 8/2/2024

Issuing Co.: Endurance American Specialty Insurance Company

Ded? $-
Retention? n/a
Each Occurence  $5M x/s $5M 
Aggregate  $5M x/s $5M 

Second Excess Technology E&O/Cyber
Policy#: XCE-295182J-01
Policy Term: 1/31/2024 - 8/2/2024

Issuing Co.: Westfield Specialty Insurance Company

Ded? $-
Retention? n/a
Each Occurence  $5M x/s $10M 
Aggregate  $5M x/s $10M 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 163 of 296



 

 

EXHIBIT C 
 SUBCONTRACTOR INFORMATION 
DEFINITIONS: 

MINORITY OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (MBE): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which 
performs a commercially useful function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more minority persons of Black 
American, Hispanic American, Asian-Pacific American or Native American ethnicity. 

 
WOMEN OWNED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (WBE): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs 
a commercially useful function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more women. 

 
PHYSICALLY-CHALLENGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (PBE): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit 
which performs a commercially useful function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more disabled individuals 
pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act. 

 
SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (SBE): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a 
commercially useful function, is not owned and controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or physically-
challenged, and where gross annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000. 

 
NEVADA BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (NBE): Any Nevada business which has the resources necessary to sufficiently perform 
identified County projects, and is owned or controlled by individuals that are not designated as socially or economically 
disadvantaged. 
 
VETERAN OWNED ENTERPRISE (VET): A Nevada business at least 51% owned/controlled by a veteran.  
 
DISABLED VETERAN OWNED ENTERPRISE (DVET): A Nevada business at least 51% owned/controlled by a disabled 
veteran.  

 

It is our intent to utilize the following MBE, WBE, PBE, SBE, and NBE subcontractors in association with this Agreement: 
 

1. Subcontractor Name: Language Training Center   
Contact Person:      Telephone Number:  
Description of Work:  
  
Estimated Percentage of Total Dollars:  
Business Type:  ___ MBE ___ WBE ___ PBE _X__ SBE ___ NBE 
 

2. Subcontractor Name: Specialty Print Communications  
Contact Person:      Telephone Number:  
Description of Work:  
  
Estimated Percentage of Total Dollars:  
Business Type:  ___ MBE ___ WBE ___ PBE _X__ SBE ___ NBE 
 

3. Subcontractor Name: Concord Technologies    
Contact Person:      Telephone Number:  
Description of Work:  
  
Estimated Percentage of Total Dollars:  
Business Type:  ___ MBE ___ WBE ___ PBE _X__ SBE ___ NBE 
 

4. Subcontractor Name:  
Contact Person:      Telephone Number:  
Description of Work:  
  
Estimated Percentage of Total Dollars:  
Business Type:  ___ MBE ___ WBE ___ PBE ___ SBE ___ NBE 

 
□  No MBE, WBE, PBE, SBE, or NBE subcontractors will be used 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 164 of 296



EXHIBIT D 
Business Associate Agreement 

This Agreement is made effective as of the date of the last signature, by and between University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada (hereinafter referred to as “Covered Entity”), a county hospital duly organized pursuant to Chapter 450 of the Nevada 
Revised Statutes, with its principal place of business at 1800 West Charleston Boulevard, Las Vegas, Nevada, 89102, and Identity Theft 
Guard Solutions, Inc. d/b/a IDX, a ZeroFox company, hereinafter referred to as “Business Associate”, (individually, a “Party” and 
collectively, the “Parties”).   

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, Sections 261 through 264 of the federal Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Public Law 
104-191, known as “the Administrative Simplification provisions,” direct the Department of Health and Human Services to develop 
standards to protect the security, confidentiality and integrity of health information; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Administrative Simplification provisions, the Secretary of Health and Human Services issued 
regulations modifying 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 (the “HIPAA Rules”); and 

WHEREAS, the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 (Pub. L. 111-5), pursuant to Title XIII of Division A and Title 
IV of Division B, called the “Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health” (“HITECH”) Act, as well as the Genetic 
Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008 (“GINA,” Pub. L. 110-233), provide for modifications to the HIPAA Rules; and  

WHEREAS, the Secretary, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, published modifications to 45 CFR Parts 160 and 
164 under HITECH and GINA, and other modifications on January 25, 2013, the “Final Rule,” and 

WHEREAS, the Parties wish to enter into or have entered into an arrangement whereby Business Associate will provide certain 
services to Covered Entity, and, pursuant to such arrangement, Business Associate may be considered a “Business Associate” of 
Covered Entity as defined in the HIPAA Rules (the agreement evidencing such arrangement is entitled “Underlying Agreement”); and  

WHEREAS, Business Associate will have access to Protected Health Information (as defined below) in fulfilling its 
responsibilities under such arrangement;  

THEREFORE, in consideration of the Parties’ continuing obligations under the Underlying Agreement, compliance with the 
HIPAA Rules, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and intending 
to be legally bound, the Parties agree to the provisions of this Agreement in order to address the requirements of the HIPAA Rules and 
to protect the interests of both Parties.   

I. DEFINITIONS 

“HIPAA Rules” means the Privacy, Security, Breach Notification, and Enforcement Rules at 45 CFR Part 160 and Part 164. 

“Protected Health Information” means individually identifiable health information created, received, maintained, or transmitted in any 
medium, including, without limitation, all information, data, documentation, and materials, including without limitation, demographic, 
medical and financial information, that relates to the past, present, or future physical or mental health or condition of an individual; the 
provision of health care to an individual; or the past, present, or future payment for the provision of health care to an individual; and that 
identifies the individual or with respect to which there is a reasonable basis to believe the information can be used to identify the individual. 

“Protected Health Information” includes without limitation “Electronic Protected Health Information” as defined below. 

“Electronic Protected Health Information” means Protected Health Information which is transmitted by Electronic Media (as defined in the 
HIPAA Rules) or maintained in Electronic Media. 

The following terms used in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as defined in the HIPAA Rules:  Administrative Safeguards, 
Breach, Business Associate, Business Associate Agreement, Covered Entity, Individually Identifiable Health Information, Minimum 
Necessary, Physical Safeguards, Security Incident, and Technical Safeguards.  

II. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

Business Associate and Covered Entity acknowledge and agree that in the event of an inconsistency between the provisions of this 
Agreement and mandatory provisions of the HIPAA Rules, the HIPAA Rules shall control.  Where provisions of this Agreement are 
different than those mandated in the HIPAA Rules, but are nonetheless permitted by the HIPAA Rules, the provisions of this Agreement 
shall control.   

Business Associate acknowledges and agrees that all Protected Health Information that is disclosed or made available in any form 
(including paper, oral, audio recording or electronic media) by Covered Entity to Business Associate or is created or received by Business 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 165 of 296



 

 

Associate on Covered Entity’s behalf shall be subject to this Agreement.  
Business Associate has read, acknowledges, and agrees that the Secretary, U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, published 
modifications to 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164 under HITECH and GINA, and other modifications on January 25, 2013, the “Final Rule,” and 
the Final Rule significantly impacted and expanded Business Associates’ requirements to adhere to the HIPAA Rules.   
 
III. USE AND DISCLOSURE OF PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION 

 
(a) Business Associate agrees that all uses and disclosures of Protected Health information shall be subject to the limits 
set forth in 45 CFR 164.514 regarding Minimum Necessary requirements and limited data sets. 
 
(b) Business Associate agrees to use or disclose Protected Health Information solely: 

(i)  For meeting its business obligations as set forth in any agreements between the Parties evidencing their 
business relationship; or  
(ii)  as required by applicable law, rule or regulation, or by accrediting or credentialing organization to whom 
Covered Entity is required to disclose such information or as otherwise permitted under this Agreement or the 
Underlying Agreement (if consistent with this Agreement and the HIPAA Rules). 
 

(c) Where Business Associate is permitted to use Subcontractors that create, receive, maintain, or transmit Protected 
Health Information; Business Associate agrees to execute a “Business Associate Agreement” with Subcontractor as defined in 
the HIPAA Rules that includes the at least as restrictive covenants for using and disclosing, safeguarding, auditing, and otherwise 
administering Protected Health Information as outlined in Sections I through VII of this Agreement (45 CFR 164.314). 
 
(d) Business Associate will acquire written authorization in the form of an update or amendment to this Agreement and 
Underlying Agreement prior to: 

(i)  Directly or indirectly receiving any remuneration for the sale or exchange of any Protected Health Information; 
or 
(ii)  Utilizing Protected Health Information for any activity that might be deemed “Marketing” under the HIPAA 
rules. 
 

IV. SAFEGUARDING PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION 
 
(a) Business Associate agrees: 
 

(i)  To implement appropriate safeguards and internal controls to prevent the use or disclosure of Protected Health 
Information other than as permitted in this Agreement or by the HIPAA Rules.   
(ii)  To implement “Administrative Safeguards,” “Physical Safeguards,” and “Technical Safeguards” as defined in 
the HIPAA Rules to protect and secure the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of Electronic Protected Health 
Information (45 CFR 164.308, 164.310, 164.312).  Business Associate shall document policies and procedures for 
safeguarding Electronic Protected Health Information in accordance with 45 CFR 164.316. 
(iii)  To notify Covered Entity of any unauthorized access, use, disclosure, modification, or destruction of 
information or interference with system operations in an information system (“Security Incident”) upon discovery of the 
Security Incident.  This  constitutes notice of the ongoing existence and occurrence of attempted but unsuccessful 
Security Incidents that do not result in unauthorized access to, or use, loss, modification, destruction, or disclosure of, 
PHI, such as pings and other broadcast attacks, port scans, unsuccessful log-on attempts, unsuccessful denial of 
service attacks, or any combination thereof. 

 
(b) When an impermissible acquisition, access, use, or disclosure of Protected Health Information (“Breach”) occurs, 
Business Associate agrees: 
 

(i)  To notify Covered Entity’s Chief Privacy Officer immediately upon discovery of the Breach, and 
(ii)  Within 15 business days of the discovery of the Breach, provide Covered Entity with all required content of 
notification in accordance with 45 CFR 164.410 and 45 CFR 164.404, and 
(iii)  To fully cooperate with Covered Entity’s analysis and final determination on whether to notify affected 
individuals, media, or Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, and 
(iv)  To pay all costs associated with the notification of affected individuals and costs associated with mitigating 
potential harmful effects to affected individuals. 
 

V. RIGHT TO AUDIT 
 
(a) Business Associate agrees: 
 

(i)  To provide Covered Entity with timely and appropriate access to records, electronic records, HIPAA 
assessment questionnaires provided by Covered Entity, personnel, or facilities sufficient for Covered Entity to gain 
reasonable assurance that Business Associate is in compliance with the HIPAA Rules and the provisions of this 
Agreement. 
(ii)  That in accordance with the HIPAA Rules, the Secretary of the U.S. Department of Health and Human 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 166 of 296



 

 

Services has the right to review, audit, or investigate Business Associate’s records, electronic records, facilities, 
systems, and practices related to safeguarding, use, and disclosure of Protected Health Information to ensure Covered 
Entity’s or Business Associate’s compliance with the HIPAA Rules.   
 
 

VI. COVERED ENTITY REQUESTS AND ACCOUNTING FOR DISCLOSURES 
 

(a) At the Covered Entity’s Request, Business Associate agrees: 
 

(i)  To comply with any requests for restrictions on certain disclosures of Protected Health Information pursuant 
to Section 164.522 of the HIPAA Rules to which Covered Entity has agreed and of which Business Associate is notified 
by Covered Entity.   
(ii)  To make available Protected Health Information to the extent and in the manner required by Section 164.524 
of the HIPAA Rules.  If Business Associate maintains Protected Health Information electronically, it agrees to make 
such Protected Health Information electronically available to the Covered Entity.   
(iii)  To make Protected Health Information available for amendment and incorporate any amendments to 
Protected Health Information in accordance with the requirements of Section 164.526 of the HIPAA Rules.   
(iv)  To account for disclosures of Protected Health Information and make an accounting of such disclosures 
available to Covered Entity as required by Section 164.528 of the HIPAA Rules.  Business Associate shall provide any 
accounting required within 15 business days of request from Covered Entity.  
  

VII. TERMINATION 
 

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, Covered Entity shall have the right to terminate this Agreement and the 
Underlying Agreement immediately if Covered Entity determines that Business Associate has violated any material term of this 
Agreement.  If Covered Entity reasonably believes that Business Associate will violate a material term of this Agreement and, where 
practicable, Covered Entity gives written notice to Business Associate of such belief within a reasonable time after forming such belief, 
and Business Associate fails to provide adequate written assurances to Covered Entity that it will not breach the cited term of this 
Agreement within a reasonable period of time given the specific circumstances, but in any event, before the threatened breach is to occur, 
then Covered Entity shall have the right to terminate this Agreement and the Underlying Agreement immediately.   
  
At termination of this Agreement, the Underlying Agreement (or any similar documentation of the business relationship of the Parties), or 
upon request of Covered Entity, whichever occurs first, Business Associate will destroy all Protected Health Information received from or 
created or received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity that Business Associate still maintains in any form and provide 
Covered Entity with written certification of same, or if such destruction is not feasible, Business Associate will provide written certification 
to Covered Entity of same and extend the protections of this Agreement to the information and limit further uses and disclosures to those 
purposes that make the return or destruction of the information not feasible.   
 
VIII. MISCELLANEOUS 

 
Except as expressly stated herein or the HIPAA Rules, the Parties to this Agreement do not intend to create any rights in any third parties. 
The obligations of Business Associate under this Section shall survive the expiration, termination, or cancellation of this Agreement, the 
Underlying Agreement and/or the business relationship of the Parties, and shall continue to bind Business Associate, its agents, 
employees, contractors, successors, and assigns as set forth herein. 
 
This Agreement may be amended or modified only in a writing signed by the Parties.  No Party may assign its respective rights and 
obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other Party. Notwithstanding the above, a party may assign to a 
successor party in interest without obtaining such consent provided that, all of the following conditions must be met: (i) such assignment 
is in connection with a merger or corporate reorganization, by operation of law, or in connection with a sale of all or substantially all of the 
assets to which this Agreement relates; (ii) the assigning party provides written notice to the non-assigning party prior to the effective date 
of such assignment; and (iii) there is a written agreement, wherein the party to which the rights are assigned accepts all the duties and 
obligations of the assignor hereunder.  None of the provisions of this Agreement are intended to create, nor will they be deemed to create 
any relationship between the Parties other than that of independent parties contracting with each other solely for the purposes of effecting 
the provisions of this Agreement and any other agreements between the Parties evidencing their business relationship.  This Agreement 
will be governed by the laws of the State of Nevada.  No change, waiver or discharge of any liability or obligation hereunder on any one 
or more occasions shall be deemed a waiver of performance of any continuing or other obligation, or shall prohibit enforcement of any 
obligation, on any other occasion. 
 
In the event that any provision of this Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder 
of the provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and effect.  In addition, in the event a Party believes in good faith that any 
provision of this Agreement fails to comply with the HIPAA Rules, such Party shall notify the other Party in writing.  For a period of up to 
thirty days, the Parties shall address in good faith such concern and amend the terms of this Agreement, if necessary to bring it into 
compliance.  If, after such thirty-day period, the Agreement fails to comply with the HIPAA Rules, then either Party has the right to 
terminate upon written notice to the other Party. 
 

[Signatures on Next Page] 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 167 of 296



 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year written below. 
 
COVERED ENTITY:     BUSINESS ASSOCIATE: 
 
 
By: ___________________________                              By: __________________________ 
      Mason Van Houweling 
 
Title: CEO                          Title: ________________________ 
 
Date: __________________________           Date: _________________________ 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 168 of 296



 

 

Exhibit E 
 

SUBCONTRACTORS 

 

Subcontractor Services Location Access to Data 
TransUnion Interactive, Inc. Credit Monitoring California Yes 

CSIdentity Corp (Experian) 

Social Security Trace, Court 

Records, and Change of Address 

monitoring 

California Yes 

LTC Language Solutions Conversational Assistance California in conversation, not stored 

Amazon Web Services MyIDCare platform hosting Oregon, Virginia hosting but no access 

Salesforce.com, Inc. Customer Relationship 

Management (CRM) - Customer 

records 

California hosting but no access 

Box.com Secure file sharing California 
hosting but no access 
(aggregate reporting only) 

Etech Customer service/phone support Texas Yes 

Specialty Print 

Communications 
Print/mail services Illinois Yes 

KP Corp Print/mail services California Yes 

DTI Print/mail services Georgia Yes 

LexisNexis Address search  New York Yes 

Concord III e-Fax services for call center Seattle Yes 

ZeroFox, Inc. 
Customer service/phone support 

Dark web monitoring 
Maryland Yes 

iContact Email services North Carolina Yes 

 

Company will give notice to Hospital (1) thirty (30) days in advance of any changes to Subcontractors with access to Hospital 

Data (as indicated with a “Yes” in the applicable column above including and additions thereto and/or replacements thereof) and 

(2) no more than thirty (30) days following any changes to any other Subcontractors; whereupon Hospital may elect to terminate 

this SOW in its discretion, provided, however, that Company reserves the right to make changes to Subcontractors with access 

to Hospital data on less than thirty (30) days’ notice if it deems the change necessary or advisable to the provision of applicable 

services, and further provided that the replacement Subcontractor has provided a SOC 2, Type II report issued pursuant to 

SSAE 18 and has the ability to comply, and does in fact comply, with the obligations of this Agreement.   

 

 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: A070134F-34DF-4EB6-AA5C-ED3D4F6D7FE6

Page 169 of 296



REVISED 7/25/2014 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE  

DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS FORM 

Purpose of the Form 

 

The purpose of the Disclosure of Ownership/Principals Form is to gather ownership information pertaining to the business entity for use by the University Medical 

Center of Southern Nevada Governing Board (“GB”) in determining whether members of the GB should exclude themselves from voting on agenda items where 

they have, or may be perceived as having a conflict of interest, and to determine compliance with Nevada Revised Statute 281A.430, contracts in which a public 

officer or employee has interest is prohibited. 
 

General Instructions 
 

Completion and submission of this Form is a condition of approval or renewal of a contract or lease and/or release of monetary funding between the disclosing 

entity and University Medical Center of Southern Nevada.  Failure to submit the requested information may result in a refusal by the GB to enter into an 
agreement/contract and/or release monetary funding to such disclosing entity. 
 

Detailed Instructions 
 

All sections of the Disclosure of Ownership form must be completed.  If not applicable, write in N/A. 
 

Business Entity Type – Indicate if the entity is an Individual, Partnership, Limited Liability Company, Corporation, Trust, Non-profit Organization, or Other.  
When selecting ‘Other’, provide a description of the legal entity. 
 

Non-Profit Organization (NPO) - Any non-profit corporation, group, association, or corporation duly filed and registered as required by state law. 
 

Business Designation Group – Indicate if the entity is a Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE), Small 
Business Enterprise (SBE), Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE), Veteran Owned Business (VET),  Disabled Veteran Owned Business (DVET), or 

Emerging Small Business (ESB) . This is needed in order to provide utilization statistics to the Legislative Council Bureau, and will be used only for such 

purpose.   
 

 Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 
is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more minority persons of Black American, Hispanic American, Asian-Pacific American or Native 

American ethnicity. 

 Women Owned Business Enterprise (WBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 
is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more women. 

 Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful 
function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more disabled individuals pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act. 

 Small Business Enterprise (SBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function, is not owned 
and controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or physically-challenged, and where gross annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000. 

 Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (VET): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a commercially useful 
function and is at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more U.S. Veterans. 

 Disabled Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (DVET):  A Nevada business at least 51 percent owned/controlled by a disabled veteran. 

 Emerging Small Business (ESB): Certified by the Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development effective January, 2014. Approved into 

Nevada law during the 77th Legislative session as a result of AB294. 
 

Business Name (include d.b.a., if applicable) – Enter the legal name of the business entity and enter the “Doing Business As” (d.b.a.) name, if applicable.   
 

Corporate/Business Address, Business Telephone, Business Fax, and Email – Enter the street address, telephone and fax numbers, and email of the named 

business entity.   
 

Nevada Local Business Address, Local Business Telephone, Local Business Fax, and Email – If business entity is out-of-state, but operates the business from a 

location in Nevada, enter the Nevada street address, telephone and fax numbers, point of contact and email of the local office. Please note that the local address 
must be an address from which the business is operating from that location. Please do not include a P.O. Box number, unless required by the U.S. Postal Service, 

or a business license hanging address. 
 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents employed by this firm. (Do not leave blank. If none or zero, put the number 0 in the space provided.) 
 

List of Owners/Officers – Include the full name, title and percentage of ownership of each person who has ownership or financial interest in the business entity.  If 

the business is a publicly-traded corporation or non-profit organization, list all Corporate Officers and Directors only.   
 

For All Contracts – (Not required for publicly-traded corporations) 

1) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity are a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s).  If yes, the following paragraph applies. 

 

In accordance with NRS 281A.430.1, a public officer or employee shall not bid on or enter into a contract between a government agency and any 
private business in which he has a significant financial interest, except as provided for in subsections 2, 3, and 4. 
 

2) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity have a second degree of consanguinity or affinity 
relation to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) (reference form on Page 2 for 

definition).  If YES, complete the Disclosure of Relationship Form.  
 

A professional service is defined as a business entity that offers business/financial consulting, legal, physician, architect, engineer or other professional services. 
 

Signature and Print Name – Requires signature of an authorized representative and the date signed. 
 

Disclosure of Relationship Form – If any individual members, partners, owners or principals of the business entity is presently a University Medical Center of 

Southern Nevada employee, public officer or official, or has a second degree of consanguinity or affinity relationship to a University Medical Center of Southern 

Nevada employee, public officer or official, this section must be completed in its entirety.   
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 755638D5-3935-4720-90B7-20C2C8869D23

Page 170 of 296



DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS 

1 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

Business Entity Type (Please select one) 

 Sole 
Proprietorship 

Partnership 
 Limited Liability 

Company  
 Corporation  Trust 

 Non-Profit   
Organization 

  Other 

Business Designation Group (Please select all that apply) 

 MBE  WBE  SBE  PBE  VET DVET  ESB 

Minority Business 
Enterprise 

Women-Owned 
Business 
Enterprise 

Small Business 
Enterprise 

Physically Challenged 
Business Enterprise 

Veteran Owned 
Business 

Disabled Veteran 
Owned Business 

Emerging Small 
Business 

 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents Employed: 

  

Corporate/Business Entity Name:   

(Include d.b.a., if applicable)  

Street Address:  Website: 

City, State and Zip Code: 
 POC Name: 

Email: 

Telephone No:  Fax No: 

Nevada Local Street Address: 

(If different from above) 

 Website: 

 City, State and Zip Code:  Local Fax No: 

Local Telephone No: 
 Local POC Name: 

Email: 

All entities, with the exception of publicly-traded and non-profit organizations, must list the names of individuals holding more than five percent (5%) ownership or 
financial interest in the business entity appearing before the Board. 
 
Publicly-traded entities and non-profit organizations shall list all Corporate Officers and Directors in lieu of disclosing the names of individuals with 
ownership or financial interest. The disclosure requirement, as applied to land-use applications, extends to the applicant and the landowner(s). 

Entities include all business associations organized under or governed by Title 7 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, including but not limited to private corporations, 

close corporations, foreign corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, limited partnerships, and professional corporations. 
 

 

  Full Name  Title  % Owned 
(Not required for Publicly Traded 

Corporations/Non-profit organizations) 

 

      

      

      

      

This section is not required for publicly-traded corporations.  Are you a publicly-traded corporation?             Yes       No 

1. Are any individual members, partners, owners or principals, involved in the business entity, a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time 
employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please note that University Medical Center of Southern Nevada employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) may not 
perform any work on professional service contracts, or other contracts, which are not subject to competitive bid.) 

 

2. Do any individual members, partners, owners or principals have a spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent, in-law or brother/sister, half-brother/half-
sister, grandchild, grandparent,  related to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please complete the Disclosure of Relationship form on Page 2.  If no, please print N/A on Page 2.)  

 

I certify under penalty of perjury, that all of the information provided herein is current, complete, and accurate. I also understand that the University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada Governing Board will not take action on land-use approvals, contract approvals, land sales, leases or exchanges without the completed disclosure 
form. 

 

    

Signature 
 

 Print Name  

    

Title  Date  

x

Identity Theft Guard Solutions, Inc. 
IDX
4145 SW Watson Ave, Suite 400

Beaverton, OR 97005

800-939-4170

idx.us

Ian Kelly
ian.kelly@idx.us

ZeroFox Holdings, Inc. 100%

x

x

Identity Theft Guard Solutions, Inc. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 755638D5-3935-4720-90B7-20C2C8869D23

Tim Bender

3/15/2024CFO

Page 171 of 296



DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP 

2 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

 
List any disclosures below: 
(Mark N/A, if not applicable.) 

 

NAME OF BUSINESS 
OWNER/PRINCIPAL 

NAME OF UMC* 
EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

AND JOB TITLE 

RELATIONSHIP TO 
 UMC* 

EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

UMC* 
EMPLOYEE’S/OFFICIAL’S 

DEPARTMENT 

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 
* UMC employee means an employee of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
 
“Consanguinity” is a relationship by blood.  “Affinity” is a relationship by marriage. 
 
“To the second degree of consanguinity” applies to the candidate’s first and second degree of blood relatives as 
follows: 
 

 Spouse – Registered Domestic Partners – Children – Parents – In-laws (first degree) 
 

 Brothers/Sisters – Half-Brothers/Half-Sisters – Grandchildren – Grandparents – In-laws (second degree) 
 
 

 
For UMC Use Only: 

 
If any Disclosure of Relationship is noted above, please complete the following:     
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in the contracting/selection process for this particular agenda item? 
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in any way with the business in performance of the contract? 
 
Notes/Comments: 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Signature  
 
____________________________________ 
Print Name  
Authorized Department Representative 

 
 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 755638D5-3935-4720-90B7-20C2C8869D23

Page 172 of 296



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
March 27, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

9 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Agreement with ROI-IT, LLC 
 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the 
Agreement with ROI-IT, LLC for Sophos Endpoint Security services; or take action as 
deemed appropriate. (For possible action) (For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number: 5420.000      Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center: 3000854000     Funded Pgm/Grant: N/A 
Description: Sophos Endpoint Security      
Bid/RFP/CBE: NRS 332.115(1)(h) – Software 
Term: 9/30/2024 - 9/29/2027 
Amount: $1,476,513.02     
Out Clause: Budget Act and Fiscal Fund Out 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
This request is to enter into a new Agreement with ROI-IT, LLC (“ROI-IT”) for Sophos Endpoint Security on 
all workstations and servers, along with the Sophos Managed Threat Response monitoring service. This cyber 
security platform will help managed detection, network detection, and response, which will provide better 
protection against advanced malware and targeted attacks. UMC will compensate ROI-IT $1,476,513.02 for 
three (3) years from September 30, 2024, through September 29, 2027. 
 
UMC’s Chief Information Officer has reviewed and recommends approval of this Agreement.  This 
Agreement has been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 
 
ROI-IT currently holds a Clark County business license. 
 
This Agreement was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their March 20, 2024 
meeting and recommended for approval by the Governing Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 173 of 296



www.roi-it.net                                                                                                                                                                                                 702.425.8414
Page 1 of 2

QUOTE
University Medical Center of Southern Nevada
1800 W Charleston Blvd
LAS VEGAS NV 89102
 

Sophos Cyber Security Renewal - 36 Months

Reference: 
- This quote is governed by the terms and conditions of the 
Sophos End User Agreement 
   executed by the parties effective September 30, 2021.
- ROI-IT, LLC Business Associate Agreement effective March 1, 
2023 

Date
Mar 12, 2024

Expires
Apr 12, 2024

Account Number

Quote Number
RQ-2037

ROI-IT, LLC
6955 N Durango Drive
Ste. 1115 # 328
LAS VEGAS NV 89149
UNITED STATES

Reference
Sophos  ADV-NDR-MDR 
Complete - 36 MTHS

Description Quantity Unit Price Tax Amount USD

MDRCEU36AJRCAA - Sophos Central 
Managed Detection and Response 
Complete (MDR)
- 5000-9999 Users - 36 Months - Renewal

Start Date:  9/30/2024
End Date:   9/29/2027
(Existing License L0005347002)

5000.00 201.55 Tax Exempt 1007750.00

MDRCSS36BGRCAA - Sophos Central 
Managed Detection and Response 
Complete Server (MDR)
- 100-999 Servers - 36 Months - Renewal

Start Date:  9/30/2024
End Date:   9/29/2027
(Existing License L0005347002)

800.00 312.05 Tax Exempt 249640.00

MDRNDU36AJRCAA - Sophos Central 
Network Detection and Response (NDR)
- 5000-9999 users and servers - 36 MOS - 
Renewal

Start Date:  9/30/2024
End Date:   9/29/2027

5800.00 26.25 Tax Exempt 152250.00

EPEE3CTAA - Sophos Enhanced Plus 
Support - 5000-9999 Users - 36 Months - 
Renewal 

1.00 66873.02 Tax Exempt 66873.02

Subtotal 1476513.02

Total No Tax 0% 0.00

TOTAL USD 1476513.02

Terms

Page 174 of 296

http://www.roi-it.net


www.roi-it.net                                                                                                                                                                                                        702.425.8414
Page 2 of 2

Accepted and Agreed to by:

Please Sign For Approval: _____________________________ Print Name/Title of Signatory: _________________________ Date: ____________

Company representative signature above hereby attests and acknowledges that he or she is duly authorized and has the legal capacity to execute and 
approve this quote. If a purchase order is not provided, this signed quote shall serve as the purchase order with Net 30-day payment terms unless 
otherwise stated in an Invoice, Statement of Work (SOW) or other document(s).

This quote contains information from ROI-IT that is confidential and privileged. The information is intended for the private use of the customer. Customer 
shall keep the contents of this document in confidence and not copy, disclose, or distribute outside their organization without written request to and 
written confirmation from ROI-IT. If you are not the intended recipient, be aware any disclosure, copying, or distribution of the contents of this document 
is prohibited. 

Page 175 of 296

http://www.roi-it.net


Page 176 of 296



Page 177 of 296



Page 178 of 296



Page 179 of 296



Page 180 of 296



Page 181 of 296



Page 182 of 296



Page 183 of 296



Page 184 of 296



Page 185 of 296



Page 186 of 296



Page 187 of 296



Page 188 of 296



Page 189 of 296



Page 190 of 296



Page 191 of 296



Page 192 of 296



Page 193 of 296



Page 194 of 296



Page 195 of 296



REVISED 7/25/2014 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE  

DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS FORM 

Purpose of the Form 

 

The purpose of the Disclosure of Ownership/Principals Form is to gather ownership information pertaining to the business entity for use by the University Medical 

Center of Southern Nevada Governing Board (“GB”) in determining whether members of the GB should exclude themselves from voting on agenda items where 

they have, or may be perceived as having a conflict of interest, and to determine compliance with Nevada Revised Statute 281A.430, contracts in which a public 
officer or employee has interest is prohibited. 
 

General Instructions 
 

Completion and submission of this Form is a condition of approval or renewal of a contract or lease and/or release of monetary funding between the disclosing 
entity and University Medical Center of Southern Nevada.  Failure to submit the requested information may result in a refusal by the GB to enter into an 

agreement/contract and/or release monetary funding to such disclosing entity. 
 

Detailed Instructions 
 

All sections of the Disclosure of Ownership form must be completed.  If not applicable, write in N/A. 
 

Business Entity Type – Indicate if the entity is an Individual, Partnership, Limited Liability Company, Corporation, Trust, Non-profit Organization, or Other.  

When selecting ‘Other’, provide a description of the legal entity. 
 

Non-Profit Organization (NPO) - Any non-profit corporation, group, association, or corporation duly filed and registered as required by state law. 
 

Business Designation Group – Indicate if the entity is a Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE), Small 

Business Enterprise (SBE), Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE), Veteran Owned Business (VET), Disabled Veteran Owned Business (DVET), or 

Emerging Small Business (ESB) . This is needed in order to provide utilization statistics to the Legislative Council Bureau, and will be used only for such 
purpose.   
 

 Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 

is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more minority persons of Black American, Hispanic American, Asian-Pacific American or Native 

American ethnicity. 

 Women Owned Business Enterprise (WBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 

is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more women. 

 Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful 

function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more disabled individuals pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act. 

 Small Business Enterprise (SBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function, is not owned 

and controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or physically-challenged, and where gross annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000. 

 Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (VET): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a commercially useful 

function and is at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more U.S. Veterans. 

 Disabled Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (DVET):  A Nevada business at least 51 percent owned/controlled by a disabled veteran. 

 Emerging Small Business (ESB): Certified by the Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development effective January, 2014. Approved into 

Nevada law during the 77th Legislative session as a result of AB294. 
 

Business Name (include d.b.a., if applicable) – Enter the legal name of the business entity and enter the “Doing Business As” (d.b.a.) name, if applicable.   
 

Corporate/Business Address, Business Telephone, Business Fax, and Email – Enter the street address, telephone and fax numbers, and email of the named 

business entity.   
 

Nevada Local Business Address, Local Business Telephone, Local Business Fax, and Email – If business entity is out-of-state, but operates the business from a 
location in Nevada, enter the Nevada street address, telephone and fax numbers, point of contact and email of the local office. Please note that the local address 

must be an address from which the business is operating from that location. Please do not include a P.O. Box number, unless required by the U.S. Postal Service, 

or a business license hanging address. 
 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents employed by this firm. (Do not leave blank. If none or zero, put the number 0 in the space provided.) 
 

List of Owners/Officers – Include the full name, title and percentage of ownership of each person who has ownership or financial interest in the business entity.  If 

the business is a publicly-traded corporation or non-profit organization, list all Corporate Officers and Directors only.   
 

For All Contracts – (Not required for publicly-traded corporations) 
1) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity are a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s).  If yes, the following paragraph applies. 

 
In accordance with NRS 281A.430.1, a public officer or employee shall not bid on or enter into a contract between a government agency and any 

private business in which he has a significant financial interest, except as provided for in subsections 2, 3, and 4. 
 

2) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity have a second degree of consanguinity or affinity 

relation to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) (reference form on Page 2 for 

definition).  If YES, complete the Disclosure of Relationship Form.  
 

A professional service is defined as a business entity that offers business/financial consulting, legal, physician, architect, engineer or other professional services. 
 

Signature and Print Name – Requires signature of an authorized representative and the date signed. 
 

Disclosure of Relationship Form – If any individual members, partners, owners or principals of the business entity is presently a University Medical Center of 

Southern Nevada employee, public officer or official, or has a second degree of consanguinity or affinity relationship to a University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada employee, public officer or official, this section must be completed in its entirety.   

 

Page 196 of 296



DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS 

1 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

Business Entity Type (Please select one) 

 Sole 
Proprietorship 

Partnership 
 Limited Liability 

Company  
 Corporation  Trust 

 Non-Profit   
Organization 

  Other 

Business Designation Group (Please select all that apply) 

 MBE  WBE  SBE  PBE  VET DVET  ESB 

Minority Business 
Enterprise 

Women-Owned 
Business 
Enterprise 

Small Business 
Enterprise 

Physically Challenged 
Business Enterprise 

Veteran Owned 
Business 

Disabled Veteran 
Owned Business 

Emerging Small 
Business 

 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents Employed: 

  

Corporate/Business Entity Name:   

(Include d.b.a., if applicable)  

Street Address:  Website: 

City, State and Zip Code: 
 POC Name: 

Email: 

Telephone No:  Fax No: 

Nevada Local Street Address: 

(If different from above) 

 Website: 

 City, State and Zip Code:  Local Fax No: 

Local Telephone No: 
 Local POC Name: 

Email: 

All entities, with the exception of publicly-traded and non-profit organizations, must list the names of individuals holding more than five percent (5%) ownership or 
financial interest in the business entity appearing before the Board. 
 
Publicly-traded entities and non-profit organizations shall list all Corporate Officers and Directors in lieu of disclosing the names of individuals with 
ownership or financial interest. The disclosure requirement, as applied to land-use applications, extends to the applicant and the landowner(s). 

Entities include all business associations organized under or governed by Title 7 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, including but not limited to private corporations, 

close corporations, foreign corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, limited partnerships, and professional corporations. 

 

  Full Name  Title  % Owned 
(Not required for Publicly Traded 

Corporations/Non-profit organizations) 

 

      

      

      

      

This section is not required for publicly-traded corporations.  Are you a publicly-traded corporation?             Yes       No 

1. Are any individual members, partners, owners or principals, involved in the business entity, a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time 
employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please note that University Medical Center of Southern Nevada employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) may not 
perform any work on professional service contracts, or other contracts, which are not subject to competitive bid.) 

 

2. Do any individual members, partners, owners or principals have a spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent, in-law or brother/sister, half-brother/half-
sister, grandchild, grandparent, related to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please complete the Disclosure of Relationship form on Page 2.  If no, please print N/A on Page 2.)  

 

I certify under penalty of perjury, that all of the information provided herein is current, complete, and accurate. I also understand that the University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada Governing Board will not take action on land-use approvals, contract approvals, land sales, leases or exchanges without the completed disclosure 
form. 

 

    

Signature 
 

 Print Name  

    

Title  Date  

Page 197 of 296

MAS
Typewritten text
x

MAS
Typewritten text
x

MAS
Typewritten text
x

MAS
Typewritten text
ROI-IT, LLC

MAS
Typewritten text
ROI IT

MAS
Typewritten text
6955 N Durango Dr #1115

MAS
Typewritten text
Las Vegas, NV 89149

MAS
Typewritten text
www.roi-it.net

MAS
Typewritten text
Michael Simmons

MAS
Typewritten text
mas@roi-it.net

MAS
Typewritten text
702.425.8415

MAS
Typewritten text
702.425.8414

MAS
Typewritten text
Sarah Lopez-Simmons

MAS
Typewritten text
70

MAS
Typewritten text
Michael Simmons

MAS
Typewritten text
Managing Member

MAS
Typewritten text
Managing Member

MAS
Typewritten text
30

MAS
Typewritten text
x

MAS
Typewritten text
x

MAS
Typewritten text
x

MAS
Typewritten text
Michael Simmons

MAS
Typewritten text
Managing Member/Director

MAS
Typewritten text
03/04/24

MAS
Typewritten text
10



DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP 

2 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

 
List any disclosures below: 
(Mark N/A, if not applicable.) 

 

NAME OF BUSINESS 
OWNER/PRINCIPAL 

NAME OF UMC* 
EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

AND JOB TITLE 

RELATIONSHIP TO 
 UMC* 

EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

UMC* 
EMPLOYEE’S/OFFICIAL’S 

DEPARTMENT 

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 
* UMC employee means an employee of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
 
“Consanguinity” is a relationship by blood.  “Affinity” is a relationship by marriage. 
 
“To the second degree of consanguinity” applies to the candidate’s first and second degree of blood relatives as 
follows: 
 

 Spouse – Registered Domestic Partners – Children – Parents – In-laws (first degree) 
 

 Brothers/Sisters – Half-Brothers/Half-Sisters – Grandchildren – Grandparents – In-laws (second degree) 
 
 

 
For UMC Use Only: 

 
If any Disclosure of Relationship is noted above, please complete the following:     
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in the contracting/selection process for this particular agenda item? 
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in any way with the business in performance of the contract? 
 
Notes/Comments: 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Signature  
 
____________________________________ 
Print Name  
Authorized Department Representative 

 
 

 

Page 198 of 296



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
March 27, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

10 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Retail Pharmacy Consulting and Management Agreement with Cardinal 

Health Pharmacy Services, LLC 
 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the 
the Retail Pharmacy Consulting and Management Agreement with Cardinal Health 
Pharmacy Services, LLC; authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute extensions and 
amendments; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 

Fund Number: 5420.000      Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center: 3000717100                          Funded Pgm/Grant: N/A 
Description: Retail Pharmacy Consulting and Management Agreement with Cardinal Health Pharmacy 
Services, LLC        
Bid/RFP/CBE: NRS 332.115(1)(b) – Professional Services  
Term: 2 years from Effective Date      
Amount:   $1,431,541.80     
Out Clause: 180 days notice commencing 24 months after opening 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
This request is to enter into a new Agreement with Cardinal Health Pharmacy Services, LLC (“Cardinal 
Health”) for consulting and management services with respect to the establishment of 2 new pharmacy 
locations. UMC will compensate Cardinal Health an estimated $1,431,541.80 (including potential 
performance incentives) plus potential expenses.  There is an initial preliminary consulting service to make 
recommendations with respect to construction and EPIC build-out. Thereafter, there is an anticipated 6 month 
consulting period to get licensure and establish the pharmacies. Once opened there is a 36 month management 
contract whereby Cardinal will provide a pharmacist in charge to manage the pharmacies. Staff also requests 
authorization for the Hospital CEO to execute extension options and amendments that are within his yearly 
delegation of authority if deemed beneficial to UMC. 
 
UMC’s Director of Pharmacy Services has reviewed and recommends approval of this Agreement.  This 
Agreement has been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 
 
This Agreement was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their March 20, 2024 
meeting and recommended for approval by the Governing Board. 

Page 199 of 296



 

 Retail Pharmacy Consulting and  
 Management Agreement 

 

Record #00224865.0 -1- 

This Retail Pharmacy Consulting and Management Agreement (“Agreement”) is entered into by and 
between Cardinal Health Pharmacy Services, LLC, located at 13651 Dublin Ct., Stafford, Texas 77477 
(“Cardinal Health”) and University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, located at 1800 W. Charleston 
Blvd., Las Vegas, Nevada 89102 (“Customer”) as of April 1, 2024 (the “Effective Date”).  Cardinal Health 
and Customer are each a “Party” and, collectively, the “Parties.”  

Whereas Customer desires to open two (2) new retail pharmacies to be located at 1800 W. Charleston 
Blvd., Las Vegas, Nevada 89102, and 701 Shadow Lane, Las Vegas, Nevada 89106 (“Pharmacy” or 
“Pharmacy Sites”);  

Whereas, Cardinal Health has the expertise to design, open and manage pharmacies; 

Therefore, Cardinal Health shall provide Customer with its new Pharmacy consulting and management 
services (“Services”) as follows: 

 
ARTICLE I 

DELIVERABLES, DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

1.01 New Pharmacy Consulting Service.  Cardinal Health’s New Pharmacy Consulting Service (“New 
Rx Consulting Service”) shall be a collaborative effort between Customer and Cardinal Health.  Cardinal 
Health shall provide Customer with its preliminary consulting services requested by Customer for a portion 
of the deliverables listed in 1.01 (a) (“Preliminary Consulting Services”) prior to October 1, 2024. New Rx 
Consulting Service, for two (2) separate Pharmacy Sites as identified on Exhibit A (hereinafter referred to 
as “Pharmacy” or “Pharmacy Sites”), for an anticipated period of six (6) months (“Consulting Initial Term”).  
Should Customer not open (as defined below in Section 1.02) both Pharmacy Sites at the conclusion of 
the Consulting Initial Term, then Cardinal Health shall continue to provide Customer its New Rx Consulting 
Service for the Pharmacy that is not opened and the Management Services for the Pharmacy that is 
opened, subject to the reduced Management Fee, as set forth in Section 3.01(b)(i) until both Pharmacy 
Sites are open.    

a. Cardinal Health Deliverables   Cardinal Health shall provide the following deliverables (the 
“Deliverables”):  

i. A pharmacy consultant (the “Consultant”) to oversee Customer’s Pharmacy opening 
activities which shall include assisting Customer with:  

1. Recommendations for Pharmacy physical layout and design  

2. Recommendations for sourcing of fixtures and shelving  

3. Identification and implementation of appropriate software, including at a minimum the 
pharmacy system, IVR, and POS, which selection shall be subject to the approval of Customer 

4. Establishing hours of operation, which shall be subject to the approval of Customer 

5. Recruiting hiring, and training of Pharmacy staff, which selection shall be subject to 
the approval of Customer 

6. Developing policies and procedures which shall be subject to the approval of 
Customer 

7. Federal and state licensing, with Cardinal Health’s assistance to consist solely of 
guidance as Customer shall be responsible for completion of all license application forms and other 
materials 

8. Contracting with necessary PBM which selection shall be subject to the approval of 
Customer 

9. Developing a marketing and communication plan which shall be subject to the 
approval of Customer 

10. Implementing a 340B program which shall be subject to the approval of Customer 

11. Developing optimal purchasing processes for Drugs which selection shall be subject 
to the approval of Customer 

12. Develop and implement the Meds-to-Beds program which shall be subject to the 
approval of Customer 

Page 200 of 296



 

 Retail Pharmacy Consulting and  
 Management Agreement 

 

Record #00224865.0 -2- 

ii. In the Consultant’s reasonable discretion, or at the reasonable request of the Customer 
and subject to Cardinal Health’s availability, on-site visits to the Pharmacy as needed for performance of 
the Deliverables above. 

iii. The Consultant shall report on a regular basis to Customer’s administrator or designee on 
the progress and status of Customer’s Pharmacy opening activities.  

iv. Cardinal Health shall make its Consultant available remotely to Customer to answer 
questions and provide guidance on Customer’s Pharmacy opening activities each month throughout the 
opening process. 

v. Additional items may be added to the New Rx Consulting Service by amendment. Should 
the addition of any items result in a change to the resources, timeline or expense of providing the New Rx 
Consulting Service, Cardinal Health may decline to provide such items unless and until the Parties have 
agreed, in an amendment, to a commensurate increase in the New Rx Consulting Fee.   

b. Customer’s Obligations during the Pharmacy Opening Process   The fulfilment of the New 
Rx Consulting Service depends on the availability and accessibility of Customer resources and data 
elements. Therefore, Customer shall: 

i. Provide Cardinal Health in a mutually agreed upon electronic format, data as Cardinal 
Health may reasonably request, provided such data is not deemed confidential. Such data shall be 
complete and accurate and Cardinal Health shall be entitled to rely thereon. 

ii. Provide appropriate security clearances and/or internet access to Cardinal Health 
personnel, consistent with Customer policies and as needed to permit Cardinal Health to perform the New 
Rx Consulting Service. 

iii. Be available and accessible to Cardinal Health as reasonably needed in order to review 
results, approve resource and data requests, and mitigate issues as they occur. 

iv. Review recommendations and provide feedback and approval in a reasonably timely 
manner. 

v. Provide adequate space, utilities and security controls according to applicable guidelines 
of state and federal regulatory agencies for the operation of the Pharmacy. The parties represent and 
warrant that any such space or utilities Customer provides shall not be for Cardinal Health’s exclusive use 
and shall at all times be provided at Customer’s discretion. 

vi. Remain ultimately responsible for: 

1. performing the Pharmacy opening activities set forth above 

2. paying the expenses associated with the construction and build out of the Pharmacy 

3. paying for the purchase or lease of furniture, fixtures, and software 

4. the execution of third-party agreements 

5. obtaining licensure as required for the Pharmacy opening (as defined below) 
 

1.02 Retail Pharmacy Management.  The Pharmacy shall be considered “open” once Customer has 
received a Nevada State Board of Pharmacy license and DEA number and the Pharmacy is legally and 
operationally able to fill a prescription.  Upon the opening of the first Pharmacy and for the remaining term 
of this Agreement as defined in Section 4.01 (“Pharmacy Management Period”), Cardinal Health shall be 
the exclusive provider of Pharmacy services as set forth in this Section 1.02 at Pharmacy Sites (with the 
exception of the Meds-to-Beds program) (“Management Services”).  Cardinal Health shall, with Customer’s 
cooperation, provide all Pharmacy clientele care-oriented Pharmacy services that meet or exceed the 
accreditation standards for pharmacy services for applicable licensing, accrediting and regulatory 
agencies, as well as Medicare and Medicaid conditions of participation and applicable state and other law, 
and all such other services that are necessary and appropriate to operate Customer’s Pharmacy. 

a. Cardinal Health Duties during Pharmacy Management Period 

i. Pharmacy Personnel.  Cardinal Health shall provide one (1) full-time equivalent 
Pharmacy manager that will be “Cardinal Health’s Pharmacist-in-Charge” of one Pharmacy Site. All other 
staff, including a Customer pharmacist-in-charge of the second location, will be employed by Customer.  
Customer reserves the right to request the removal from on-site duty of any Cardinal Health personnel who 
fail to comply with any of the material terms or conditions of this Agreement or with Customer’s policies.  

Page 201 of 296



Page 202 of 296



Page 203 of 296



 

 Retail Pharmacy Consulting and  
 Management Agreement 

 

Record #00224865.0 -5- 

x. It shall comply with the Standards of Performance, attached hereto as Exhibit C and 
incorporated by reference. 

c. Customer Duties.  The Parties agree that Cardinal Health’s success is predicated upon 
Customer’s cooperation, facilitation, and timely implementation of recommended initiatives. As such, 
Customer agrees to perform the following: 

i. Licensure and Permits.  Customer shall obtain all necessary local, state and federal 
licenses and permits required for the operation of the Pharmacy and shall have the primary responsibility 
for recordkeeping and security of controlled substances maintained within its premises, including the 
Pharmacy.  

ii. Grant of Authority.  Customer shall allow Cardinal Health to act in its name, to the 
extent permitted by applicable law, for the sole purpose of ordering Drugs necessary to provide an 
adequate supply of Drugs to be administered to the Pharmacy Sites, under permits issued in Customer’s 
name by the applicable state Board of Pharmacy, Drug Enforcement Administration, and other 
governmental health care regulatory agencies that affect the operation of pharmacies.  If necessary, 
Customer shall issue a revocable power of attorney to the Cardinal Health’s Pharmacist-in-Charge for the 
sole purposes of ordering and purchasing controlled substances on its behalf.  In the event such permits 
are not able to be secured, either Party may terminate this Agreement without cause, upon written notice 
to the other Party.   

iii. Cooperation Customer shall (a) support and require Customer’s employees, agents 
and staff to cooperate with Cardinal Health’s management of the Pharmacy as required by this Agreement; 
and (b) support marketing and business development strategies proposed by Cardinal Health and 
approved by Customer.   

iv. Plant, Property, Supplies and Equipment  

1. Customer shall retain responsibility for the Pharmacy Sites and compliance with 
applicable federal and state laws, regulations and guidelines related thereto, including environmental 
safety training required by applicable law, regulations and guidelines.  Customer is responsible for 
implementing and maintaining information technology systems necessary for continued Pharmacy 
operations including any personnel required for such implementation and maintenance.  Customer shall 
provide fixed and movable Pharmacy equipment, including maintenance required for the efficient operation 
of the Pharmacy.    

2. Customer shall provide “Other Items” as necessary and customary for the 
operation of the Pharmacy, including but not limited to reasonable office equipment, supplies, dues and 
subscriptions, publications, and non-Drug pharmaceutical supplies used in preparation, packaging or 
storing of Drugs.  

 
v. Information Technology.  Customer shall provide the Cardinal Health Pharmacist-in-

Charge with the use of a computer that meets the hardware and software requirements of the Pharmacy’s 
wholesalers and other vendors.  

vi. Credit Information.  Customer shall provide Cardinal Health with any commercially 
reasonable credit information as requested by Cardinal Health prior to the start of services and, after that, 
as may be reasonably requested from time to time.  

vii. 340B Program   The Parties agree that Cardinal Health’s duties as they relate to the 
340B Program are dependent in part upon data generated by Customer.  Customer’s duties as they relate 
to the 340B Program are set forth in Exhibit B.  

viii. Drug Invoices.  Customer shall be responsible for the payment of all invoices for Drugs 
ordered by Cardinal Health on behalf of Customer through Customer’s wholesaler, together with all 
applicable sales, use, excise, gross receipts, or other federal, state, or local taxes or other assessments, 
on its purchase of taxable Drugs.  

ix. Pharmacy Inventory Counts.   Customer shall provide Cardinal Health prior notification 
of upcoming pharmacy physical inventory counts to ensure inclusion of the Pharmacy in such counts.  
  

Page 204 of 296



Page 205 of 296



Page 206 of 296



Page 207 of 296



 

 Retail Pharmacy Consulting and  
 Management Agreement 

 

Record #00224865.0 -9- 

c.  No deduction may be taken by Customer and Customer agrees to pay each invoice, in full, 
by the Due Date.  In the event Customer disputes a portion of an invoice, Customer shall provide Cardinal 
Health the following information within seven (7) business days of invoice date: (1) invoice number, (2) 
amount disputed, and (3) specific details as to the nature of the dispute.  The Parties shall use reasonable 
best efforts to resolve any disputes within thirty (30) calendar days from the date Customer provides 
Cardinal Health with information regarding the invoice dispute as set forth in this Section 3.02(c). Any credit 
due to Customer or additional changes resulting from the dispute resolution shall appear as a line item on 
Customer’s next monthly invoice. Each Party shall appoint a representative to review invoice detail monthly 
and meet as needed to reconcile.  

 
ARTICLE IV 

TERM AND TERMINATION  
 

4.01. Term of Agreement.  The term of this Agreement shall be for a period beginning on the Effective 
Date and ending on the last day of the thirty-sixth (36th) full month from the start of the Pharmacy 
Management Period (“Initial Term”) unless subject to earlier termination as set forth below. The Initial Term 
shall not exceed five (5) years. 
 
4.02. Default   Either Party may affect an early termination of this Agreement upon the occurrence of a 
material breach by the other Party.  The non-breaching Party must give written notice to the breaching 
Party of the nature and occurrence of such breach.  If the breach is not cured within sixty (60) days after 
the date of such notice, or if the breaching Party has not made reasonable efforts to effect the cure if the 
breach cannot reasonably be cured within such sixty (60) day period, then the non-breaching Party may, 
in addition to any and all other rights or remedies it may have, provide written notice to the breaching Party 
that this Agreement will be terminated immediately following the expiration of such sixty (60) day period. 
In the event of a payment default not cured within thirty (30) days after written notice, Cardinal Health may 
terminate this Agreement upon ten (10) days’ prior written notice.  

 

4.03. Termination Without Cause.  After the first twenty-four (24) month period of the Initial Term, 
either Party may terminate this Agreement, without cause, upon One Hundred Eighty (180) days written 
notice to the other Party.  If Customer terminates this Agreement, Cardinal Health waives any cause of 
action or claim for damages arising out of or related to the termination; provided however, it shall not relieve 
Customer of any payment due and owing to Cardinal Health for Services rendered under the terms of this 
Agreement. 
 
4.04. Budget Act and Fiscal Fund Out. In accordance with the Nevada Revised Statutes 
(NRS354.626), the financial obligations under this Agreement shall not exceed those monies appropriated 
and approved by Customer for the then current fiscal year under the Local Government Budget Act. The 
Agreement shall terminate and Customer’s obligations under it shall be extinguished at the end of any of 
Customer’s fiscal years in which Customer’s governing body fails to appropriate monies for the ensuing 
fiscal year sufficient for the payment of all amounts which could then become due under the Agreement, 
with ninety (90) day advance written notice to Cardinal Health. Customer agrees that this Section shall not 
be utilized as a subterfuge or in a discriminatory fashion as it relates to the Agreement. In the event this 
Section is invoked, the Agreement will expire on the 30th day of June of the then current fiscal year. 
Termination under this Section shall not relieve Customer of its obligations incurred through the 30th day 
of June of the fiscal year for which monies were appropriated. 
 
4.05. Regulatory Compliance.  This Agreement shall be construed to be in accordance with, and each 

party will comply with, all applicable laws, rules and regulations that govern this Agreement.  The 

parties recognize that this Agreement is at all times subject to applicable state, local, and federal laws. The 

parties further recognize that this Agreement may become subject to amendments in such laws and 

regulations and to new legislation. Any provisions of law that invalidate, or are otherwise inconsistent with, 

the material terms and conditions of this Agreement, or that would cause one or both of the parties hereto 

to be in violation of law, shall be deemed to have superseded the terms of this Agreement and, in such 

event, the parties agree to utilize their best efforts to modify the terms and conditions of this Agreement to 

be consistent with the requirements of such law(s) in order to effectuate the purposes and intent of this set 

forth in an executed written agreement within thirty (30) days of receipt of notice from one party to the other 

party setting forth the proposed changes.  Either party may, by giving the other an additional sixty (60) 

days written notice, terminate this Agreement, unless this Agreement would terminate earlier by its terms. 

 

Page 208 of 296



 

 Retail Pharmacy Consulting and  
 Management Agreement 

 

Record #00224865.0 -10- 

 

4.06. Termination  
 

a. Effect of Termination  Termination shall not affect any liability or obligation of either Party 
accrued prior to termination. 

 
b.   Customer’s Duties upon Termination   All Customer-specific manuals, policies and 

procedures utilized in the Pharmacy, and clientele records necessary to operate the Pharmacy shall remain 
in the Pharmacy.  Customer agrees to provide Cardinal Health access to or copies of such documents 
reasonably requested by Cardinal Health to the extent necessary to handle claims brought after 
termination, subject to execution of an appropriate confidentiality agreement. 

 
ARTICLE V 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

5.01. Confidentiality.  Pricing, business plans, manuals, standard operating procedures, policies, 
processes, strategies and any trade secrets all constitute “Confidential Information.” The Parties shall not 
disclose or use any Confidential Information for any purpose other than as set forth herein.  The Parties 
shall protect the Confidential Information in the same manner that they protect the confidentiality of their 
own proprietary and confidential information of like kind, but in no event shall they exercise less than 
reasonable care in protecting such Confidential Information.  If either Party is compelled by law to disclose 
any Confidential Information, it shall provide the other Party with prior notice of such compelled disclosure 
and reasonable assistance to contest the disclosure.  If either Party discloses or uses (or threatens to 
disclose or use) any Confidential Information of the other Party in breach of this Section 5.01, the aggrieved 
Party shall have the right, in addition to any other remedies available to it, to seek injunctive relief to enjoin 
such acts, it being specifically acknowledged by the Parties that any other available remedies are 
inadequate.  This Section 5.01 shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement for a period of 
three (3) years.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, any obligations of confidentiality and non-use governing 
Protected Health Information (as defined by HIPAA) that are included in a Business Associate Agreement 
in effect between the Parties shall continue in effect in accordance with the terms of such Agreement and 
as required by applicable law. 
 
If Customer receives a demand for the disclosure of any information related to this Agreement which 
Cardinal Health has claimed to be Confidential Information, Customer will immediately notify Cardinal 
Health of such demand and Cardinal Health shall immediately notify Customer of its intention to seek 
injunctive relief in a Nevada court for protective order. Cardinal Health shall indemnify, defend and hold 
harmless Customer from any third-party claims or actions, including all reasonable associated costs and 
attorney’s fees, regarding or related to any demand for the disclosure of Cardinal Health documents in 
Customer’s custody and control in which Cardinal Health claims to be confidential and proprietary. 

The obligations created by this Section 5.01 shall not apply to particular Confidential Information if the Party 
in receipt of the Confidential Information (“Recipient”) can reasonably demonstrate such Confidential 
Information: 

a. is in the public domain at the time of the disclosure of Confidential Information by disclosing Party 
to Recipient; 

b. becomes publicly available subsequent to disclosure of Confidential Information by disclosing 
Party without Recipient’s breach of any obligations owed the disclosing Party; 

c. became known by Recipient at any time from a source other than the disclosing Party and other 
than by breach of an obligation of confidentiality owed to the disclosing Party; 

d. was otherwise known by Recipient prior to disclosure of Confidential Information by disclosing 
Party to Recipient;  

e. was independently developed by Recipient without reference to, exposure to, use of, or disclosure 
of any Confidential Information 

f. Is a public record under Nevada law. 
 
5.02. Insurance.  Without limiting any other obligation or liability under this Agreement, Cardinal Health 
agrees that upon execution of this Agreement and through the Initial Term, Cardinal Health shall, at its own 
cost and expense, obtain and maintain insurance coverage with limits and conditions not less than those 
specified below: 

 

Page 209 of 296



Page 210 of 296



 

 Retail Pharmacy Consulting and  
 Management Agreement 

 

Record #00224865.0 -12- 

in which case the Party required to make the press release shall use commercially reasonable efforts to 
obtain the approval of the other Party as to the form, nature and extent of the press release prior to issuing 
the press release or making the public disclosure. 
 
5.06. Data.   All data submitted by Customer to Cardinal Health pursuant to this Agreement (“Customer 
Data”) remains the sole property of Customer.   

 

5.07. Indemnification.  Cardinal Health shall indemnify and defend Customer its corporate affiliates, 
and any director, officer or employee thereof) from and against any and all damages, liabilities, losses, 
fines, costs and expenses (including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees) sustained or incurred 
by the other in connection with any third-party claim, suit, action, investigation or proceeding (each, an 
“Action”) to the extent arising out of or resulting from (i) Cardinal Health’s breach of any representation or 
warranty contained in this Agreement or (ii) bodily injury, wrongful death, or tangible property damage to 
the extent caused by or arising from Cardinal Health’s negligence or willful misconduct in performance of 
its obligations under this Agreement. 
 

To the extent permitted by Nevada law, Customer shall indemnify and defend Cardinal Health, its corporate 
affiliates, and any director, officer or employee thereof) from and against any and all damages, liabilities, 
losses, fines, costs and expenses (including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees) sustained or 
incurred by the other in connection with any third-party claim, suit, action, investigation or proceeding (each, 
an “Action”) to the extent arising out of or resulting from (i) Customer’s breach of any representation or 
warranty contained in this Agreement or (ii) bodily injury, wrongful death, or tangible property damage to 
the extent caused by or arising from Customer’s negligence or willful misconduct in performance of its 
obligations under this Agreement. 
 

Cardinal Health shall indemnify and defend Customer and its corporate affiliates, and any director, officer 
or employee thereof, against all liability (including reasonable attorney’s fees) arising from any Action 
based on or arising from any claim alleging that Cardinal Health’s software and/or services infringe any 
patent or copyright of any third party.  To the extent permitted by Nevada law, Customer shall indemnify 
and defend Cardinal Health and its corporate affiliates, and any director, officer or employee thereof, 
against all liability (including reasonable attorney’s fees) arising from any Action based on Cardinal Health’s 
use of any data submitted by Customer to Cardinal Health for its software and/or services (“Customer 
Data”).   
 
Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither Party is obligated to indemnify or defend the other to the extent such 
Action arises out of or results from the other Party’s negligence or willful misconduct.  
 

All indemnification obligations in this Section are conditioned upon the a Party: (i) promptly notifying the 
indemnitor of any Action of which an indemnitee becomes aware (including a copy of any related complaint, 
summons, notice or other instrument); provided, however, that failure to provide such notice within a 
reasonable period of time shall not relieve the indemnitor of any of its obligations hereunder to indemnify 
except to the extent a defense or counterclaim is materially prejudiced, or additional fees or costs are 
incurred, by such failure to give timely notice; (ii) reasonably cooperating with the indemnitor in the defense 
of any such Action (at the indemnitor’s expense); and (iii) not compromising or settling any Action without 
prior written consent of the other Party. 

 
5.08. Exclusion of Certain Damages.  NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE TO THE OTHER PARTY 
FOR INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL OR SPECIAL DAMAGES, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, 
LOSS OF BUSINESS OR PROFITS.  This Section 5.08 shall not limit a Party’s right to indemnification 
from the other Party pursuant to Section 5.07 and shall survive the termination or expiration of this 
Agreement. 
 
5.09. Business Associate Obligations  This Agreement shall be subject to the Business Associate 
Agreement entered into between the Parties effective June 18, 2018. 
 
5.10. Force Majeure  If a Party is reasonably prevented from performing an obligation of the Agreement 
because of fire, flood, wind, earthquake, explosion or other disaster, acts of military authorities, acts of civil 
authorities unrelated to any violation of law by the Party, war, riot, insurrection, act of terrorism, pandemic 
(including, but not limited to, the COVID- 19 pandemic) or other cause beyond the Party’s reasonable 
control (collectively, a “Force Majeure Event”), then that Party shall not be in breach of the Agreement 
during the period that Party is prevented from performing the obligation because of the Force Majeure 

Page 211 of 296



 

 Retail Pharmacy Consulting and  
 Management Agreement 

 

Record #00224865.0 -13- 

Event provided that the Party (i) promptly delivers notice to the other Party identifying the Force Majeure 
Event and (ii) exercises reasonable commercial efforts to resume performance as soon as is reasonably 
possible. 
 
5.11.  Assignment.  Neither Party may assign any rights or obligations under the Agreement without the 
other Party’s prior written consent, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.  This Agreement shall be 
binding on the Parties and their successors and permitted assigns. 
 
5.12. Notices.  Any notice from one Party to the other Party shall be in writing and shall be deemed to 
be given:  (i) upon delivery if by hand or by overnight courier; or (ii) three days after mailing, if by certified 
or registered mail to the receiving Party’s Notice Address below.  Either Party may change its Notice 
Address upon delivery of notice to the other Party. 
 
 Cardinal Health Pharmacy Services, LLC 
 Attn: National Operations Director  
 13651 Dublin CT 
 Stafford, Texas 77477 
 
 University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
 Attn: Legal Department 
 1800 W. Charleston Blvd. 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89102 
 
Invoices shall be sent to both of the following emails: 
UMC AP@umcsn.com 
inpatientpharmacymgmt@umcsn.com 
 
5.13. Severability; Non-Waiver.  If a court or other body of competent jurisdiction declares any term of 
the Agreement invalid or unenforceable, then the remaining terms shall continue in full force and effect.  
No right created by the Agreement shall be deemed waived unless specifically and expressly waived in a 
writing signed by the Party possessing the right. 
 
5.14. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Nevada without 
regard to that state’s conflicts of law provisions. 
 
5.15. Entire Agreement; Amendment.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and 
understanding of the Parties regarding the subject matter of the Agreement and supersedes all prior written 
and oral agreements, proposals, and understandings between the Parties regarding the subject matter of 
the Agreement.  No changes to the Agreement shall be effective unless signed by each Party. 
 
5.16. Agreement Signatures.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of 
which shall constitute an original, but all of which together shall constitute one instrument.  Signatures to 
this Agreement may be delivered by facsimile, by electronic mail (e.g., a “.pdf” file) or by any other electronic 
means that is intended to preserve the original appearance of the document, and such delivery will have 
the same effect as the delivery of the paper document bearing the actual, handwritten signatures. 

 
5.17. Independent Contractor.  The Parties are independent contractors in the course of performing 
all services hereunder. The Parties expressly acknowledge and agree that Cardinal Health is neither the 
employer nor joint employer of any of the individuals paid as employees of Customer and that Customer is 
neither the employer nor joint employer of any of the individuals paid as employees of Cardinal Health. 
Under no circumstances shall Cardinal Health, or any of Cardinal Health’s employees, look to Customer 
as his/her employer, or as a partner, agent or principal. Neither Cardinal Health, nor any of Cardinal 
Health’s employees, shall be entitled to any benefits accorded to Customer’s employees, nor look to 
Customer for such benefits, including without limitation worker’s compensation, disability insurance, social 
security, vacation or sick pay. Under no circumstances shall Customer, or any of Customer’s employees, 
look to Cardinal Health as his/her employer, or as a partner, agent or principal. Neither Customer, nor any 
of Customer’s employees, shall be entitled to any benefits accorded to Cardinal Health’s employees, nor 
look to Cardinal Health for such benefits, including without limitation worker’s compensation, disability 
insurance, social security, vacation or sick pay. 
 
5.18. Arms’ Length Negotiations   The Parties expressly acknowledge that the compensation provided 

Page 212 of 296



 

 Retail Pharmacy Consulting and  
 Management Agreement 

 

Record #00224865.0 -14- 

for in this Agreement has resulted from arms' length negotiations between the Parties, has not been 
determined in a manner that takes into account the volume or value of any referrals or business otherwise 
generated between the Parties, and is to the best knowledge of each Party consistent with fair market 
value for the services to be rendered. 

5.19. Definitions.  These Definitions shall, unless otherwise stated, govern construction and 
interpretation of this Agreement, its Exhibits and any amendments or extensions. 

a. Drug.  Any Unit purchased by Pharmacy for which Pharmacy also receives the revenue and 
expense. 

b. Invoice Cost. “Invoice Cost” shall be the cost reflected on the most recent wholesaler or 
manufacturer account invoice without markup. 

c. Unit.   Billable quantity as described in pharmacy charge description master. 
 
5.20. Headings and Meaning. The headings in this Agreement are for purposes of convenience and 
reference only and shall not in any way define, limit, extend or otherwise affect the meaning or interpretation 
of any of the terms hereof.  The words “will” and “shall” denote a mandatory requirement or obligation. The 
words “hereof,” “herein” and “hereunder” and words of similar import when used in this Agreement shall 
refer to this Agreement as a whole and not to any particular Section. The words “including,” “including 
without limitation,” and words of similar import shall not be deemed restrictive but rather shall be deemed 
illustrative examples. 
 

Signatures on following page. 
  

Page 213 of 296



 

 Retail Pharmacy Consulting and  
 Management Agreement 

 

Record #00224865.0 -15- 

Each person signing this Agreement represents that he/she intends to and has the authority to bind 
his/her Party to this Agreement. 
 
University Medical Center of Southern Nevada  Cardinal Health Pharmacy Services, LLC 
 
  
By:        By:        

Mason Van Houweling Naveen Mansukhani 
Chief Executive Officer National Operations Director 

 
Date:         Date:       
 
Last Modified on 3/15/2024 

  

Mar 18, 2024

Page 214 of 296

https://cardinalhealth.na1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAAodAltUhCp374fcmGuyvun1shwrRvnFsZ


 

 Retail Pharmacy Consulting and  
 Management Agreement 

 

Record #00224865.0 -16- 

EXHIBIT A 
LIST OF FACILITIES 

 
1800 W. Charleston Blvd. 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89102 
 
701 Shadow Lane 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89106 
  

Page 215 of 296



 

 Retail Pharmacy Consulting and  
 Management Agreement 

 

Record #00224865.0 -17- 

EXHIBIT B 
FEDERAL 340B DRUG DISCOUNT PROGRAM 

 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the Parties agree as follows: 

a. Customer covenants that it is eligible to participate in the 340B Program and shall 
immediately notify Cardinal Health should this status change. 

b. Customer covenants that it is responsible for qualifying patients under the 340B Program. 

c. Customer shall be responsible for assuring that those outpatient areas included in its 
Medicare cost reports are eligible to receive Drugs procured through the 340B Program (“Program Drugs”) 
and where such Program Drugs are billed separately to its patients. Customer also covenants that 
outpatient utilization data provided for Customer’s split-billing software is only for those outpatient areas 
included in its Medicare cost reports.  Customer shall notify Cardinal Health in writing of any changes to 
those outpatient areas included in its Medicare cost reports, if needed for Cardinal Health to distribute 
Program Drugs to such areas.  Such written notification is a prerequisite to Cardinal Health’s ability to begin 
or discontinue distribution of Program Drugs to such areas.  
 

d. If necessary for 340B compliance, Customer shall purchase and maintain software, 
including any upgrades, to manage procurement and utilization of Program Drugs.   

e. Customer shall establish a separate account with its drug wholesaler, including any 
separate accounts for manufacturer direct purchases, and be responsible for payment of all invoices for 
Program Drugs ordered by Cardinal Health on behalf of Customer, together with all applicable sales, use, 
excise, gross receipts, or other federal, state, or local taxes or other assessments, on its purchase of 
Program Drugs. 

e. Customer is responsible for compliance and maintenance of any separate Customer 

contract pharmacy(ies).   

f. Upon implementation of the 340B Program, Cardinal Health shall: 

i. Order Program Drugs for qualified clientele under the 340B Program through 
Customer’s separate 340B Program wholesaler account on behalf of Customer utilizing a 340B Program 
prime vendor and Customer’s 340B split-billing software; and 

 
ii. Procure and distribute Program Drugs in compliance with regulations in effect as 

of the Effective Date of this Agreement based upon information received from Customer pursuant to this 
Exhibit. Cardinal Health shall make such changes as may become necessary to maintain compliance with 
any modification to the future regulations regarding the 340B Program as promptly as reasonably possible. 
 

Page 216 of 296



 

 Retail Pharmacy Consulting and  
 Management Agreement 

 

Record #00224865.0 -18- 

EXHIBIT C 
STANDARDS OF PERFORMANCE 

 
Cardinal Health shall ensure that its Cardinal Health Pharmacist-in-Charge complies with the 

Standards of Performance, attached hereto as Exhibit C and incorporated by reference.   
 

a. Cardinal Health promises to adhere to Customer’s established standards and policies for 
providing exceptional pharmacy services.  In addition, Cardinal Health shall ensure that its Cardinal Health 
Pharmacist-in-Charge shall also operate and conduct himself/herself in accordance with the standards and 
recommendations of Customer’s accreditation body, and the applicable Bylaws, Rules and Regulations of 
the Customer, as may then be in effect. 

 
b. Customer expressly agrees that the professional services of Cardinal Health may be 

performed by such pharmacists as Cardinal Health may associate with, so long as Cardinal Health has 
obtained the prior written approval of Customer.   

 
c.   Cardinal Health and the Cardinal Health Pharmacist-in-Charge shall maintain professional 

demeanor and not violate Customer’s Code of Conduct. 
 
d. Cardinal Health and the Cardinal Health Pharmacist-in-Charge shall be in compliance with 

all state and federal regulations, State of Nevada, and Customer’s accreditation body guidelines, as 
evidenced by: 

 
1. Ongoing participation in preparation for inspections/surveys and timely resolutions 

of any identified deficiencies for the State of Nevada and Customer’s accreditation body or other regulatory 
agencies. 

2. No significant findings related to the Pharmacy. 
 

e. Cardinal Health shall assist Customer with improvement of patient satisfaction and 
performance ratings. 

 
f. Cardinal Health and all Cardinal Health Pharmacist-in-Charge shall comply with the rules, 

regulations, policies and directives of Customer, provided that the same (including, without limitation any 
and all changes, modifications or amendments thereto) are made available to Cardinal Health by 
Customer.  Specifically, Cardinal Health and all Cardinal Health Pharmacist-in-Charge shall comply with 
all policies and directives related to Just Culture, Ethical Standards, Corporate Compliance/Confidentiality, 
Dress Code, and any and all applicable policies and/or procedures. 

 
g. Cardinal Health and all Cardinal Health Pharmacist-in-Charge shall comply with 

Customer’s Affirmative Action/Equal Employment Opportunity Agreement. 
 

h. Cardinal Health shall collaborate with Customer leadership to minimize and address staff 
and patron complaints. Cardinal Health shall participate with Customer’s Administration in staff evaluations 
and joint operating committees. 

 
i. Cardinal Health shall participate in staff meetings and conferences, and represent the 

Services on Customer’s Committees, initiatives, and at Customer department meetings as deemed 
appropriate. 
 

Page 217 of 296



University Medical Center of Southern
Nev_AGMT_2024-04-01
Final Audit Report 2024-03-18

Created: 2024-03-18

By: Janette Weaver (janette.weaver@cardinalhealth.com)

Status: Signed

Transaction ID: CBJCHBCAABAAodAltUhCp374fcmGuyvun1shwrRvnFsZ

"University Medical Center of Southern Nev_AGMT_2024-04-01"
 History

Document created by Janette Weaver (janette.weaver@cardinalhealth.com)
2024-03-18 - 12:59:23 PM GMT- IP address: 13.110.78.8

Document emailed to Naveen Mansukhani (naveen.mansukhani@cardinalhealth.com) for signature
2024-03-18 - 1:00:20 PM GMT

Email viewed by Naveen Mansukhani (naveen.mansukhani@cardinalhealth.com)
2024-03-18 - 2:06:08 PM GMT- IP address: 104.47.58.254

Document e-signed by Naveen Mansukhani (naveen.mansukhani@cardinalhealth.com)
Signature Date: 2024-03-18 - 2:06:20 PM GMT - Time Source: server- IP address: 73.10.9.53

Agreement completed.
2024-03-18 - 2:06:20 PM GMT

Page 218 of 296



REVISED 7/25/2014 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE  

DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS FORM 

Purpose of the Form 

 

The purpose of the Disclosure of Ownership/Principals Form is to gather ownership information pertaining to the business entity for use by the University Medical 
Center of Southern Nevada Governing Board (“GB”) in determining whether members of the GB should exclude themselves from voting on agenda items where 
they have, or may be perceived as having a conflict of interest, and to determine compliance with Nevada Revised Statute 281A.430, contracts in which a public 
officer or employee has interest is prohibited. 
 

General Instructions 
 

Completion and submission of this Form is a condition of approval or renewal of a contract or lease and/or release of monetary funding between the disclosing 
entity and University Medical Center of Southern Nevada.  Failure to submit the requested information may result in a refusal by the GB to enter into an 
agreement/contract and/or release monetary funding to such disclosing entity. 
 

Detailed Instructions 
 

All sections of the Disclosure of Ownership form must be completed.  If not applicable, write in N/A. 
 

Business Entity Type – Indicate if the entity is an Individual, Partnership, Limited Liability Company, Corporation, Trust, Non-profit Organization, or Other.  
When selecting ‘Other’, provide a description of the legal entity. 
 

Non-Profit Organization (NPO) - Any non-profit corporation, group, association, or corporation duly filed and registered as required by state law. 
 

Business Designation Group – Indicate if the entity is a Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE), Small 
Business Enterprise (SBE), Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE), Veteran Owned Business (VET), Disabled Veteran Owned Business (DVET), or 
Emerging Small Business (ESB) . This is needed in order to provide utilization statistics to the Legislative Council Bureau, and will be used only for such 
purpose.   
 

• Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 
is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more minority persons of Black American, Hispanic American, Asian-Pacific American or Native 
American ethnicity. 

• Women Owned Business Enterprise (WBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 
is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more women. 

• Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful 
function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more disabled individuals pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act. 

• Small Business Enterprise (SBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function, is not owned 
and controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or physically-challenged, and where gross annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000. 

• Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (VET): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a commercially useful 
function and is at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more U.S. Veterans. 

• Disabled Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (DVET):  A Nevada business at least 51 percent owned/controlled by a disabled veteran. 

• Emerging Small Business (ESB): Certified by the Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development effective January, 2014. Approved into 
Nevada law during the 77th Legislative session as a result of AB294. 
 

Business Name (include d.b.a., if applicable) – Enter the legal name of the business entity and enter the “Doing Business As” (d.b.a.) name, if applicable.   
 

Corporate/Business Address, Business Telephone, Business Fax, and Email – Enter the street address, telephone and fax numbers, and email of the named 
business entity.   
 

Nevada Local Business Address, Local Business Telephone, Local Business Fax, and Email – If business entity is out-of-state, but operates the business from a 
location in Nevada, enter the Nevada street address, telephone and fax numbers, point of contact and email of the local office. Please note that the local address 
must be an address from which the business is operating from that location. Please do not include a P.O. Box number, unless required by the U.S. Postal Service, 
or a business license hanging address. 
 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents employed by this firm. (Do not leave blank. If none or zero, put the number 0 in the space provided.) 
 

List of Owners/Officers – Include the full name, title and percentage of ownership of each person who has ownership or financial interest in the business entity.  If 
the business is a publicly-traded corporation or non-profit organization, list all Corporate Officers and Directors only.   
 

For All Contracts – (Not required for publicly-traded corporations) 
1) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity are a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s).  If yes, the following paragraph applies. 
 
In accordance with NRS 281A.430.1, a public officer or employee shall not bid on or enter into a contract between a government agency and any 
private business in which he has a significant financial interest, except as provided for in subsections 2, 3, and 4. 
 

2) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity have a second degree of consanguinity or affinity 
relation to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) (reference form on Page 2 for 
definition).  If YES, complete the Disclosure of Relationship Form.  

 

A professional service is defined as a business entity that offers business/financial consulting, legal, physician, architect, engineer or other professional services. 
 

Signature and Print Name – Requires signature of an authorized representative and the date signed. 
 

Disclosure of Relationship Form – If any individual members, partners, owners or principals of the business entity is presently a University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada employee, public officer or official, or has a second degree of consanguinity or affinity relationship to a University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada employee, public officer or official, this section must be completed in its entirety.   
 

Page 219 of 296



DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS 

1 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

Business Entity Type (Please select one) 

 Sole 
Proprietorship 

Partnership 
 Limited Liability 

Company  
 Corporation  Trust 

 Non-Profit   
Organization 

  Other 

Business Designation Group (Please select all that apply) 

 MBE  WBE  SBE  PBE  VET DVET  ESB 

Minority Business 
Enterprise 

Women-Owned 
Business 
Enterprise 

Small Business 
Enterprise 

Physically Challenged 
Business Enterprise 

Veteran Owned 
Business 

Disabled Veteran 
Owned Business 

Emerging Small 
Business 

 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents Employed:  25 employees 

  

Corporate/Business Entity Name:  Cardinal Health Pharmacy Services, LLC (a subsidiary of a publicly held company, Cardinal Health, Inc.) 

(Include d.b.a., if applicable)  

Street Address: 13651 Dublin CT Website: www.cardinal.com 

City, State and Zip Code: 
Stafford, Texas 77477 POC Name: Naveen Mansukhani 

Email: Naveen.mansukhani@cardinalhealth.com 

Telephone No: 281-969-2300 (Stafford office) Fax No: N/A 

Nevada Local Street Address: 

(If different from above) 

N/A Website:N/A 

 City, State and Zip Code:  Local Fax No: 

Local Telephone No: 
 Local POC Name: 

Email: 

All entities, with the exception of publicly-traded and non-profit organizations, must list the names of individuals holding more than five percent (5%) ownership or 
financial interest in the business entity appearing before the Board. 
 
Publicly-traded entities and non-profit organizations shall list all Corporate Officers and Directors in lieu of disclosing the names of individuals with 
ownership or financial interest. The disclosure requirement, as applied to land-use applications, extends to the applicant and the landowner(s). 

Entities include all business associations organized under or governed by Title 7 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, including but not limited to private corporations, 
close corporations, foreign corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, limited partnerships, and professional corporations. 
 
Cardinal Health, Inc. is the sole member of Cardinal Health Pharmacy Services, LLC. The officers are listed below. 

 

  Full Name  Title  % Owned 
(Not required for Publicly Traded 

Corporations/Non-profit organizations) 

 

Deborah L. Weitzman  President    

John Martin  Senior Vice President – Tax    

Michael D. Brown  Vice President - Managed Services    

Jeff Cui  Assistant Treasurer    

Samantha McWatters  Assistant Secretary    

Berkley Gamble  Secretary    

Brent Withrow  Treasurer    

Scott Zimmerman  Senior Vice President and Treasurer    

Raul Aponte  Vice President - Tax    

Adam Zaller  Vice President - Human Resources    

Naveen Mansukhani  Director, Pharmacy Operations Management    

This section is not required for publicly-traded corporations.  Are you a publicly-traded corporation?             Yes       No 

1. Are any individual members, partners, owners or principals, involved in the business entity, a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time 
employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please note that University Medical Center of Southern Nevada employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) may not 
perform any work on professional service contracts, or other contracts, which are not subject to competitive bid.) 

 

Page 220 of 296



DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS 

2 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

2. Do any individual members, partners, owners or principals have a spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent, in-law or brother/sister, half-brother/half-
sister, grandchild, grandparent, related to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please complete the Disclosure of Relationship form on Page 2.  If no, please print N/A on Page 2.)  

I certify under penalty of perjury, that all of the information provided herein is current, complete, and accurate. I also understand that the University Medical Center of 
Southern Nevada Governing Board will not take action on land-use approvals, contract approvals, land sales, leases or exchanges without the completed disclosure 
form. 

 

    

Signature 
 

 Print Name  

    

Title  Date  

Naveen Mansukhani

Operations Director Jan 10, 2024

Page 221 of 296

https://cardinalhealth.na1.adobesign.com/verifier?tx=CBJCHBCAABAA6dsVNHBpDNXKWk98qbqe464efksh_H0y


DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP 

3 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

 

 
List any disclosures below: 
(Mark N/A, if not applicable.) 

 

NAME OF BUSINESS 
OWNER/PRINCIPAL 

NAME OF UMC* 
EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

AND JOB TITLE 

RELATIONSHIP TO 
 UMC* 

EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

UMC* 
EMPLOYEE’S/OFFICIAL’S 

DEPARTMENT 

 
N/A 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 
* UMC employee means an employee of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
 
“Consanguinity” is a relationship by blood.  “Affinity” is a relationship by marriage. 
 
“To the second degree of consanguinity” applies to the candidate’s first and second degree of blood relatives as 
follows: 
 

• Spouse – Registered Domestic Partners – Children – Parents – In-laws (first degree) 
 

• Brothers/Sisters – Half-Brothers/Half-Sisters – Grandchildren – Grandparents – In-laws (second degree) 
 
 

 
For UMC Use Only: 

 
If any Disclosure of Relationship is noted above, please complete the following:     
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in the contracting/selection process for this particular agenda item? 
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in any way with the business in performance of the contract? 
 
Notes/Comments: 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Signature  
 
____________________________________ 
Print Name  
Authorized Department Representative 

 
 

 

Page 222 of 296



Disclosure of Ownership - GB (ver 2014-8)
Final Audit Report 2024-01-10

Created: 2024-01-10

By: Janette Weaver (janette.weaver@cardinalhealth.com)

Status: Signed

Transaction ID: CBJCHBCAABAA6dsVNHBpDNXKWk98qbqe464efksh_H0y

"Disclosure of Ownership - GB (ver 2014-8)" History
Document created by Janette Weaver (janette.weaver@cardinalhealth.com)
2024-01-10 - 1:59:22 PM GMT- IP address: 208.127.242.87

Document emailed to Naveen Mansukhani (naveen.mansukhani@cardinalhealth.com) for signature
2024-01-10 - 2:00:29 PM GMT

Email viewed by Naveen Mansukhani (naveen.mansukhani@cardinalhealth.com)
2024-01-10 - 3:49:11 PM GMT- IP address: 104.47.57.254

Document e-signed by Naveen Mansukhani (naveen.mansukhani@cardinalhealth.com)
Signature Date: 2024-01-10 - 3:49:24 PM GMT - Time Source: server- IP address: 98.153.8.164

Agreement completed.
2024-01-10 - 3:49:24 PM GMT

Page 223 of 296



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
March 27, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

11 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Fourth Amendment to RFP 2018-01 Agreement with Compass Group 

USA, Inc. for Food Services and Clinical Nutrition Management Services 
(Lot 2) 

 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the 
Fourth Amendment to RFP 2018-01 Agreement with Compass Group for Food Services 
and Clinical Nutrition Management Services (Lot 2); authorize the Chief Executive 
Officer to execute any future Amendments within his yearly delegation of authority; or 
take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number: 5420.000      Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center: 3000834000     Funded Pgm/Grant: N/A 
Description: Food Services and Clinical Nutrition Management Services (Lot 2)       
Bid/RFP/CBE: RFP 2018-01 
Term: Amendment 4 – Same term 
Amount: Amendment 4 – additional $126,000; total cumulative NTE $6,337,880      
Out Clause:  Budget Act and Fiscal Fund Out  
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
On January 1, 2019, after soliciting proposals through a Request for Proposal (RFP) process, UMC contracted 
with Compass Group USA, Inc. (“Compass”) to provide retail food service at UMC’s main campus, as well as 
patient food service, catering and clinical nutritional programs. The First Amendment, effective June 28, 2019, 
increased the annual not-to-exceed amount to $4,800,000. On February 15, 2022, the Second Amendment 
increased the annual not-to-exceed amount to $5,800,000 to support increased inflationary costs. The Third 
Amendment, effective July 28, 2023, exercised the option to extend the Agreement term through December 
31, 2025, and increased funding for the renewal term to account for adjustments to the patient day rate and 
number of patient days that have increased.  
 
This Fourth Amendment requests to increase in funding by $126,000.00 to support the CPI increase of 5.5% 
pursuant to the Agreement. All other terms and conditions will remain in full force and effect. 
 
Staff also requests authorization for the Hospital CEO to execute any future Amendments that are within his 
yearly delegation of authority if deemed beneficial to UMC. 

Page 224 of 296



Page Number 
2 

 
 
This Amendment was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their March 20, 
2024 meeting and recommended for approval by the Governing Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 225 of 296



FOURTH AMENDMENT TO  

AGREEMENT FOR FOOD SERVICES AND CLINICAL NUTRITION MANAGEMENT 

SERVICES (LOT 2) RFP 2018-01 

BETWEEN  

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 

AND 

COMPASS GROUP USA, INC. 

 

This Fourth Amendment is dated as of the date of last signature below (“Amendment Effective Date”), and is by and 

between UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA, a publicly owned and operated hospital created by virtue 

of Chapter 450 of the Nevada Revised Statutes (“HOSPITAL”), and COMPASS GROUP USA, INC, a Delaware corporation 

(“COMPANY”). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, HOSPITAL and COMPANY entered into an Agreement for Food Services and Clinical Nutrition Management 

Services (Lot 2) RFP 2018-01 dated December 12, 2018, as amended (the "Agreement");  

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Subsection II(D)(3)(c) COMPANY is entitled to an annual CPI increase upon ninety (90) days’ notice; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, HOSPITAL and COMPANY wish to amend the Agreement in certain respects as provided in this Fourth Amendment. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and mutual covenants herein contained, and intending to be legally 

bound hereby, the parties agree as follows: 

1.  The parties agree that the CPI adjustment is 5.5%. Sections 2.2.a and 2.4.a of Exhibit A-1 are hereby amended to 

reflect the applicable new rates below, effective March 5, 2024: 

 

2. The first sentence of Subsection II(A) (Compensation) is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following 

language: "HOSPITAL agrees to pay COMPANY for the performances of SERVICES described in the Statement of Work 

(Exhibit A) not to exceed amount of $6,337,880.00 annually for the Services." 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DC46B94C-4525-4935-9B67-F77C771FBCAF

Page 226 of 296



All other terms, conditions, and stipulations contained in the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and without 

any change or modifications whatsoever, except in the event of any conflict between this Amendment and the Agreement, 

this Amendment will control.  This Amendment may be executed in one or more counterparts.  Each counterpart shall be 

deemed an original, but all counterparts together constitute one and the same instrument. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment on the date of last signature. 

COMPASS GROUP USA, INC. UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
 
Signature:___________________________________ 

 
Signature:___________________________________ 

 
Printed Name: Robert H. Kutteh 

 
Printed Name: Mason VanHouweling 

 
Title: CEO – Compass One Healthcare 

 
Title: Chief Executive Officer 

 
Date:_______________________________________ 

 
Date:_______________________________________ 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DC46B94C-4525-4935-9B67-F77C771FBCAF

3/19/2024

Page 227 of 296



REVISED 7/25/2014 

INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETING THE  

DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS FORM 

Purpose of the Form 

 

The purpose of the Disclosure of Ownership/Principals Form is to gather ownership information pertaining to the business entity for use by the University Medical 

Center of Southern Nevada Governing Board (“GB”) in determining whether members of the GB should exclude themselves from voting on agenda items where 

they have, or may be perceived as having a conflict of interest, and to determine compliance with Nevada Revised Statute 281A.430, contracts in which a public 

officer or employee has interest is prohibited. 
 

General Instructions 
 

Completion and submission of this Form is a condition of approval or renewal of a contract or lease and/or release of monetary funding between the disclosing 

entity and University Medical Center of Southern Nevada.  Failure to submit the requested information may result in a refusal by the GB to enter into an 

agreement/contract and/or release monetary funding to such disclosing entity. 
 

Detailed Instructions 
 

All sections of the Disclosure of Ownership form must be completed.  If not applicable, write in N/A. 
 

Business Entity Type – Indicate if the entity is an Individual, Partnership, Limited Liability Company, Corporation, Trust, Non-profit Organization, or Other.  

When selecting ‘Other’, provide a description of the legal entity. 
 

Non-Profit Organization (NPO) - Any non-profit corporation, group, association, or corporation duly filed and registered as required by state law. 
 

Business Designation Group – Indicate if the entity is a Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE), Women-Owned Business Enterprise (WBE), Small 

Business Enterprise (SBE), Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE), Veteran Owned Business (VET), Disabled Veteran Owned Business (DVET), or 

Emerging Small Business (ESB) . This is needed in order to provide utilization statistics to the Legislative Council Bureau, and will be used only for such 

purpose.   
 

• Minority Owned Business Enterprise (MBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 

is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more minority persons of Black American, Hispanic American, Asian-Pacific American or Native 

American ethnicity. 

• Women Owned Business Enterprise (WBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function and 

is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more women. 

• Physically-Challenged Business Enterprise (PBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful 

function and is at least 51% owned and controlled by one or more disabled individuals pursuant to the federal Americans with Disabilities Act. 

• Small Business Enterprise (SBE): An independent and continuing business for profit which performs a commercially useful function, is not owned 

and controlled by individuals designated as minority, women, or physically-challenged, and where gross annual sales does not exceed $2,000,000. 

• Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (VET): An independent and continuing Nevada business for profit which performs a commercially useful 

function and is at least 51 percent owned and controlled by one or more U.S. Veterans. 

• Disabled Veteran Owned Business Enterprise (DVET):  A Nevada business at least 51 percent owned/controlled by a disabled veteran. 

• Emerging Small Business (ESB): Certified by the Nevada Governor's Office of Economic Development effective January, 2014. Approved into 

Nevada law during the 77th Legislative session as a result of AB294. 
 

Business Name (include d.b.a., if applicable) – Enter the legal name of the business entity and enter the “Doing Business As” (d.b.a.) name, if applicable.   
 

Corporate/Business Address, Business Telephone, Business Fax, and Email – Enter the street address, telephone and fax numbers, and email of the named 

business entity.   
 

Nevada Local Business Address, Local Business Telephone, Local Business Fax, and Email – If business entity is out-of-state, but operates the business from a 

location in Nevada, enter the Nevada street address, telephone and fax numbers, point of contact and email of the local office. Please note that the local address 

must be an address from which the business is operating from that location. Please do not include a P.O. Box number, unless required by the U.S. Postal Service, 

or a business license hanging address. 
 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents employed by this firm. (Do not leave blank. If none or zero, put the number 0 in the space provided.) 
 

List of Owners/Officers – Include the full name, title and percentage of ownership of each person who has ownership or financial interest in the business entity.  If 

the business is a publicly-traded corporation or non-profit organization, list all Corporate Officers and Directors only.   
 

For All Contracts – (Not required for publicly-traded corporations) 

1) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity are a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s).  If yes, the following paragraph applies. 

 

In accordance with NRS 281A.430.1, a public officer or employee shall not bid on or enter into a contract between a government agency and any 

private business in which he has a significant financial interest, except as provided for in subsections 2, 3, and 4. 
 

2) Indicate if any individual members, partners, owners or principals involved in the business entity have a second degree of consanguinity or affinity 

relation to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) (reference form on Page 2 for 

definition).  If YES, complete the Disclosure of Relationship Form.  
 

A professional service is defined as a business entity that offers business/financial consulting, legal, physician, architect, engineer or other professional services. 
 

Signature and Print Name – Requires signature of an authorized representative and the date signed. 
 

Disclosure of Relationship Form – If any individual members, partners, owners or principals of the business entity is presently a University Medical Center of 

Southern Nevada employee, public officer or official, or has a second degree of consanguinity or affinity relationship to a University Medical Center of Southern 

Nevada employee, public officer or official, this section must be completed in its entirety.   

 

Page 228 of 296



DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS 

1 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

Business Entity Type (Please select one) 

 Sole 
Proprietorship 

Partnership 
 Limited Liability 

Company  
 Corporation  Trust 

 Non-Profit 
Organization 

 Other 

Business Designation Group (Please select all that apply) 

 MBE  WBE  SBE  PBE  VET DVET  ESB 

Minority Business 
Enterprise 

Women-Owned 
Business 
Enterprise 

Small Business 
Enterprise 

Physically Challenged 
Business Enterprise 

Veteran Owned 
Business 

Disabled Veteran 
Owned Business 

Emerging Small 
Business 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents Employed: 

Corporate/Business Entity Name: Morrison Management Specialists, Inc 

(Include d.b.a., if applicable) 

Street Address: 400 Northridge Road, Suite 700 Website:  www.crothall.com 

City, State and Zip Code: 
Sandy Springs, GA 30050 POC Name: John Beck 

Email:   john.beck@crothall.com 

Telephone No: (800) 225-43698 Fax No: n/a 

Nevada Local Street Address: 

(If different from above) 

1800 West Charleston Blvd. Website: www.crothall.com 

 City, State and Zip Code: Las Vegas, NV  89102 Local Fax No:  n/a 

Local Telephone No: 
(702) 383-7870 Local POC Name:  Daniel Rosales 

Email:  DanielRosales@iammorrison.com 

All entities, with the exception of publicly-traded and non-profit organizations, must list the names of individuals holding more than five percent (5%) ownership or 
financial interest in the business entity appearing before the Board. 

Publicly-traded entities and non-profit organizations shall list all Corporate Officers and Directors in lieu of disclosing the names of individuals with 
ownership or financial interest. The disclosure requirement, as applied to land-use applications, extends to the applicant and the landowner(s). 

Entities include all business associations organized under or governed by Title 7 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, including but not limited to private corporations, 
close corporations, foreign corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, limited partnerships, and professional corporations. 

Full Name Title % Owned 
(Not required for Publicly Traded 

Corporations/Non-profit organizations) 

Compass group USA Investments Inc. 100% (ultimate parent traded on LSE) 

This section is not required for publicly-traded corporations.  Are you a publicly-traded corporation?    Yes    No 

1. Are any individual members, partners, owners or principals, involved in the business entity, a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time 
employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please note that University Medical Center of Southern Nevada employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) may not 
perform any work on professional service contracts, or other contracts, which are not subject to competitive bid.) 

2. Do any individual members, partners, owners or principals have a spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent, in-law or brother/sister, half-brother/half-
sister, grandchild, grandparent, related to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please complete the Disclosure of Relationship form on Page 2.  If no, please print N/A on Page 2.) 

I certify under penalty of perjury, that all of the information 
provided herein is current, complete, and accurate. I also 
understand that the University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada Governing Board will not take action on land-use 
approvals, contract approvals, land sales, leases or 
exchanges without the completed disclosure form. 

Print Name 

Signature 

Date 

Title 

Richard Rossitch

Assistant Secretary
March 26, 2024

Page 229 of 296

McphaT01
rossitch signature



DISCLOSURE OF RELATIONSHIP 

2 
REVISED 7/25/2014 

List any disclosures below: 
(Mark N/A, if not applicable.) 

NAME OF BUSINESS 
OWNER/PRINCIPAL 

NAME OF UMC* 
EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

AND JOB TITLE 

RELATIONSHIP TO 
 UMC* 

EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

UMC* 
EMPLOYEE’S/OFFICIAL’S 

DEPARTMENT 

* UMC employee means an employee of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada

“Consanguinity” is a relationship by blood.  “Affinity” is a relationship by marriage. 

“To the second degree of consanguinity” applies to the candidate’s first and second degree of blood relatives as 
follows: 

• Spouse – Registered Domestic Partners – Children – Parents – In-laws (first degree)

• Brothers/Sisters – Half-Brothers/Half-Sisters – Grandchildren – Grandparents – In-laws (second degree)

For UMC Use Only: 

If any Disclosure of Relationship is noted above, please complete the following:    

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in the contracting/selection process for this particular agenda item? 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in any way with the business in performance of the contract? 

Notes/Comments: 

____________________________________ 
Signature  

____________________________________ 
Print Name  
Authorized Department Representative 

Page 230 of 296



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
March 27, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

12 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD  

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue:               First Amendment to Master Agreement with EV&A Architects.  

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner:  Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board approve and authorize the Chief Executive Officer to sign the 
First Amendment to the Master Services Agreement with EV&A Architects for 
Architectural Design and Documents Service; or take action as deemed appropriate. (For 
possible action)  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number:  5430.011            Fund Name:  Clark County Capital Equipment Transfer 
Fund Center:  3000999901            Funded Pgm/Grant:  N/A 
Description:  Architectural Design and Documents Service 
Bid/RFP/CBE: NRS 332.115(a)(b) – Professional Services 
Term:  Amendment 1 - 1 year from Effective date with four 1-year options 
Amount: Amendment 1 – additional $247,400.00; Total cumulative funding is $742,400.00 for Master 
Agreement and Amendment. 
Out Clause:  30 days w/o cause 
                     Budget Act and Fiscal Fund Out 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 
On February 28, 2024, UMC entered into a Master Agreement (“Agreement”) with EV&A (“Provider”) to 
provide various architectural design and documentation services for multiple areas of UMC’s campus. UMC 
agreed to compensate Provider $495,000 for the term of the agreement. 
 
This First Amendment requests to increase the funding under the Master Service Agreement by an additional 
$247,400.00 to cover costs incurred for additional Architectural Design and Document Services. 
 
UMC’s Director of Plant Operations has reviewed and recommends approval of this Amendment. This 
Amendment has been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 
 
This Agreement was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their March 20, 2024 
meeting and recommended for approval by the Governing Board. 
 

Page 231 of 296



First Amendment to the Master Service Agreement  
for Architectural Design and Document Services 

 
This First Amendment (“First Amendment”) to the Master Services Agreement for Architectural Design 
and Documentation Services between University Medical Center of Southern Nevada a publicly owned 
and operated hospital created by virtue of Chapter 450 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, having its 
principal place of business at 1800 W Charleston Blvd, Las Vegas, NV 89102, (“HOSPITAL”) and EV&A 
Architects (hereinafter referred to as “COMPANY”) having its principal place of business at 1160 N. Town 
Center, Las Vegas, NV 89144 is effective as of the date last signed by the parties below (“First 
Amendment Effective Date”).  
 
WHEREAS, the parties entered into an agreement for Architectural Design and Documentation Services 
having an effective date of February, 28, 2024 (referred to as the “Agreement”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the parties desire to further amend this Agreement with this First Amendment. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 
 

1. The parties agree to increase the not-to exceed amount by two hundred forty-seven thousand, 
four hundred dollars and zero cent ($247,400.00), to cover unforeseen Architectural drawing 
and document costs.  
 

2. Section II(A) – COMPENSATION shall be modified as follows:  
 
HOSPITAL agrees to pay COMPANY for the performance of services described in the Scope of 
Work (Exhibit A) for the not-to-exceed amount of Seven hundred forty-two thousand, four 
hundred dollars and zero cents ($742,400.00) to cover the original scope and increased 
requirements for Architectural Designs. HOSPITAL’s obligation to pay COMPANY cannot exceed 
the not-to-exceed amount.  
 

3. Except as expressly amended in this First Amendment, the Agreement shall remain in full force 
and effect.  
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this First Amendment effective as of the date of 
countersignature below. 
 

 

EV&A Architects      University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 

Signature: ______________________________  Signature: __________________________________ 

Printed Name: _________________________  Printed Name: Mason Van Houweling 

Title: ________________________________  Title: Chief Executive Officer____________________ 

Date: __________________________________  Date: ______________________________________ 

 

Page 232 of 296

kwanbaugh
Text Box
Kellie Wanbaugh

kwanbaugh
Text Box
Vice President - Interiors

kwanbaugh
Text Box
March 11, 2024



 

14 

 

DISCLOSURE OF OWNERSHIP/PRINCIPALS 

Business Entity Type (Please select one) 

 Sole 
Proprietorship 

Partnership 
 Limited Liability 

Company  
 Corporation  Trust 

 Non-Profit   
Organization 

  Other 

Business Designation Group (Please select all that apply) 

 MBE  WBE  SBE  PBE  VET DVET  ESB 

Minority Business 
Enterprise 

Women-Owned 
Business Enterprise 

Small Business 
Enterprise 

Physically Challenged 
Business Enterprise 

Veteran Owned 
Business 

Disabled Veteran 
Owned Business 

Emerging Small 
Business 

 

Number of Clark County Nevada Residents Employed: 
  

Corporate/Business Entity Name:   

(Include d.b.a., if applicable)  

Street Address:  Website: www.edvanceassociates.com 

City, State and Zip Code: 
 POC Name: Kellie Wanbaugh 

Email: kwanbaugh@evaarch.com 

Telephone No:  Fax No: 

Nevada Local Street Address: 

(If different from above) 

 Website: 

 City, State and Zip Code:  Local Fax No: 

Local Telephone No: 
 Local POC Name: 

Email: 

All entities, with the exception of publicly-traded and non-profit organizations, must list the names of individuals holding more than five percent (5%) ownership or financial 
interest in the business entity appearing before the Board. 

Publicly-traded entities and non-profit organizations shall list all Corporate Officers and Directors in lieu of disclosing the names of individuals with ownership or financial 
interest. The disclosure requirement, as applied to land-use applications, extends to the applicant and the landowner(s). 

Entities include all business associations organized under or governed by Title 7 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, including but not limited to private corporations, close 
corporations, foreign corporations, limited liability companies, partnerships, limited partnerships, and professional corporations. 

 

 
Full Name 

 
 

  
Title 

 
 

  
% Owned 

(Not required for Publicly Traded 
Corporations/Non-profit organizations) 

 

     
 

     
 

     
 

     
 

This section is not required for publicly-traded corporations.  Are you a publicly-traded corporation?             Yes       No 

1. Are any individual members, partners, owners or principals, involved in the business entity, a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or 
appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please note that University Medical Center of Southern Nevada employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s) may not perform any 
work on professional service contracts, or other contracts, which are not subject to competitive bid.) 

 

2. Do any individual members, partners, owners or principals have a spouse, registered domestic partner, child, parent, in-law or brother/sister, half-brother/half-sister, 
grandchild, grandparent,  related to a University Medical Center of Southern Nevada full-time employee(s), or appointed/elected official(s)? 

  Yes   No (If yes, please complete the Disclosure of Relationship form on Page 2.  If no, please print N/A on Page 2.)  

I certify under penalty of perjury, that all of the information provided herein is current, complete, and accurate. I also understand that the University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada Governing Board will not take action on land-use approvals, contract approvals, land sales, leases or exchanges without the completed disclosure form. 

 

    

Signature 

 

 Print Name  

    

Title  Date  

List any disclosures below: 

X

X

Ed Vance Associates, Architects

1160 N. Town Center Dr, Ste 170

Las Vegas, NV 89144

702-946-8195

Edward Vance

Matthew Burns

Kellie Wanbaugh

Founder/CEO

Executive Vice President

Vice President-Interiors

56.6%

28.3%

9.4%

X

X

X

Edward Vance

Founder/CEO 2/7/2024

Page 233 of 296



 

15 

 

(Mark N/A, if not applicable.) 

 

NAME OF BUSINESS 
OWNER/PRINCIPAL 

NAME OF UMC* 
EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

AND JOB TITLE 

RELATIONSHIP TO 
 UMC* 

EMPLOYEE/OFFICIAL 

UMC* 
EMPLOYEE’S/OFFICIAL’S 

DEPARTMENT 
 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 
 

   

 

 

* UMC employee means an employee of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada 
 
“Consanguinity” is a relationship by blood.  “Affinity” is a relationship by marriage. 
 
“To the second degree of consanguinity” applies to the candidate’s first and second degree of blood relatives as follows: 
 

• Spouse – Registered Domestic Partners – Children – Parents – In-laws (first degree) 
 

• Brothers/Sisters – Half-Brothers/Half-Sisters – Grandchildren – Grandparents – In-laws (second degree) 
 
 

 
For UMC Use Only: 

 
If any Disclosure of Relationship is noted above, please complete the following:     
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in the contracting/selection process for this particular agenda item? 
 

  Yes     No   Is the UMC employee(s) noted above involved in any way with the business in performance of the contract? 
 
Notes/Comments: 
 

 

____________________________________ 

Signature  

 

____________________________________ 

Print Name  

Authorized Department Representative 
 

 

N/A

Page 234 of 296



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 
 

 

Cleared for Agenda 
March 27, 2024 

 
 

Agenda Item # 

13 

 
 
Issue:                NVPERS Critical Labor Shortage Request 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board review and recommend for approval by the Board of Hospital Trustees 
for University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, the revisions to the Critical Labor Shortage 
Resolution in accordance to NRS 286.523, for University Medical Center of Southern Nevada to 
employ retired public employees to fill positions for which there is a critical labor shortage; and take 
action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action)  
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
  

Unknown 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 

On June 2, 2020, the Hospital Board of Trustees ratified a resolution pursuant to NRS 286.523 to employ retired 
public employees to fill positions for which there was a critical labor shortage.  The critical labor shortage was not 
expected to last more than two (2) years.  However, due to the continuing critical labor shortage that University 
Medical Center of Southern Nevada is still experiencing, this new resolution will extend the critical needs 
designation for certain healthcare positions by an additional two (2) years.   
 
These Resolution was reviewed by the Governing Board Human Resources and Executive Compensation Committee 
at their March 18, 2024 meeting and recommended for approval by for approval by the Board of Hospital Trustees. 
 

Page 235 of 296



RESOLUTION 

 WHEREAS, on June 2, 2020, the University Medical Center of Southern Nevada Board 
of Hospital Trustees ratified a resolution, pursuant to NRS 286.523, for University Medical 
Center of Southern Nevada to employ retired public employees to fill positions for which there 
was a critical labor shortage due to the emergency that was declared by the Governor of the State 
of Nevada and the Manager of the County of Clark in response to the rapid spread of the 
COVID-19 virus; and 

 WHEREAS, on May 17, 2022, the University Medical Center of Southern Nevada Board 
of Hospital Trustees ratified a resolution, pursuant to NRS 286.523, for University Medical 
Center of Southern Nevada to continue to employ retired public employees to fill positions for 
which there was a critical labor shortage and because University Medical Center of Southern 
Nevada personnel were at increased risk for exposure to COVID-19 and would be isolated and 
unable to work when exposed; and 

      WHEREAS, University Medical Center of Southern Nevada continues to experience 
difficulty in filling various positions as there is a critical shortage of trained personnel with the 
qualifications of healthcare experience and patient care; and 

      WHEREAS, the critical shortage of these personnel with the qualifications of healthcare 
experience and patient care has continued, and is expected to continue, even though the 
declaration of the COVID-19 public health emergency has concluded; and  

 WHEREAS, a list of the positions for which there is a critical shortage is attached to this 
Resolution as Attachment “1”; and 

       WHEREAS, employment of healthcare workers who are currently NVPERS retirees but 
who are critically needed to maintain the health and safety of the Southern Nevada community 
would provide an immediate resource of trained personnel for critical positions; and 

      WHEREAS, NRS 286.523 provides that the governing body of an employer which 
desires to employ a retired public employee to fill a position for which there is a critical labor 
shortage must make certain determinations and findings regarding the need for such 
reemployment so that the retirement benefits of such personnel are not jeopardized. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, the University Medical Center of Southern Nevada Board of 
Hospital Trustees finds and resolves as follows: 

1. University Medical Center of Southern Nevada continues to experience difficulty in filling 
various positions as there is a critical shortage of trained personnel with the qualifications 
of healthcare experience and patient care. 

2. Training for these positions is extensive and complex, and there is insufficient time to 
recruit and train new personnel for these positions to meet the existing need and demand. 

3. Due to similar demands placed on all neighboring governmental entities, it is difficult for 
personnel to be borrowed from other governmental entities to fill these positions.   

Page 236 of 296



4. The effective date of the critical need designations for certain healthcare positions at 
University Medical Center of Southern Nevada is not expected to last more than two 
additional years.   
 
 
PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this _____ day of April, 2024. 

 

     UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF   
     SOUTHERN NEVADA BOARD OF HOSPITAL  
     TRUSTEES 

 
     BY: ________________________________ 
                                                 WILLIAM MCCURDY II, Chair 
 
Attest: 
 
 
________________________________ 
LYNN MARIE GOYA, Clerk      
 
 
 

Page 237 of 296



 

 
NMU01062A 

Attachment # 1 
 
To maintain the health and safety of the Southern Nevada community in response to these ongoing 
challenges, UMC has requested that it be authorized to utilize healthcare workers who are currently 
Nevada Public Employees’ Retirement System (“NVPERS”) retirees but who are also critically 
needed to assist UMC staffing for our patients. As such, UMC requested from NVPERS that any 
retirees who are chosen to fill the following positions be exempt from the 90-day waiting period, 
the cap of hours worked, and the cap on earnings:  
 

• Advanced Practice Registered Nurse (including Nurse Practitioner) 
• Certified Nursing Assistant 
• Clinical Lab Technologist 
• Clinical Nurse Specialist 
• Clinical Instructor 
• Hospitalist 
• Infectious Disease Physician 
• Nurse Navigator 
• Pharmacist (including Clinical Specialist) 
• Primary Care Physician 
• Registered Radiology Technologist (including Senior) 
• Registered Nurse 
• Respiratory Care Practitioner (including Advanced) 
• Specialty Imaging Technologist (including Senior) 
• Sr. Respiratory Therapist 
• Staff Physician (including Specialty Staff Physician) 

 

Page 238 of 296



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
March 27, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

14 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Amendment Three to Master Professional Services Agreement with 

Medicus Healthcare Solutions, LLC  

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
      

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board review and recommend for approval by the Board of Hospital 
Trustees for University Medical Center of Southern Nevada, the Amendment Three to 
Master Professional Services Agreement with Medicus Healthcare Solutions, LLC for 
locum tenens and advanced practitioners staffing services; authorize the Chief Executive 
Officer to execute amendments within the not-to-exceed amount of this Agreement; or 
take action as deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
Fund Number:  5420.000     Fund Name:  UMC Operating Fund 
Fund Center:  3000714200     Funded Pgm/Grant:  N/A 
Description:  Locum Tenens and Advanced Practitioners Staffing Services 
Bid/RFP/CBE:  NRS 332.115.1(b) – Professional Services 
Term:  Amendment 3 – same Term 
Amount:  Amendment 3 – additional NTE $10,000,000 
Out Clause:  60 days w/o cause 
 

BACKGROUND: 
 

On November 16, 2022, the Governing Board approved the Master Professional Services Agreement 
(“Agreement”) with Medicus Healthcare Solutions, LLC (“Medicus”) to provide a full range of trauma and/or 
surgical anesthesiology locum tenens and advanced practitioners staffing services including, but not limited to, 
UMC’s Departments of Anesthesiology, Trauma, Emergency Room, Radiology, Cardiac Catheterization Lab, 
Burn Unit and/or Surgery. The initial Agreement Term was from November 16, 2022 through May 16, 2023, 
with three (3) renewal periods of six (6) months each unless terminated without cause with a 60-day notice, 
with a not-to-exceed amount of $4,950,000.  
 
Amendment One, effective March 21, 2023, extended the Term through December 31, 2023, increased the 
funding by adding a NTE $11,050,000, and updated the fee schedule.  A Radiology Statement of Work 
(“Radiology SOW”), effective July 21, 2023, added radiology locum tenens to provide project-based services.  
Amendment Two, effective December 5, 2023, extended the Agreement’s and Radiology SOW’s Term 
through December 31, 2024. 
 
 

Page 239 of 296



Page Number 
2 

 
 
This Amendment Three requests to add a not-to-exceed funding amount of $10,000,000 to anticipate 
continued services provided by Medicus that were not contemplated in the original Agreement.  Staff also 
requests authorization for the Hospital CEO to execute amendments within the not-to-exceed amount of this 
Agreement. 
 
UMC’s Support Services Executive Director has reviewed and recommends approval of this Amendment.  
This Amendment has been approved as to form by UMC’s Office of General Counsel. 
 
This Amendment was reviewed by the Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee at their March 20, 
2024 meeting and recommended for approval by the Board of Hospital Trustees. 

Page 240 of 296



Page 241 of 296



Page 242 of 296



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
March 27, 2024 

 
 

Agenda Item #  

15 
 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: GME Update 
  

 
Back-up: 
      
  

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer  
 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
 

 
Recommendation: 
  

That the Governing Board receive an educational update from Dr. Kate Martin, Associate 
Dean for Graduate Medical Education and Designated Institutional Official (DIO), 
regarding the Graduate Medical Education Program at the Kirk Kerkorian School of 
Medicine at UNLV, Las Vegas; and take any action deemed appropriate.  (For possible 
action) 
  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None    
           

BACKGROUND: 
 

The Governing Board will receive an update from Dr. Kate Martin, Associate Dean of the Kirk 
Kerkorian, School of Medicine at UNLV, Las Vegas. 

 

Page 243 of 296



Graduate Medical Education Report
Dr. Kate Martin, Associate Dean for Graduate Medical Education (GME) & DIO,

Professor of Family Medicine, Kirk Kerkorian School of Medicine
Prepared for the UMC Governing Board Meeting

March 27, 2024

Page 244 of 296



Page 245 of 296

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Match Day is a term used widely in the graduate medical education community to represent the day when the National Resident Matching Program or NRMP releases results to applicants seeking residency and fellowship training positions in the United States. Match Day for the NRMP Main Residency Match is on the third Friday of March each year, and Match Day ceremonies occur at many of the 155 medical schools in the United States where those results are announced.Members of the U.S. military participate in their own selection process for programs located at military hospitals, clinics, and bases. The military selection usually occurs in mid-December to allow students who did not match to participate in other national matching plans.



Page 246 of 296

Presenter
Presentation Notes
UME Match Geographic Distribution 57% of the Kirk Kerkorian School of Medicine’s class of 2024 remaining in Nevada for at least their first year of graduate medical education (GME).77% of physicians who complete their undergraduate (MD degree program) and graduate (residency/fellowship) medical education in Nevada actively practice in Nevada. Although Nevada may rank 45th in the nation for active physicians per 100,000 population, we are 6th in the nation for active physicians retained from an in-state GME program, therefore the 2024 Match Day results are great news for the state. [From Making the Rounds newsletter 3/19/24]



Page 247 of 296

Presenter
Presentation Notes
UME Match Infographic



Kirk Kerkorian Medical Residents - Geographic Distribution

Page 248 of 296

Presenter
Presentation Notes
GME Match Geographic Distribution



Kirk Kerkorian Medical Residents - By Discipline

Page 249 of 296



Kirk Kerkorian School of Medicine GME Programs
RESIDENCY FELLOWSHIP

Emergency Medicine Acute Care Surgery

Family Medicine Cardiovascular Medicine

Family Medicine - Rural Child and Adolescent Psychiatry

General Surgery Endocrinology, Diabetes, and Metabolism

Internal Medicine Forensic Pathology *** NEW ***

Obstetrics and Gynecology Forensic Psychiatry

Orthopaedic Surgery Gastroenterology

Otolaryngology Geriatric Medicine

Pediatrics Pediatric Emergency Medicine

Plastic Surgery Pulmonary and Critical Care Medicine

Psychiatry Rheumatology *** NEW ***

Sports Medicine

Surgical Critical Care

Page 250 of 296



AAMC 25th Percentile for Western Region - 2023

Page 251 of 296

Presenter
Presentation Notes
AAMC Conducts annual salary surveys of faculty and residentsIntended to address equity in academic medicineUsed by institutions nationwide as benchmark for compensationMinimum Benchmark: 25th percentileOrganized by regions of the country and types of academic institutionsThis is the request from Kirk Kerkorian SOM for AY25



Page 252 of 296

Presenter
Presentation Notes
No AAMC Resident Salary data was collected for 2017-18UNLV opened its doors to GME programs in July 2017 so that’s when the salary data begins



UMC FTEs for Kirk Kerkorian School of 
Medicine GME Programs

UMC FTEs: 204

TOTAL SOM FTEs: 342

Page 253 of 296



Additional GME Sites / Funding Sources
Sunrise Hospital VA Health System

Nellis Air Force Base Humboldt General Hospital

Southern Nevada Adult Mental Health Services Seven Hills Hospital

Healthy Minds, Calm Clinic, other clinics UNLV Student Wellness Center

NV State Division of Child & Family Services GME Grants from Nevada Governor's Office

Page 254 of 296

Presenter
Presentation Notes
Other sites match that salary rate determined by UMC each year. Indicates that we don’t solely rely on UMC and utilize partners to help offset costs to the hospital.



Page 255 of 296

Presenter
Presentation Notes
https://www.dignityhealth.org/las-vegas/about-us/students-and-residents/gme/internal-medicine-residency/salary-and-benefitshttps://hcahealthcaregme.com/locations/mountainview-hospital/emergency-medicine-residency/ [+ $950 for on-call meals]https://med.unr.edu/gme/resident-resources/salary 



UMC/UNLV Collaboration
• 5% ↑ in resident salaries for current year
• Recognition for Thank A Resident Day – 02/24/2024
• Coffee and snacks
• Holiday meals
• Work space Improvements

• Whiteboard – 6th floor Internal Medicine workroom
• 2 WOWs in Medical ICU

• 2 Residents added to HCAHPS Committee
• Emergency Medicine & Surgery

• Approval of Away Rotations

Page 256 of 296



Page 257 of 296



Page 258 of 296



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
March 27, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

16 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Education –  Governing Board 2024 Action Plan  
 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer  
 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
 

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board review and discuss the Governing Board 2024 Action Plan, to 
include an informational overview of the GME program from Shana Tello, Academic and 
External Affairs Administrator; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible 
action) 
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None  
           

BACKGROUND: 
 

The Governing Board will review the 2024 Action Plan as it relates to the GME program at UMC. 
 

Page 259 of 296



Page 260 of 296



Shana Tello, Academic & External Affairs Administrator

Governing Board March 27, 2024 
Page 261 of 296



• Salary and meal stipend increase
• Workroom Improvements
• 2 Residents added to HCAHPS 

Committee 
• Additional WOWs, laptops and 

phones
• Installation of MModal Mics
• Facilitation of ordering furniture, 

supplies, lockers, etc. 
• Streamline onboarding process

Page 262 of 296



Salary Support Increase
Preparing for board approval

Meal Funds   
Finalizing

UMC Support/Communication
Ongoing

Workrooms/Sleep Space
Ongoing

Page 263 of 296



 $12,000,000.00

 $12,500,000.00

 $13,000,000.00

 $13,500,000.00

 $14,000,000.00

 $14,500,000.00

 $15,000,000.00

 $15,500,000.00

 $16,000,000.00

 $16,500,000.00

FY18 FY19 FY20 FY21 FY22 FY23 FY24

Re
sid

en
t S

al
ar

ie
s (

in
cl

us
iv

e 
of

 b
en

ef
its

) Total
Avg Base 
Salary ↑

FY18 13,653,247$  0%
FY19 14,923,130$  2%
FY20 14,833,650$  3%
FY21 15,213,078$  1%
FY22 15,190,371$  0%
FY23 15,364,340$  2%
FY24 16,104,243$  5%

Total includes: salary, 
malpractice & fringe

215 

200

210

217

214
208

204

Page 264 of 296


Sheet1

				Total		Avg Base Salary ↑

		FY18		$   13,653,247		0%

		FY19		$   14,923,130		2%

		FY20		$   14,833,650		3%

		FY21		$   15,213,078		1%

		FY22		$   15,190,371		0%

		FY23		$   15,364,340		2%

		FY24		$   16,104,243		5%







PGY1 PGY2 PGY3 PGY4 PGY5 PGY6
Base 56,834$   58,769$    60,613$    63,156$   65,549$   68,307$     
Fringe 15,118$   15,633$    16,123$    16,799$   17,436$   18,170$     
Malpractice 2,537$     2,537$      2,537$      2,537$     2,537$     2,537$      

Total 74,489$   76,939$    79,273$    82,492$   85,522$   89,014$    

Page 265 of 296


Sheet1

				PGY1		PGY2		PGY3		PGY4		PGY5		PGY6

		Base		$   56,834		$   58,769		$   60,613		$   63,156		$   65,549		$   68,307

		Fringe		$   15,118		$   15,633		$   16,123		$   16,799		$   17,436		$   18,170

		Malpractice		$   2,537		$   2,537		$   2,537		$   2,537		$   2,537		$   2,537

		Total		$   74,489		$   76,939		$   79,273		$   82,492		$   85,522		$   89,014







Base salary only- does not include fringe and malpractice

UNLV UNR 25th %tile
PGY1 56,834$   60,070$   63,587$   
PGY2 58,769$   61,183$   65,996$   
PGY3 60,613$   63,823$   68,733$   
PGY4 63,156$   66,493$   70,183$   
PGY5 65,549$   68,609$   74,031$   
PGY6 68,307$   71,195$   77,178$   

Western Region States: AL, AZ, CA, CO, HI, ID, MT, NV, NM, OR, UT, WA, WY

Page 266 of 296


Sheet1

				UNLV		UNR		25th %tile

		PGY1		$   56,834		$   60,070		$   63,587

		PGY2		$   58,769		$   61,183		$   65,996

		PGY3		$   60,613		$   63,823		$   68,733

		PGY4		$   63,156		$   66,493		$   70,183

		PGY5		$   65,549		$   68,609		$   74,031

		PGY6		$   68,307		$   71,195		$   77,178







California: Loma Linda, Shriners Hospital, Cedars Sinai, UCLA, Stanford 
University 
Colorado: Rocky Mountain Poison and Drug Center 
North Carolina: UNC Chapel Hill
Massachusetts: Beth Israel Deaconess Medical 

UNLV HEALTH CLINICS 

COMMUNITY ROTATIONS
• 60 sites

2023-2024 AWAY ROTATIONS 
• 8 rotations approved; 22 residents; $84,683

Page 267 of 296



• Legislation
• CMS Expansion Grant
• Governor's Grant for GME
• Thank a Resident Day 
• Participation in Resident Orientation 
• Integration of Resident Rotations with UMC 

Expanded Service Lines 
• AAMC Membership

• Adopt a Resident
• Resident of the Month
• Resident Monthly Update 

Page 268 of 296



Page 269 of 296



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
March 27, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

17 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Education –  Food Services Update 
 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason VanHouweling, Chief Executive Officer  
 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
 

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board receive an update from Daniel Rosales, Retail Manager with 
Compass Group – Morrison, regarding food services at UMC; and take any action 
deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None  
           

BACKGROUND: 
 

Daniel Rosales, Compass Group Retail Manager,  will provide an update to the Board regarding the  activities 
in food services at UMC. 
 

Page 270 of 296



QUARTERLY 
BUSINESS REVIEW

Page 271 of 296



Food & Nutrition Services

Page 272 of 296



PATIENT MEAL
ORDERING SYSTEM

NUTRITION AI 
Tray Accuracy and  
Consum ption 
Tracking

MENU INSIGHTS
Patie nt Me nu 
Op tim iza tion

Pa t ie n t
Din ing  

Ec osys t e m

PATIENT MEAL 
ORDERING
from  the ir
Phone

MEAL TRAY 
TRACKING
Re al-tim e
Loca tion

ON-THE-GO ORDER 
STATUSES FOR NURSES
m e al orde r s ta tuse s
a t the ir s ta tion

PATIENT
FEEDBACK
on Me als

CART AND TRAY 
STATUS
with Loca tion
Vie w

Page 273 of 296



COMMUNICATION
TECHNOLOGY OVERVIEW

We e kly Nurse  
Round ing

Monthly Nursing
Focus Groups

FANS Inc lud e d  in 
Nursing  Orie nta tion

Page 274 of 296



EMPOWERING THE 
PATIENTS

TECHNOLOGY OVERVIEW

Nutrition Information

Calorie s

Potass ium

Carb ohyd ra te s

Phosp horus

Fat Sod ium

Prote in Fluid

458kcal 31g 20g 849m g

392m g 362m g 36g 0m L

PROVIDE
MORE OPTIONS

MULTI-LANGUAGE 
FUNCTIONALITY 

ON-DEMAND
ORDERING

Page 275 of 296



A FRESH 
LOOK AT 
PATIENT 
MENUS

FOCUS ON QUALITY

Lu nc h

Dinne r

Bre a kfa s t

Page 276 of 296



Core Menu

Page 277 of 296



Seasonal Favorites

Page 278 of 296



THANK
YOU

Page 279 of 296



Q&A

Page 280 of 296



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
March 27, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

18 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Education – Epic UGM Update  
 

 
Back-up: 
      

 
Petitioner: Mason VanHouweling, Chief Executive Officer  
 

 
Clerk Ref. # 
 

 
Recommendation: 
 
That the Governing Board receive update from Maria Sexton, UMC Chief Information 
Officer regarding Epic User Group project updates; and direct staff accordingly. (For 
possible action) 
 

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None  
           

BACKGROUND: 
 

The Governing Board will receive updates on the Epic UGM meeting program recommendations.   
 

Page 281 of 296



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

Issue: Report from the Governing Board Strategic Planning 
Committee 

 
Back-up: 

Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

Clerk Ref. # 

Recommendation: 

That the Governing Board receive a report from the Governing Board Strategic 
Planning Committee; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible 
action) 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

BACKGROUND: 

The Governing Board will receive a report on the Governing Board Strategic Planning Committee 
meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Cleared for Agenda 
March 27, 2024 

 
Agenda Item # 

19 
Page 282 of 296



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

Issue: Report from the Governing Board Human Resources and 
Executive Compensation Committee 

 
Back-up: 

Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

Clerk Ref. # 

Recommendation: 

That the Governing Board receive a report from the Governing Board Human 
Resources and Executive Compensation Committee; and take any action 
deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

BACKGROUND: 

The Governing Board will receive a report on the special meeting held on March 18, 2024 of 
the Governing Board Human Resources and Executive Compensation Committee meeting. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
March 27, 2024 

 
Agenda Item # 

20 
Page 283 of 296



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
March 27, 2024 

 
 

Agenda Item #  

21 
 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Report from Governing Board Audit and Finance Committee  
 

 
Back-up: 
      
  

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer  
  

 
Clerk Ref. # 
 
  

 
Recommendation: 
 

That the Governing Board receive a report from the Governing Board Audit and Finance 
Committee; and take any action deemed appropriate.  (For possible action)  
  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None    
           

BACKGROUND: 
 

The Governing Board will receive a report on the March 20, 2024 Governing Board Audit and 
Finance Committee meeting. 

Page 284 of 296



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
March 27, 2024 

 
 

 

Agenda Item #  

22 
 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
  

 
Issue: Monthly Financial Report for February FY24 Update 
  

 
Back-up: 
      
  

 
Petitioner: Mason VanHouweling, Chief Executive Officer  
  

 
Clerk Ref. # 
 

 
Recommendation: 
  

That the Governing Board receive an update on the monthly financial report for 
February FY24; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 
  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None 
           

BACKGROUND: 
 

The Governing Board will receive an update on February FY24 financial reports from Jennifer 
Wakem, Chief Financial Officer of University Medical Center of Southern Nevada. 

Page 285 of 296



GB Meeting

February 2024
Financials

Page 286 of 296



KEY INDICATORS – FEB

2

Current Month Actual Budget Variance % Var Prior Year Variance % Var
APDs 17,882 19,661 (1,779) (9.05%) 19,156 (1,274) (6.65%)

Total Admissions 1,838 1,856 (18) (0.96%) 1,842 (4) (0.22%)

Observation Cases 924 677 247 36.48% 677 247 36.48%

AADC (Hospital) 579 648 (69) (10.69%) 621 (42) (6.81%)

ALOS (Admits) 6.34 7.15 (0.81) (11.38%) 6.97 (0.63) (9.04%)
ALOS (Obs) 1.66 0.99 0.67 68.08% 0.99 0.67 68.08%
Hospital CMI 1.89 1.81 0.08 4.42% 1.81 0.08 4.42%

Medicare CMI 2.23 1.91 0.32 16.75% 1.91 - 16.79%

IP Surgery Cases 760 859 (99) (11.52%) 745 15 2.01%

OP Surgery Cases 558 519 39 7.58% 386 172 44.56%

Transplants 13 11 2 18.18% 11 2 18.18%

Total ER Visits 8,329 8,852 (523) (5.91%) 8,662 (333) (3.84%)

ED to Admission 12.95% - - - 11.49% 1.47% -

ED to Observation 10.96% - - - 10.14% 0.83% -

ED to Adm/Obs 23.92% - - - 21.62% 2.29% -

Quick Cares 18,607 14,712 3,895 26.48% 17,859 749 4.19%

Primary Care 7,537 7,757 (220) (2.84%) 6,589 948 14.39%

UMC Telehealth - QC 575 535 40 7.46% 474 101 21.31%

OP Ortho Clinic 1,751 2,557 (806) (31.51%) 1,234 517 41.90%

Deliveries 118 136 (18) (13.14%) 116 2 1.72%
Page 287 of 296



SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENT – FEB

3

REVENUE Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

  Total Operating Revenue $78,786,815 $79,586,152 ($799,337) (1.00%)

Net Patient Revenue as a % of Gross 18.60% 18.01% 0.58% -

EXPENSE Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

  Total Operating Expense $79,225,104 $75,867,286 ($3,357,818) (4.43%)

INCOME FROM OPS Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

Total Inc from Ops ($438,289) $3,718,866 ($4,157,155) (111.79%)

Add back: Depr & Amort. $3,986,956 $3,230,582 ($756,375) (23.41%)

Tot Inc from Ops plus Depr & Amort. $3,548,667 $6,949,447 ($3,400,780) (48.94%)

Operating Margin (w/Depr & Amort.) 4.50% 8.73% (4.23%) -

Page 288 of 296



SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENT – YTD FEB

4

REVENUE Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

  Total Operating Revenue $636,688,312 $651,159,998 ($14,471,686) (2.22%)

Net Patient Revenue as a % of Gross 19.00% 17.69% 1.31% -

EXPENSE Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

  Total Operating Expense $627,385,373 $636,529,958 $9,144,585 1.44%

INCOME FROM OPS Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

Total Inc from Ops $9,302,939 $14,630,040 ($5,327,101) (36.41%)

Add back: Depr & Amort. $31,426,052 $26,822,073 ($4,603,979) (17.16%)

Tot Inc from Ops plus Depr & Amort. $40,728,990 $41,452,113 ($723,122) (1.74%)

Operating Margin (w/Depr & Amort.) 6.40% 6.37% 0.03%

Page 289 of 296



SALARY & BENEFIT EXPENSE – FEB

5

Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

  Salaries $31,556,151 $29,950,237 ($1,605,914) (5.36%)

  Benefits $13,869,661 $14,579,610 $709,948 4.87%

  Overtime  $1,066,538 $1,298,878 $232,340 17.89%

  Contract Labor $2,616,412 $990,404 ($1,626,008) (164.18%)

  TOTAL  $49,108,761 $46,819,128 ($2,289,633) (4.89%)

Page 290 of 296



EXPENSES – FEB

6

Actual Budget Variance % Variance 

   Professional Fees $2,774,124 $2,993,865 $219,741 7.34%

   Supplies $14,015,146 $13,625,440 ($389,706) (2.86%)

   Purchased Services $6,964,943 $6,283,186 ($681,757) (10.85%)

   Depreciation $2,382,965 $2,364,147 ($18,819) (0.80%)

   Amortization $1,603,991 $866,435 ($737,556) (85.13%)

   Repairs & Maintenance $729,131 $1,014,989 $285,857 28.16%

   Utilities $433,136 $613,162 $180,026 29.36%

   Other Expenses $1,058,049 $1,048,343 ($9,706) (0.93%)

   Rental $154,857 $238,592 $83,735 35.10%

   Total Other Expenses $30,116,343 $29,048,158 ($1,068,185) (3.68%)
Page 291 of 296



FY 2025 BUD TIMELINE

7

03/20/2024 - AFC Prelim

04/17/2024 - AFC Proposed Final

04/24/2024 - Present Final Budget to GB

04/25/2024 - Final Budget sent to County

Page 292 of 296



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

Issue: Kirk Kerkorian School of Medicine Dean’s Update 
 

Back-up: 

Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

Clerk Ref. # 

Recommendation: 

That the Governing Board receive an update on the Kirk Kerkorian School of 
Medicine at UNLV; and take any action deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

BACKGROUND: 

The Governing Board will receive an update from Dr. Marc Kahn, Dean of the Kirk Kerkorian 
School of Medicine at UNLV. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   Cleared for Agenda 
    Mach 27, 2024 

 
 

Agenda Item # 

23 
Page 293 of 296



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

Issue: CEO Update 
 

Back-up: 

Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

Clerk Ref. # 

Recommendation: 

That the Governing Board receive an update from the Hospital CEO; and take any action 
deemed appropriate. (For possible action) 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

BACKGROUND: 

The Governing Board will receive an update from Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer, 
University Medical Center of Southern Nevada. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
March 27, 2024 

Agenda Item # 

24 

Page 294 of 296



 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
March 27, 2024 

 
 

Agenda Item #  

25 

UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

 
Issue: Emerging Issues 
  

 
Back-up: 
      
  

 
Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer  
  

 
Clerk Ref. # 
 
  

 
Recommendation: 
  

That the Governing Board identifies emerging issues to be addressed by staff or by the 
Board at future meetings; and direct staff accordingly. (For possible action)  
  

 
FISCAL IMPACT: 

 
None    
           

BACKGROUND: 
 

None.  

Page 295 of 296



UNIVERSITY MEDICAL CENTER OF SOUTHERN NEVADA 
GOVERNING BOARD 

AGENDA ITEM 
 

Issue: Closed Door Session 
 

Back-up: 

Petitioner: Mason Van Houweling, Chief Executive Officer 
 

Clerk Ref. # 

Recommendation: 

That the Governing Board go into closed session, pursuant to NRS 241.015(3)(b)(2), to 
receive information from the General Counsel regarding potential or existing litigation 
involving matters over which the Board had supervision, control, jurisdiction or 
advisory power, and to deliberate toward a decision on the matters; and direct staff 
accordingly. (For possible action) 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

None 

BACKGROUND: 

None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Cleared for Agenda 
March 27, 2024 

 
 

Agenda Item # 

26 

Page 296 of 296


	Cover Page
	AGENDA
	Governing Board - Agenda 2024.3.27 - Final.pdf

	SECTION 1.   OPENING CEREMONIES
	CALL TO ORDER
	1.   Public Comment
	2.   Approval of Minutes
	Governing Board -DRAFT -Minutes February 28, 2024.pdf

	3.   Approval of Agenda

	SECTION 2: CONSENT ITEMS
	4. Credentialing
	Agenda Item - Credentialing.pdf
	Credentialing.pdf

	5. Physician/Non-Physician Traditional Compensation Plan
	Agenda Item - Physician Compensation Plan.pdf
	Physician and Non Physician Provider Traditional Comp Plan_DRAFT.pdf

	6. Health Plan of Nevada
	Health Plan of Nevada, Inc. - Consulting Provider Agreement -  Agenda Item (GB) (8965).pdf
	a. Consulting Provider Agreement - Redacted.pdf
	b. Disclosure of Ownership.pdf

	7. Fresenius Kidney Care of Nevada, LLC
	Agenda Item - Fresenius.pdf
	a. In-Hospital Services Agreement - Redacted.pdf
	b. Disclosure of Ownership.pdf

	8. IDX - Zerofox Company
	Agenda Item - IDX.pdf
	a. Breach Response Services Agreement.pdf
	b. Disclosure of Ownership.pdf

	9. ROI-IT, LLC Sophos
	Agenda Item - Sophos Central.pdf
	a. Sophos Renewal Quote.pdf
	b. Disclosure of Ownership.pdf

	10. Cardinal Health Pharmacy Services, LLC
	Agenda Item - Cardinal Health.pdf
	a. Consulting  Managment Final.pdf
	b. Disclosure of Ownership.pdf

	11. Compass Group
	Agenda Item - Compass Group.pdf
	a. Compass Group Amd 4 (Redacted).pdf
	b. Disclosure of Ownership 

	12. EV&A Architects
	Agenda Item - EV&A.pdf
	a. Architectural Design Service - Amendment 1.pdf
	b. Disclosure of Ownership.pdf

	13. Resolution - Critical Labor Shortage
	Agenda Item - NVPERS CLS March2024.pdf
	a. Resolution.pdf
	b. PERS - CLS Request - Position List.pdf

	14. Medicus Healthcare Solutions, LLC
	Agenda Item - Medicus Healthcare Solutions.pdf
	Medicus Healthcare Solutions.pdf


	SECTION 3:  BUSINESS ITEMS
	15. Education - Dr. Kate Martin - Graduate Medical Education Program
	Agenda Item - Kate Martin, MD Update.pdf
	Graduate Medical Education Report.pdf

	16. Governing Board Action Plan - Shana Tello - GME Program
	Agenda Item - Governing Board Action Plan.pdf
	GME Resident Support.pdf

	17. Education - Daniel Rosales - Compass Group Food Services
	Agenda Item - Compass Group Food Services.pdf
	Food Services Update.pdf

	18. Education - Maria Sexton - Epic Project Update
	Agenda Item - Epic Project Update.pdf

	19. Strategic Planning Committee Report
	Agenda Item - Strategic Planning Committee.pdf

	20. Human Resources and Executive Compensation Committee Report
	Agenda Item - HR Committee Report.pdf

	21. Audit and Finance Committee Report
	Agenda Item - Audit and Finance.pdf

	22. February FY24 Financial Report
	Agenda Item - February FY24Financial Report.pdf
	GB FY24 Feb 2024.pdf

	23. Kirk Kerkorian School of Medicine Update
	Agenda Item - KKSOM UNLV Update.pdf

	24. CEO Update
	Agenda Item - CEO Update.pdf


	SECTION 4: EMERGING ISSUES
	25. Emerging Issues
	Agenda Item - Emerging Issues.pdf


	SECTION 5: CLOSED SESSION
	26. Closed Session
	Agenda Item -  Closed Session.pdf



		2024-01-10T07:49:26-0800
	Agreement certified by Adobe Acrobat Sign


		2024-03-15T18:22:13-0700
	Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com


		2024-03-15T07:16:03-0700
	Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com


	Button1: 
	Button2: 
	Button3: 
	Button4: 
	Button5: 
	Button6: 
	Button7: 
	Button8: 
		2024-03-19T06:43:07-0700
	Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com


		2024-03-11T17:47:19-0700
	Kellie Wanbaugh
	I am approving this document




